Public Document Pack

Argyll

Argyll and Bute Council
Combhairle Earra Ghaidheal agus Bhoid %B ute
Corporate Services COUNCIL

Director: Nigel Stewart

Kilmory, Lochgilphead, PA31 8RT

Tel: 01546 602127 Fax: 01546 604444
DX 599700 LOCHGILPHEAD

e.mail —nigel.stewart@argyll-bute.gov.uk

16 September 2003

NOTICE OF MEETING
A meeting of the AUDIT COMMITTEE will be held in the COUNCIL CHAMBER, KILMORY,
LOCHGILPHEAD on THURSDAY, 26 JULY 2001 at 2:00 PM, which you are requested to attend.

Nigel Stewart
Director of Corporate Services

BUSINESS
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (IF ANY)

3. MINUTES
Audit Committee 21 March 2001 (PAGES 1 - 4)

4. (a) UNAUDITED 2000/2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
Report by Director of Finance (Pages 5 - 36)

(b) REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING
Report by Head of Accounting (Pages 37 - 48)

(¢) IMPROVING BUDGET MONITORING
Report by Head of Accounting (Pages 49 - 52)

5. ACCOUNTS COMMISSION OVERVIEW REPORT 1999/2000
Copy attached (PAGES 53 - 96)

6. REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 97 - 114)

7.  FINAL REPORT ON 2000/2001 AUDIT PLAN
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 115 - 118)



8. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2001/2002
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 119 - 124)

9. PROGRESS REPORT ON EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM
1999/00 TO PRESENT
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 125 - 128)

10. ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY
Report by Director of Finance (PAGES 129 - 154)

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Vincent Bradbury (Vice-Chairman) Councillor Alistair MacDougall
Councillor Gordon McKinven Councillor James McQueen
Graham Michie Councillor Len Scoullar

Councillor John Stirling

Contact: Sandra McGlynn Tel. No. 01546 604401



Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

MINUTES of MEETING of the AUDIT COMMITTEE held in the COUNCIL
CHAMBER, KILMORY, LOCHGILPHEAD
on WEDNESDAY, 21 MARCH 2001

Present: Councillor John Stirling (In the Chair)
Councillor Ronald Kinloch Mr Vincent Bradbury
Councillor Isobel Strong Mr Graham Michie

Councillor Len Scoullar

Attending: Charles Reppke, Head of Democratic & Community Services
Stewart McGregor, Director of Finance
Ian Nisbet, Chief Internal Auditor

1. MINUTES

The Committee approved the minutes of the Audit Committee of 29 November 2000
as a correct record.

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN

In the light of the Council’s Review of Political Management which will be
considered at the Council Meeting on 22 March 2001 it was agreed to take no action
on the appointment of the Vice-Chairman at this time.

3. TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Committee discussed the Terms of Reference for the Committee as determined
by the Council and were advised by Gordon Jack, External Auditor from
PricewaterhouseCooper that paragraph 14 be amended to more clearly focus the role
of the Committee.

Decision
(1) To note the Terms of Reference numbered 1-13

(2) To recommend to the Council that paragraph 14 be amended to read —

To examine the activities and accounts of the Council and exercise a
governance role over management efforts to ensure (a) that the expenditure
approved by the Council has been incurred for the purposes intended; (b) that
services are being provided efficiently and effectively; and (c) that value for
money is being obtained, all in accordance with Best Value requirements.



Page 2

(Ref: Audit Committee Terms of Reference, submitted)

INTERNAL AUDIT
(1) Progress Report on 2000/2001 Audit Plan

The Internal Audit Manager submitted a report on the interim progress covering
audits performed by Internal Audit during 2000/2001.

Decision

To note the content of the report and the appendix thereto.
(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 26 February 2001, submitted).
(2) Internal Audit Plan 2001/2002

The Internal Audit Manager submitted a report on the Annual Plan of proposed
audit activity for the financial year 2001/2002.

Decision

To note the Annual Audit Plan for 2001/2002 as detailed in Internal Audit
Manager’s report dated 26 February 2001.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 26 February 2001, submitted)
EXTERNAL AUDIT

Mr Gordon Jack and Mr David McLaren gave a presentation on their role as External
Auditors and submitted their Client Service Plan on the 2000/2001 Audit.

The Chairman thanked Mr Jack and Mr McLaren for their enlightening presentation.

Decision

(1) To note the 2000/2001 Client Service Plan from PricewaterhouseCooper.

(2) To note that 2000/2001 was the final year that PricewaterhouseCooper will be
External Auditors to the Council and that another firm will be appointed for a 4
year term by the Audit Commission in early course.

(Ref: Client Service Plan 2000/2001 by PricewaterhouseCooper, submitted).

EXTERNAL AUDIT MANAGEMENT LETTER UPDATE 1999/2000
PROGRESS REPORT

The Internal Audit Manager submitted a report in regard to the progress and



Page 3

implementation of recommendations raised in the PricewaterhouseCooper final report
to Members for 1999/2000 which had been undertaken by Internal Audit.

Decision

(1) To note the contents of the Internal Audit Manager’s report dated 16 February
2001.

(2) To request the Director of Corporate & Legal Services to furnish the Committee
with an update on the timescale for provision of the Fraud & Corruption Policy.

(Ref: Report by Internal Audit Manager dated 26 February 2001, submitted).
REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT SECTION

The Director of Finance submitted a report advising that the Audit Committee will
receive reports on Internal Audits’ Annual and 3 Year Plan together with progress on
Audits and liaison between Internal Audit and External Audit. He considered it
would be appropriate to review the role of the Internal Audit Section with the
presentation of a report to a future Audit Committee outlining current arrangements
and raising issues for consideration and possible changes and that it would be
desirable to run the review of Internal Audit in conjunction with the study carried out
by the Accounts Commission.

Decision

To agree in order to bring an independent view to the Review of the Internal Audit
Section to secure the assistance of Dr. Arthur Midwinter to carry out a detailed review
with the following terms of reference.

* Obtain detailed information on current structure of Internal Audit, resources
available, work plans, reporting arrangements and any other aspect relevant to the
current delivery of the Internal Audit service and undertake discussions with
Internal Audit staff to obtain their professional views on the current position.

» Carry out consultation with users of Internal Audit service.

* Compare current arrangements with other benchmarking or equivalent
information available including CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Internal Audit and
identify possible areas for improvement.

» Carry out an options appraisal for alternative service delivery arrangements e.g.
partnership or outsourcing.

e The review would be undertaken in a manner consistent with the principles of a
best value service review. The approach outlined above includes elements of
consultation, benchmarking and options appraisal. It would meet best value
principles in terms of member and external involvement through consideration by
the Audit Committee and the use of Dr.Midwinter would bring an external



Page 4

expertise to the review.

» Liaise with External Audit to ascertain preliminary findings from their review of
the Council’s internal audit arrangements.

* Form initial view on recommendations for change and provide draft report to the
Director of Finance and the Audit Committee.

e  Concluding Section

Immediately following the issue of the Accounts Commission report on Internal
Audit arrangements within the Council and recognising the findings of that report,
prepare a final report for the Director of Finance and the Audit Committee with
recommendations on alterations to the delivery of the Council’s Internal Audit service
which will lead to an improved delivery of service. It is anticipated that the report
will be consistent with current best practice, CIPFA’s Code of Practice,
Dr.Midwinter’s own view based on experience and the Accounts Commission’s
report on Internal Audit arrangements.

(Reference: Report by Director of Finance submitted)

Audit Comm 21 Mar



Page 5 Adenda Item 4a

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

FINANCE

2000/2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS (UNAUDITED)

1 SUMMARY

1.1

2.1

3.1

32

The unaudited Annual Accounts should be lodged with the Controller
of Audit by 30™ June 2001 in accordance with legislation. The
unaudited Accounts should also be submitted to Council and a set is
attached to this report.

The General Fund shows a surplus position of £85,000 and the Housing
Revenue Account shows a surplus position of £1,573,000. In both
cases, the sums are carried forward into the financial year 2001/2002.
However, it should be noted that the Council has commitments of
£468,000 in respect of specific projects relating to the interim award of
SINA.

The Direct Labour Organisations and Direct Service Organisations
returned a net surplus of £389,000 in respect of 2000/2001.

Overall, the total net revenue expenditure shows a variation from
budget (as augmented by approved use of accumulated surplus) of
0.1%. However, the departments of Education and Transportation
and Property Services incurred expenditure over budget, compensated
by savings in other areas of the Council’s budget.

RECOMMENDATION

The Council note the submission of the unaudited Accounts within the
statutory timescale and remit the Accounts to the Audit Committee for
further scrutiny.

DETAIL

Introduction

There is a statutory requirement to prepare a set of Accounts and
submit the Accounts to the Controller of Audit and the Council.

The date set for submission of the Accounts by the Scottish Executive,
is 30" June of each year. '

Summary of main items in Accounts

Before commencing on the details contained in the Accounts, it
should be noted that the Accounts have still to be audited. The
Auditors certificate and letter to Members will be submitted
following the completion of the audit anticipated for 30™



il

il

Page 6

September 2001. Figures are therefore subject to change.

Qutturn For The Year On The General Fund (£611,000)

It should be noted that the Council budgeted to use £364,000 of
accumulated Housing Revenue Account surplus at 31% March
2000 and during the course of the 2000/2001 financial year,
decided to utilise a further £110,000 of General Fund surplus in
connection with the Education NPDO project. Actual
expenditure should therefore have exceeded budget by
£474,000. The final outturn amounts to £611,000.

The surplus carried forward from 1999/2000 was £332,000
(following audit). Surplus utilisation during 2000/2001 together
with 2000/2001 variations amounted to £611,000 and after
bringing in the transfer of £364,000 from the Housing Revenue
Account reserves (as budgeted) a closing balance of £85,000
remains on the General Fund to be carried forward into
2001/2002.

Surplus For The Year On The Housing Revenue Account
£317,000

The surplus for the year amounted to £317,000. Variances on
repairs and maintenance, void house rents and bad debt
provision resulted in a lower than budget surplus. A surplus of
£2,192,000 was carried forward from 1999/2000 which earned
interest of £128,000. A contribution of £700,000 was made
from surpluses to capital and a contribution of £364,000 was
made to the Councils General Fund leaving a surplus of
£1,573,000 to be carried forward in 2001/2002.

Summary of Revenue Accounts (Excluding HRA)

A comparison between the actual outturn for 2000/2001 and
the budget by service, is given on the page headed
Consolidated Revenue Account for the year ended 31 March
2001. 1999/2000 actual net expenditure figures are also shown.

It can be seen on the line third from the bottom of the
Consolidated Revenue Account, that overall, the variation

from budget amounts to £260,000 (£611,000 - £351,000) of this
sum, £110,000 is in respect of approved use of accumulated
surplus leaving a net variation from budget of only £150,000
(0.1%).

However, there are variations from budget within each Service
Department, albeit they net out to only £150,000 overall.

It should be noted that an adjustment has been made to
Education and Development and Environmental Services
expenditure in respect of capital impairment values (see note at
the foot of the Consolidated Revenue Account). These



iv

Page 7

adjustments are cancelled out through the Capital Financing
Reserve and do not effect the overall General Fund position.
The over expenditure in the Education service has resulted
mainly from School Transport, Catering and Cleaning and
savings anticipated in staff costs not achieved. In terms of
Catering and Cleaning, arrangements have been put in place
by Education and Transportation and Property to agree the
approved 2001/02 budget premise by premise. In the case of
school transport information will be provided by the
departments of Education and Transportation and Property
on the specific contracts which resulted in increased costs
following retendering and 2001/02 budgets will be reprofiled
for budget monitoring purposes. The over expenditure in the
department of Transportation and Property Services is mainly
in respect of Winter Maintenance costs, additional staff costs
and reductions in income. The authorised extra expenditure
on the Housing and Social Work service is balanced by
additional Revenue Support Grant given to the Council
following completion of the 2000/2001 estimates. The Council
also incurred £132,000 in unbudgeted expenditure in respect of
precautionary measures regarding the foot and mouth
outbreak.

The over expenditure mentioned in the foregoing paragraph
has been compensated by savings achieved in Loan Charges in
the sum of £1,100,000 together with additional council tax and
community charge income amounting to £173,000 and
contributions of £389,000 from the DLO/DSOs. The interim
award of SINA in the sum of £900,000 was not fully spent at
31 March 2001 and the sum of £468,000 also contributes
towards the surplus for the year (although this sum is
“committed” expenditure to be incurred in 2001/2002).

Qutturn On The Capital Account

In the Composite programme (which excludes the Housing
Revenue Account) expenditure exceeded the capital consent
available by £538,000. This was in accordance with the
Councils objectives to fully maximise the Capital Consent and
utilise the tolerance arrangements whereby expenditure can be
incurred by anticipating the following years capital allocation.
Capital Expenditure on the Housing Revenue Account
matched the Capital Allocation.

Direct Labour Organisations {DLQOs) and Direct Services
Organisations (DSOs)

The position on DLO/DSO trading is shown on the page
headed summary DLO/DSO Revenue and Appropriation
Account. Overall, a net surplus of £389,000 has been achieved
for 2000/2001 and each D1.O/DSO returned a surplus for the
year.



» Page 8

Stewart McGregor
Director of Finance
19 June 2001

report/19junsmgannualaccounts Council mtg



Ar
@B%S{e 2000 - 2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS nge 9

COUNCIL

® ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD

1 APRIL 2000 TO 31 MARCH 2001
(Unaudited)

2006/t
Varsion 1



Page 10



AXGVIL 24002001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 11

$Bute \
counciL ~ CONTENTS 1

FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS
STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVERUE ACCOUNT
HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT
SUMMARY DLO/DSO REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT
COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT
.ON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON RESERVES
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

__Page

2-4

6-7

9-12

13

14

15-16

17

18

19-23

24

25

26

Page 1



-

AYGYIl 50002001 aNNUAL ACcounTs g€ 12

@BULe  £oReWORD BY THE DIRECTOR R FINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2001

Introduction !
This foreword is intended as a comment on Argyll and Bute Council's financial position as presented within the Statement of Accounts for the
financial year 2000/2001.

Statement of Responsibilities
This statement sets out the main financial responsibilities of the Councit and the Birector of Finance.

Accounting Policies

The Statement of Accounting Policies sets out the basis upon which the Financial Statements have been prepared, and expiains the v
accounting treatment of both general and specific items.

The Financial Statements

Consolidated Revenue Account

shows the income raised by the Council during the year and how it was spent on services, financing costs and contributions toffrom reserves.
A comparison to budget is alsc made in this staternent. The surplus or deficit is canied to the Statement of Total Movement on Reserves. The
notes to the Consolidated Revenue Account provide additional information on some costs and income included within the Consolidated

Revenue Account

Housing Revenue Account

reflects the statutory requirement to separately account for local authority housing provision, as defined in the Housing (Scotland) Act 1987. 1t

shows the major elements of housing revenue expenditure and capital financing costs, and how these are met by rents, housing support grant .
and other income. The surpius or deficit is carried to the Statement of Total Movement in Reserves.

Summary DLO/DSO Revenue and Appropriation Account

gives the summarised financial cuttum for each DLO/DSO for the financial year. It also shows how the overall surplus or deficil is dealt with. A
note to the statement indicates whether the DLO/DSO's have achieved their statutory financial objective. The overali DLO/DSO pasition is
carried 1o the Consolidated Revenue Account and Statement of Total Movernent on Reserves.

Council Tax Income Account
explains how the council tax income shown for the financial year in the Consolidated Revenue Account is made up.

Non-domestic Rate income Account
shows the build up of non-domestic rate income, the contribution to or from the national pool and the resulting net income for the financial year
to the Council which is shown in the Consolidated Revenue Account.

Consolidated Balance Sheet

brings together all the assets and liabilities of the Council's General Fund, Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations and Loans Fund. It
is the statement of the resources of the Council and the means by which they have been financed. It is also a report on the Council's financial
position at one particular point in time, a snapshot of its financial affairs at the close of the year expressed in accounting terms. The notes to
the Balance Sheet give further information on the make up of certain assets and liabilities.

Statement of Tatal Movement in Reserves .
gives details of the balances on each reserve at the start of the financial year, movements during the financial year by source and the balance
at the end of the financial year as shown in the Balance Sheet.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement .
summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from the transactions with third parlies on both day to day revenue transactions and
expenditure on capital activities.

Major Changes in Accounting Practice

The Council continues to adopt the accounting practices recommended by the Charlered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
and the Local Authorities {Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee (LA(S)AAC). In accordance with best accounting practice the deferred
charge balance as at 31 March 2000 has been written out of the balance sheet to the Capital Financing Reserve. Defered charges arising
during the year have been charged in full to the relevant service department's revenue account. The budget figures have been adjusted to aid
comparison.

Further more to comply with the 2000 Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) depreciation has been charged on all operational
buildings, again the budget igures have been adjusted to aid comparison.

During 2000/2001 the Council carried out a review of its approach to allocating centrat support sefvice costs. The outcome is an increase in
the transparency, clarity and robustness of these allocations. This has resulted in a number of changes in the allocations to individual services
with the budget being adjusted for comparison. The most notable adjustment being a reduction in allocations to the Housing Revenue Account
of £0.171m. Except for the Mousing Revenue Account budgets have been adjusted 1o aid comparison.

Page 2



ATZYIl  2000-2008 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 13

$BUte  rorEWORD BY THE DIRECTOR ABFINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2001

COUNCIL

Property Valuations U

It is the intention of Argyll and Bute Council that all land and property inhented from the former District and Regional Councils be revalued
" through a rolling programme of revaluaiion. This programme was started during 1999/2000 with all properties of the former Argyll and Bute
District Council being valued together with all other properties which had a vaiuation as at 1 April 1999 greater than £1m. This programme of
revaluation continued during 2000/01 with the revaluation of all Primary Schools and 84 of the non-operational buildings. By 31 March 2001

86% of the opening net book value of the *Other Land and Buildings® category of Fixed assets had been revalued.

Council dweliings were revatued at the 31st March 2001.

Asset Impairment

in compliance with Financial Reporting Standard 11, Impairment of Fixed Assets and Goodwill, the Council has reviewed the valuations of its
assets at 31 March 2001 to assess any reduction in asset valuations. Arising from these impairment reviews the Council has reduced the
valuation of Hermitage Academy and Campbeltown Swimming Pool by £6m and £0.5m respectively. These reductions are reflected in the

actual expenditure of Educafion and Development and Environment Services for the year.

Consolidated Revenue Account

The general fund surplus at 31 March 2001 amounted to £0.085m. This is an increase of £0.072m on the budget balance of £0.013m.
However it should be noted the Council has forward commitments of £0.468m be funded from this in respect of specific projects related to the

interim award of the Special islands Needs Aliowance (SINA).
. The main elements of the increase of £0.072m in the general fund surplus are!

£'m
Savings in loan charges 0.800
Increase in collection of Council tax and community charge 0.150
Contribution to general fund by DLO/DSOs 0.389
Underspend on specific projects funded from interim SINA award 0.468
Other 0.039
Balance brought forward which was not budgeted 0.332
Increased Income 2178
Over expenditure on Education {1.164)
Over expenditure on Transportation & Property Services {0.529)
Supplementary estimate re feasibility study for capital funding in Education {0.410)
Precautionary measures re foot and mouth {0.132)
Reduction in central support allocation to HRA {0.171)
increased expenditure {2.106)
0.072

Net increase in general fund

During the year the Council fook precautionary measures with regard te the national foot and mouth outbreaks. The amount of expenditure
incurred during 2000/2001 was £0.132m. This cost was met by the Development and Environment Services and has been included in the tota!

.expenditure chargeabie against Section 83 of the Local Govemment (Scotland) Act 1973

The income and expenditure of the Education service reflects additional central govemment grant funding of £1.2m aliocated to schools which

has been spent on additional staffing and schoot suppiies. This incame and expenditure was additional to budget.

The major reasons for increases in Education expenditure include cleaning and catering costs, pupil transport and teaching staff costs. The
contributing factors within Transportation and Property Services include additional costs related to winter maintenance of roads, unbudgeted

staff costs and reduced income ievels.
DLO/DSO's

During 2000/2001 the Council's DLO/DSO's achieved a surplus of £0.389m. The surpius has been taken as a contribution to the General
Fund. All DLO/DSO's met their stafutory financial objective. In a period of financial constraints this is a welcome outcome and reflects

positively upon the Council's management of direct services.

Housing Revenue Account

The balance on the HRA reserve stands at £4.573m at 31 March 2001. This compares to a budgeted balance of £1.819m. The main factors

giving rise to the reduction of £0.238m in the reserve are as follows:

Page 3



AIZYLl  2000.2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS  Page 14

%&H&? FOREWORD BY THE DIRECTOR GFFINANCE for the year ended 31 March 2001

Housing Revenue Account {Continued) ' £m
i
Savings in capital financing costs and interest 0:178
Increase in other income 0.305
Reduction in central support service allocation 017
Increased Income 0.654
Additional expenditure on repairs and maintenance (0.518)
Void house rents and pravision for bad debts {0.209)
Other movements {0.075)
increased Expenditure {0.892)
Reduction in HRA Reserve {0.238)

Budgeted contributions of £0.7m to supplement the capital expenditure programme and a transfer to the general fund of £0.364m were made.

Capital Expenditure

The Council incurs capital expenditure within limits laid down by the Scottish Executive who issue consents under Section 94 of the Local
Government (Scotiand) Act 1973. Capital receipts (from the sale of buildings, land, efc.} and private sector contributions are used to enhance
these consents, subject to cerain Scottish Executive restrictions placed on the use of receipts. Details of capital expenditure are as follows:

Composite Programme Housing Revenue Account

£'m £'m

Net Allocation 10.882 1.675
Usable Capital Receipts 1.282 0.800
Capital Financed from Cumrent Revenue 0.134 0.700
Gross Consent 12.298 3175
Capital Expenditure - — 12836 3475
Excess Expenditure j__o_s?s—"‘ — .

The excess expenditure on the composite programme, which was planned, is within tolerance limits allowed and will be offset against the
_ consent available in 2001/2002. Containing expenditure within the tolerance limit demonstrates effective management of the substantial capital
investment programmes and the continuing pressure upon these programmes. The composite programme includes all services other than
Police, Fire and the Housing Revenue Account. Joint Boards control capital expenditure on Police and Fire and are reporied separately
thereon. The Housing Revenue Account covers capital expenditure on the Council's stock of houses. The composite programme includes
additional consent in relation to the redevelopment of Port Askaig Harbour which the Council secured in competition, securing much needed

Other Significant Matters

The Council has been acfive in progressing a range of initiatives which aithough not directly affecting the financial position for the 2000/2001
financial year are worthy of mention in order to gain a full understanding of the Council's business.

Over the last 2 years the Council has been deveioping a public private partnership to secure the necessary capilal investment to meet the
Council's long term waste disposal needs. Negotiations are progressing and financial closure is anticipated in July 2001.

The Council secured funding under the new housing partnerships programme. This funding has been utilised to carry out an options appraisal
study for large scale voluntary transfer of the housing stock. The options appraisal is well underway and the outcome of this will be considered
over the next year.

In common with other Councils a significant investment in school buildings is i-equired. The Council has adopted a proaclive approach to this
and allocated funding during 2000/2001 for a feasibility study fo investigate how this invesiment might be achieved. To supplement this the
Council secured £0.200m of Scottish Executive funding to develop an autiine business case for its education capital investment proposals.
This exercise is now underway.

Conclusion

The Council ends the year with a smalt general fund surpius. However this is commitied {0 projects already underway. improvements in
council tax collection, savings in loan charges, effective management of DLO/DSOs and containment of expenditure in most departments has
offset the over expenditure on Education and Transportation and Property Services. There is a small reduction in the HRA reserve. In overall
terms the Council has achieved its objectives in fully utilising capital consents,

The Council will continue to pursue initiatives to secure additional funding. Budgetary control will be scrutinised to improve financial contro!
within Education and Transportation and Property Services.

Stewart McGregor
Director of Finance
20 June, 2001

Page 4



AXgVIl 2000001 ANNUAL AcCOUNTS Page 15

SBULe g7/TEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES #6R THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

THE AUTHORITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES
The Authority is required:

1. to make amangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers has the
responsibility for the administration of those affairs. in this authority, that officer is the Director of Finance.

2 to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE'S RESPONSIBILITIES

The Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the authority's statement of accounts, which in terms of the CIPFALA{S)AAC Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain ("The Code of Practice"), is required to present fairly, the financial position of the
authority as at 31 March 2001 and its income and expenditure for the year ended on that date.

in preparing this statement of accounts, the Director of Finance has:
1. selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
2, made judgements and estimaies that were reasonable and prudent;
3. complied with *The Code of Practice”.
The Director of Finance has also:
1. kept proper accounting records which were up {o date;
2 taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other imegularities.

Page 5



S

ALZYI 70002001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 16

?5}\,1},? STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POL{EIES for the year ended 31 March 2001

L
1

The Accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice for the publication of Financial information. Due regard has, been
given to the Statements of Recommended Practice and Accounting Standards as they apply to Local Authorities in Great Britain,

1. REVENUE ACCOUNTS
Revenue transactions have been recorded on an income and expenditure basis, actual or estimated sums having been included in
respect of known debtors and creditors at the year end.

Customer and client receipts in the form of sales, fees, charges and rents have been accfued in the period to which they relate.
Employee costs have been charged to the period within which the employees worked.

Interest payable on external borrowing and intemal income has been accrued in the period to which it relates on the basis of the overall
economic effect of the borrowing. :

The cost of supplies and services has been accounted for in the period during which they were received or consumed.

All revenue grants are malched with the expenditure to which they relate. Grants made to finance the general aciivities of a local
authority or to compensate for loss of income are credited to the revenue account of the financial year to which they relate. Specific
government grants are accounted for on an accruals basis when the conditions for receipt have been complied with,

2. OVERHEADS
The cost of all Central Support Departments are fully aliocated over user departments. Allocations have been based on actual or '
estimated activity levels, time and floor area.

3 PENSIONS
The cost of providing pensions for employees is charged to the revenue account in accordance with the statutory requirements
goveming the particular pension schemes to which the councif contributes.

The accounting treatment foliowed by the Council is not in accordance with the Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 24
(SSAP24), "Accounting for Pension Costs®, which requires that the pension costs should be charged to revenue in such a manner as {o
provide a substantially level charge for cumrent and future pension costs. it is not considered appropriate to reflect non-cash items of
this nature in the accounts of the Council and, therefore, the charge for the year represents only the actual contributions paid.

The employer's contributions to the scheme are assessed every three years by a consulting actuary and are calculated to ensure the
actuarial solvency of the fund. The cost of pensions to the Council, reflected in the financial statements, is the actuai contribution paid
in the year as determined by the actuary.

4 CAPITAL ACCOUNTING

Accounting Policy Statement

The accounts have been drawn up in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in Great Britain, which is
recognised by statute as representing proper accounting practices. in Scotland the status of the 1993 Code is derived from the Scottish .
Office Circular 5/1985 and not from a statutory source.

Services have been charged for the assets based on their value rather than on the financing costs of debt outstanding on the assel.

Fixed Assets .
All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets has been capitalised on an accruals basis.

Disposal of Fixed Assets
The receipts arising from the disposal of fixed assets have been dealt with an an accruals basis. Those of a capital nature are credited
fo the Capital Financing Reserve.

Depreciation
This policy complies with the requirements of the 2000 SORP which incorporated the introduction of Financial Reporting Standard 15
(FRS15), "Tangible Fixed Assets”.

Operationa Buildings - 20-50 years
Infrastructure and Deferred Government Grants thereon - 40 years
Vehicles : - 4-20 years
Plant and Equipment - 3-10years
Vessels - 25 years

Page 6



Argyll  2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 17
PBUIE  grATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POIRBIES for the year ended 31 March 2001

COUNCIL

10.

1.

12.

13.

DEFERRED CHARGES

Deferred charges are items that have been charged to the capital account of the authority, but which do not result in the acquisition of a
tangible asset for the authority. On the 31 March 2000 these were valued at £42.218m, £34.566m of which was for Argylt and Bute
Councit investing in private sector housing stock by way of repair, improvement and disablement grants. On 31 March 2001, in line with
best accounting praciice, these are now shown to have no value as Argyll and Bute Council derives no beneficial ownership of such
investment,

Deferred charges arising during the financial year have been written out immediately with service revenue accounts being charged on
the basis of the benefit thal the service receives as a result of the expenditure. Adjustments have been made through the contribution to
the Capital Financing Reserve so that there is no net impact on the amount to be met from govemment grants and focal taxation.

STOCK & WORK IN PROGRESS

. Stock has been valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Work in progress is reflected in the Revenue Accounts and Balance Sheets of the appropriate trading activities at cost plus, where
appropriate, a proportion of overheads together with attributable profits and allowances for future losses.

PROVISION FOR BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBT
Due account has been taken of the likelihood of the collection of outstanding debt, including local tax collection, and, where appropriate,
debtor balances have been reduced to reflect this.

INSURANCE FUND
An insurance fund has been established in accordance with the Local Govemment {Scotland) Act 1994.

RESERVE FUNDS

A Repairs and Renewals Fund has been established in accordance with the Local Government (Scotiand) Act 1875. Reserve Funds
for the Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations have been established in accordance with the relevant CIPFA Code of Practice.
A Capital Fund has also been established within the Direct Labour Organisation.

LEASING
All current leases are classified as “operating leases” as defined by Statement of Standard Accounting Practice 21 (SSAP 21),
*Accounting for Leases and Hire Purchase Contracts’. The annual rentals are charged to the appropriate Revenue Account.

ASSETS FINANCED BY COVENANT SCHEMES
The accounting treatment of assets financed under Covenant Schemes is in accordance with Section 4.1 of Guidance Note 1 -
Covenant Schemes Accounting Treatment and Disclosures - issued by the Local Authority (Scotiand) Accounts Advisory Committee

The Council's indebtedness is recorded as a Deferred Covenant Liability in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The assets have been
valued in accordance with Note 4 above.

LOANS FUND
In accordance with the Loca! Govemment {Scotland) Act 1975 Schedule 3 (12), the Council administers a Loans Fund. All loans raised
by the Council are paid into the fund and are pooled.

Interest and expenses of the Loans Fund have been calculated and afiocated to the revenue account on the basis of debt outstanding
on each account at the start of the financial year with a pro-rata adjustment in respect of new advances.

Redemption of debt has been caiculated and provided for in the Revenue Account on an annuity basis.
Interest on revenue balances is allocated on the basis of monthly balances held on the respective accounts.

DIRECT LABOUR AND DIRECT SERVICE ORGANISATIONS

Accounts for the Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations are included in summary format in this document. A detailed set of
accounts as required by statute are available on request from Council Headguarters. The Consolidated Revenue Account and Balance
Sheet include entries from these as appropriate.

Page7



AXgYll 20002001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTs P ag€ 18

?gklgf CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNBfor the year ended 31 March 2001

1999/00 2000/01
Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget
Net Gross Gross Net Net
Expenditure Expenditure income  Expenditure  Expenditure
£000 Note £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Councli Services
56,249  Education 75,644 8,754 66,890 58,315
17,022 Development and Environment Service 24,735 6,069 18,666 18,087
20,484 Social Work and Housing Service - 45076 18,813 26,263 25,462
(594)  Housing Revenue Account 13,818 14,135 {317} {683)
20,160 Roads and Transportation Service 38,470 18,457 20,013 19,369
1,806  Central Services to the Public 2,994 1,190 1,804 2,181
2,262 Corporate and Democratic Core 33719 87 3,292 3,327
11,0177  Joint Boards 1 1,114 - 11,114 1,061
128406  Net Cost of Services 215,230 67,505 147,725 137,099
128,445  Net Operating Expenditure 148,555 136,801
594 Surplus/deficit fransfered to/from HRA Balances 317 683
6,261 Contributions to/{from) Capital Financing Reserve 3 {9.614) 461
(280)  Contribution from DLO/DSO {389) -
135020  Amount to be met from Government Grants and Local Taxpayers 138,869 137,945
30,652 Council Tax 32,984 32877
76,818 Revenue Support Grant 75,852 75,371
25472  Non-domestic Rates 29,231 2,221
314 Community Charge and Old Rates 191 125
(1,764)  (Deficit) / Surplus for Year . (61%) (351)
Transfer from HRA Reserves 364 364
2,086 General Fund Surplus Brought Forward 332 -
332  General Fund Surplus Carried Forward 85 13

During the year the valuations of Hermitage Academy and Campbeitown Swimming Pocl were revised down to reflect a permanent impairment in
value. This amounted to an additional charge of £6.071m being made to the Education service account and £0.511m being made to the

Development and Environment service account.

Page 8



AXZGVI  2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 19

?&g&f NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

1. Joint Boards v

‘This account shows payments to the Police, Fire and Valuation Joint Boards and to the Authorities Buying Consortium.

1999/2000

2000/01

£000 £000
6,481 Strathclyde Police Joint Board 6,406
3512 Strathciyde Fire Joint Board 3641
1,006 Dunbartonshire and Argyll & Bute Valuation Joint Board 1,038
18 Authorities Buying Consortium 29
1,017 Total Joint Boards T 114

2. Asset Management Revenue Account

This account shows the {deficif)surplus arising from the capital charges made to the service accounts for the use of assets and the cost to the
Council of financing these assets.

1999/2000
£'000

4,056

17,978
(21,526)
(469)

39

2000/01
£'000
Provision for Depreciation/tmpairment 16,562
Extemnal Interest Payable 17.921
Capital Charges {33,165)
Release of Government Grant (488)
Net Expenditure / ( Income) 830

3. Contributions to Capital Financing Reserve

This shows the amount of revente resources used to finance capital expenditure during the year and the repayment of the principal instatment
from the Loans Fund, ofiset by depreciation/impairment charges (net of Government Grants credit) and the amount of deferred charges written off

to revenue.

1999/2000 2000/01
£'000 £000
643 Capital Financed from Current Revenue 134
9,205 Principal Loans Fund Instalment 9,667
(4,056) Depreciation/impairment (16,562)
Deferred Charges Written off to Revenue (3,341)
469 Release of Govement Grant 488
6,261 Total Contribution to Capital Financing Reserve {9,614)

.. Operating Lease Rentals Paid

The Council uses land, buildings, vehicles, plant and equipment financed under the terms of an operating lease. The amount paid under these
arrangements in 2000/01 are as follows:

.

1999/2000 2000/01
£'000 £000
113 Land and Buildings 68
521 Vehicles 887
558 Plant and Equipment 3g5
111 92 Total

1,350

tn respect of vehicles the Council recovered £0.121m of leased car costs from its employees during 2000/01.
The future cash payments required under these operating leases are:

£'600
2001/02 . 1,148
2002 onwards 3,686
Total 4834

Page §



AXZGVIL 20000001 annuAL ACcounTs P age 20

&Bute
NG NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED RERENUE ACCOUNT

5. Local Government Act 1973, Section 83 Expenditure !

The Council's expendilure under this statute, which is for the benefit of local residents, is limited to the product of £3.80 and the population of the
Council's area. For 2000/01 that limit was £0.337m with expenditure of £0.324m being incunmed and included within service expenditure. This
expenditure covered the cost of Leisure Management Grants, Joint Twinning and the precautionary measures taken with regards to the national
outbreak of foot and mouth disease.

6. Local Government Act 1936 - Separate Publicity Account

The Council is required under Section 5 of the Act to maintain a separate account for publicity. Expenditure of £0.404m was incurred during
2000/01 and is included within service expenditure as follows:

1999/2000 2000/01
£000 £'000

181 Staff advertising 172

16 Leaflets and publications 21

60 Statutory notices 64

155 Other 147

412 Total 404

7. Agency Income

The Council has an agency agreement with Scottish Homes whereby the Council collects rents on their behalf and arranges for maintenance work
to be camied out on their housing stock. In addition the Council has an agency agreement with the West of Scotland Water Authority to collect
water and sewerage rates.

1999/2000 2000/01
£'000 £'000

1 Scottish Homes - collection of rents 1

3 Scottish Homes - repair of houses 1

161 West of Scotland Water Authorify ; 161

165 163

- Agency Expenditure .
185 163

8. Local Authorities (Goods and Services) Act 1970

The Council is empowered by this Act to provide goods and setvices to other public bodies. Income from these services amounted 1o £4.624m

and the related expenditure was £4.581m. The goods and services provided were as follows:

Joint Finance and Resource Transfer

North Lanarkshire Council - Cleaning Outdoor Centre

Trunk Road Maintenance

Education - Provision of Special Needs
Strathclyde Police

Strathclyde Fire Brigade

Scottish Homes

Kirkcare

Income
£'000
1,659

73
2445
203
106
127
6

5
4,624

Expenditure
£'000

1,659

66

2,427

196

89

125

4,581

Page 10



AISYI  2000.2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 21
?OBU}\IJ(!;E NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

9. Pensions - Local Govemment Superannuation (Scotland) Scheme

The Council participates in the Superannuation Fund administered by City of Glasgow Council's Strathclyde Pension Fund. This Fund provides
members with defined benefits related o pay and service. The contributions are based on rates determined by the Fund's professionally qualified
actuary and based on triennial valuations of the Fund, the most recent of which was at 31 March 1999 and set employers contributions as follows:

2000/01 - 200% of employees contributions
2001/02 - 210% of employees contributions
2002/03 - 220% of employees contributions

The value of assets of the scheme as at 31 March 1999 did not exceed 105% of the value of the liabilities of the scheme.

1999/2000

2000101
£'000 £000
3,240 Pension costs charged to the accounts (£) 3,757
10.20% as a percentage of pensionable pay (%) 12.00%
' 16 Discretionary payments made by the council {f} 10
0.05% as a percentage of pensionable pay (%) 3.19%
n Expenditure on added years awarded (f) -
1.19% as a percentage of pensionable pay (%)
The capital cost of discretionary increases in pensions payments agreed by the autharity are:
£'000
in the year n
in earlier years 12,946

This includes both retirals from Argyll and Bute Council itself, and retirals from predecessor authorities for which Argyll and Bute Council is still
making payments.

10. Teachers Pensions - Administered by the Scottish Office

1999/2000 2000101
£000 £'000
1,612 Amount paid over (£) 1,984
6.90% Rate of contribution (%) . 6.90%
441 Amount of added years awarded by the Council (E) 431
56 Discretionary payments made by the council {£) .
11. Members' Allowances
The total amount of members' allowances paid by the Council during the year were:
1999/2000 2000/01
£000 £'000
192 Basic Allowance 195
176 Special Responsibility Allowance 199
368 Total Allowances

T —— m

Page 11



Aégyu 2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
@Bute
COUNCIL

Page 22
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED REVENUE ACCOUNT

12. Officers’ Emojuments

The number of employees whose remuneration, excluding pension contributions was £40,000 or more in bands of £10,000 were:

1999/2000
No Remuneration Band
30 £40,000 - £49,999
3 £50,000 - £59,999
6 £60,000 - £69,999
1 £70,000 - £79,999

13. Related Party Transactions

During the year transactions with related parties arose as follows:

Central Government and Agencies:

Revenue Grants: Revenue Support Grant
Non-domestic Rates
Housing Benefits / Support Grant
Council Tax Benefit Subsidy
Other Government Grants

Capital Grants: ~ European Grants
Sports Lottery
Argyli and the Islands Enterprise
Scottish Natural Heritage
New Deal for Schools
Other Govemment Capital Grants

Related Bodies:
Joint Boards (see note 1 for further details)
Scottish Passenger Transport

Other Related Party Transactions:
Companies in which members have a significant interest

2000/01

o F

income Expenditure
£'000 £:000

75,852
29,231
13,100
4,523
6,772

111
92
47

6

600

323

11114
1,079

Page 12



Argyll 20002004 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 23
@BULe  15y51NG REVENUE ACCOUNT fothe year ended 31 March 2001

COUNCIL
199912000 ' 200012001 2000:2001
Actual Actual Budget
£'000 : : £'000 £000
Expenditure
3,883 Repairs and Maintenance 4,502 3,084
3,553 Supervision and Management 3,647 3,132
5227 Capital Financing Costs 4953 5,003
307 Void House Rents 402 240
28 Bad Debt Write Off - -
24 Provision for bad or doubtful debts 137 -
114 Other expenditure 177 128
13,136 Total Expenditure 13,818 13,087
income
13,212 Rent of houses {gross) 13,501 13,437
57 Non-gweliing rents 51 55
a3 Housing Support Grant 93 93
368 Other income 490 185
13,730 Total income 14,135 13,770
594 (Deficit) / Surplus for Year 7 683
3,208 Surplus Brought Forward 2,192 2192
- interest Eamed on Surpius Brought Forward 128 -
(1,700) Contribution to Capital Financing Reserve (700) {700)
- Contribution to General Fund {364) {364)
2,192 Surplus Retained in Housing Revenue Account 1573 1,811

NOTES TO THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

.. Gross Rent Income

This is the total rent income for the year. Average annual rent charges were £:37.95 per week in 2000/01 (1999/2000 £36.45)

2, Housing Stock '
1999/2000 2000/01

No No
182 Sheltered Housing 198
3,592 Other houses 3,563
1,658 ' Tenement fiats 1,664
1,453 Other flats 1,330
6,885 Total Housing Stock 6,755

3. Rent Arrears and Bad Debts

Rent arrears at 31/3/2001 were £0.472m (31/3/2000 - £0.322m) and this equated to an average rent amears per house of £70.00 {1999/2000 -
£46.77)

in accordance with the latest assessment of polential recovery and in order to reflect due prudence, the provision for bad debts has been
adjusted to £0.272m (1999/2000 - £0.125m), this represents an increase of £0.147m.

Page 13



Argyll 002001 annuaLaccounts Page 24
?E}Nlctff SUMMARY DLO/DSO REVENUE ANBAPPROPRIATION ACCOUNT
1999/2000 2000/01 A
(Surplus) Total (Surplus} {Surplus)
Deficit Tumover Expenditure Deficit Deficit
Actual Actual Actual Actual Budget
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
DLO

(95) Property Maintenance 3148 3,125 (23)

4 Roads - Local 8,015 7,878 {137

(40) Roads - Trunk 2,445 2428 {17

DSO

(37) Vehicle Maintenance 1,732 1,586 (146)
(6) Ground Maintenance 2,533 2515 (18} @)

2) Street Cleansing 865 858 {7

{51) Refuse Collection 1,442 1426 {18)

- Leisure Management 750 743 7

(42) Catering 2433 2427 (6}

3) Cleaning 1,247 1,235 {12)
(280) TOTAL 24,610 24,221 {389) 4

Appropriation Account

Deficit  Transferto  Transferto Balance
{Surpius) General Fund Reserve Fund 3113101
£000 £'000 £000 £000
2000101 (339) 389 -

NOTES TO THE SUMMARY DLO/DSO REVENUE AND APPROPRIATION ACCOUNT

1. Further Information

The detailed accounts for the Direct Labour and Direct Services Orgamsatlons are contained in a separate Annual Report, which is pubhshed in
accordance with the appropriate legislation and is available on request from Council Headquarters.

2, Statutory Financial Objectives

The statutory financial objective for all DSO's and DLO's is to break-even after applying the CIPFA Code of Practice on Capital Accounting. Al
Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations have achieved the statutory financial objective.

Page 14



ATXGVI 20005001 annvaLAccOUNTs  Page 25

?g,klgf COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT 2dr the year ended 31 March 2001

Shows the net income raised from council taxes levied under the Local Govemment Finance Act 1992.

1999/2000 2000/01
Actual - Actual
£000 £'000
38,312 Gross Council Tax levied and contributions in lieu 41,443
Less:
(252) Councit Tax benefits (net of govemment grant) (183)
{6,626) Other discounts and reductions {7.087)
(782) Provision for bad and doubtfui debts {1,189)
30,652 Net Council Tax Income 32,984

NOTES TO THE COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT

. 1. Calculation of the Council Tax

Dwellings are valued by the Assessor and placed within a valuation band ranging from the lowest *A" to the highest *H'. The Council Tax charge
is calculated using the Council Tax Base, ie. Band D equivalents as below. This value is then decreased or increased dependant upon the band
of the dwelling. The charge for each band for 2000/01 was as follows:

Band Valuation Band ' % Band D £ per yoar
A Under £27.000 67% £ 62533
B £27,000 - £35,000 78% £ 729.56
c £35,000 - £45,000 89% £ 833.78
D £45,000 - £58,000 100% £ 938.00
E £58,000 - £80,000 122% £1,146.44
F £80,000 - £106,000 144% £1,354.80
G £108,000 - £212,000 167% £1,563.33
H Over £212,000 200% £1,876.00

Page 15



AXgyll 20002001 aNnUALACCOUNTs  Pag€ 26
GBUte  counciL TAX INCOME ACCOUNTA6r the year ended 31 March 2001

COUNCIL

i

NOTES TO THE COUNCIL TAX INCOME ACCOUNT - Continued

2. Calculation of the Council Tax Base 2000/01 -

Council Tax Base A B C D E F G H Total
Total Number of Properiies 8,098 9,372 9,278 5358 6438 3,266 2,156 205 44171
Less . prempthns! 891 619 1264 3 518 62 93 28 397
Adjustment for
- Single 915 955 692 382 315 127 73 7 3,466
Chargepayers
Effective Number of Properties 6,292 7,798 1322 4,578 5,605 2,917 1,990 170 36,733
Band D Equivalent Factor (ratio) 6/9 7 8/9 979 18 1319 15/9 1809
Band D Equivalent Number of Properties 4,195 6,065 6,508 4,579 6,851 4,300 3,317 340 36,155 .
Add Contribution in fieu in respect of Ciass 18 dwellings (Band D Equivalent) 750
Nominal Tax Yield 36,905
Less Provision for Non-Coliection - 5.4% 1,993
" Council Tax Base 2000/01 34,912

Page 16



Argyil
@é%}t,e

COUNCIL

2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 27

NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACZBUNT for the year ended 31 March 2001

Shows the income from the rate levied under the Local Govepment (Scotland) Act 1975 as amended by the Local Govemment Finance Act 1992

on non-domestic property.
1999/2000 R
Actual
£'000
30,636 Gross rates levied and contributions in lieu

(3,998)
16
(230)
26,424

8
(960)

. 25472

Less:

Reliefs-and other deductions
Payment of interest

Provision for bad and doubtful debts
Net Non-domestic Rate income

Adjustments for years prior to introduction of national non-domestic rates pool
Contribution from / (10) national non-domestic rate pool
Guaranteed Rate Income

NOTES TO THE NON-DOMESTIC RATE INCOME ACCOUNT

1. Analysis of Rateable Values

1999/2000
£

2,902,925
31,683,788

8,280,645
3,783,285
5,343,005
4,421,665
8,284,462

. 64,699,775

industrial and freight franspart subjects
Public utilities including British Rail, British Gas, Hydro Electric etc
Commercial subjects:
Shops
Offices
Hotels, Boarding Houses etc.
Others
Miscelianeous and formula valued subjects
Total Rateable Value

2. Non-Domestic Rate Charge

1999/2000
Pence

48.9p

Rate Per Pound

3. Calculation of Rate Charge for Each Property

2000/01

Actual
£°000

33,286

(5.867)
(19)
(420)
26,980

10
2,241
29,231

2000/01
£

3,409,660
33,258,234

9,680,920

4,555,835

6,819,895

5,596,495

7,298
MR

2000/01
Pence

45.8p

The rates charge for each subject is determined by the rateable value placed upon it by the Assessor multiplied by the Rate per £ announced each
year by the Govemment.

Page 17



Argvil  ,000.2001 annuaLAccounts Page 28
PBUte  coNSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET2S at 31 March 2001
COUNCIL ]
1999/2000 2000/01
£000 Note £000
Fixed Assets i
Operational Assets
62,364 - Council Dwellings 63,290
152,755 - Other Land and Buildings 156,013
4,233 - Vehicles, Plant and Equipment 3,988
50,384 - Infrastructure Assets 60,175
28 - Community Assets ~247
Non-operational Assets
10,279 - Non-operational Land and Buildings 15,494
289,043 298,713
43,561 Deferred Charges 2 R
1,347 Long Term Debiors 9,065
333,951 Total Long Term Assets 307,778
Current Assets
1,158 - Stock and Work in Progress 1,178
14,835 - Debtors 5 9,946
795 - Cash at Bank and in Hand 1,922 13,046
350,739 320,824
Current Liabilities
-29,765 - Short Term Borrowing 6 -1,095
-15,389 - Creditors -27,515
2,315 - Bank Overdrait -2,765 -31,375
303,270 Total Assets less Current Liabilities 289,449
-184,996 Long Term Bommowing 6 -207,659
479 Deferred Covenant Liability -399
-11,215 Deferred Govemment Grants 7 11,113 -219,171
106,580 Total Assets less Liabilities 70,278
60,836 Fixed Asset Restatement Reserve 74,759
39,748 Capital Financing Reserve 9,142
3,369 Eamarked Reserves 2,895
Balances
332 - General Fund 85
2,192 - Housing Revenue Account 1,573
103 - DSOs 108
106,580 Total Equity 70,278
Stewart McGregor
Director of Finance
June 20, 2001

Page 18



Qégyll 2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 29
wDULE  NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALANDY: SHEET as at 31 March 2001

oy

1.1 Movement of Fixed Assets . .
Balance at Expenditure Revaluations Disposals  Transfers Depreciation ~ Write off Balance at

114100 in year to FARR 3173101

£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Operational Assets
- Council Dwellings 62,364 3,102 4,160 (1,156) (2,078) {3,102 63,290
- Other Land and Buildings 152,755 4,357 9,092 1,341 (10,505) {1,027} 156,013
- Vehicies Plant and Equipment 4,233 1,000 {38) (1,207) ' 3,988
- Infrastructure Assets 58,384 3,582 {19) (2,772) 60,175
- Community Assets 28 32 {307 (247)
Non-operational Assets - 10,279 236 6,803 {483) (1,341) 15,494
Total 289,043 12,309 20,055 (1,696) (16,562) (4,436) 298,713
Total 1999/2000 290,588 13,492 (465) {2,072) (359) (4,056) (8,085) 289,043

1.2 Valuation of Fixed Assets

Qcordance with the Capital Accounting Code of Practice, fixed assets are shown at valuation. The basis on which each category of fixed asset is
vaiued is as follows:

Council Dweliings
The basis of valuation is Existing Use Value for Social Housing as defined in Practice Statement 4.1 of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors {RICS)
Appraisal and Valuation Manual, the definition of which is as follows:

“Existing Use Value for Social Housing is defined as an opinion of the best price ai which the sale of an interest in property would have been completed
unconditionally for cash consideration on the date of the valuation.”

The valuations were camed out as at 31 March 2001 by an independent valuer, the District Valuer, on the aforementioned basis.

Other Land and Buildings
The basis of valuation is Open Market Value for Existing Use, assessed on either a comparative or depreciated replacement cost basis.

During the current year, revaluations were carried out by the Estates Section of Transportation and Property in accordance with their rolling programme of
revaiuations. This included revaiuations of all schools not revalued during 1999/2000. This programme will continue during 2001/2002.

Vehicles, Plant and Equipment
These assets have been valued using historical cost as a proxy for current reptacement cost.

tructure and Community Assets
These assets are valued at depreciated historic cost.

Non Operational Assets .
These have been valued on the basis of open market value taking account of existing and altemative uses.

During the current year, revaluations were caried out by the Estates Section of Transporiation and Property, on 80 non-operational properties, in
accordance with their rolling programme of revaluations. This programme will continue during 2001/2002.

Page 19



ATIZVL  2000.2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 30

fgggg NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALARGE SHEET as at 31 March 2001

1.3 Fixed Assets Information on Assets Held at 31/3/01

2000/01 . 2000/01
OPERATIONAL BUILDINGS No. OPERATIONAL EQUIPMENT No.
Administrative Buildings 38 Vehicles and Heavy Plant 354
Depots R
Social Work Homes for the Elderly 6 INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS
Social Work Children's Homes 4 Highways {miles) 1,406
Social Work Hostels 3 Bridges 954
Primary Schools 81
Secondary Schools 10 COMMUNITY ASSETS
Special Schools 3 Play Areas ' 52
Nursery Schools 3 Parks 25
Halls 10 Civic Regalia (Provosts’ Chains) 4
Sports Centres 1 Civic Regalia (Bailies' Chains) 1
Swimming Pools 4 Cemeteries 86
Museums and Libraries 10
Community Centres 8 COUNCIL DWELLINGS 6,755
Crematoria 1
Public Conveniences 69
Travelling Persons Sites 3
2. Deferred Charges Balance at Write off Expenditure  Receipts Capital Balance at
1/4/00 Opening Bal during year during year Bischarged 3113101
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Improvement Grants 34,789 (34,789) -
Slum Clearance 389 {389) -
Other 8,383 {8.383) -
Total 43,561 {43,561) . - . -
Total 1999/2000 42,218 - 2,942 - {1,599) 43,561

3. Spending on Capital Projects During the Year

Capital expenditure involves the creation of assets, the benefit of which will be available fo future rate and council taxpayers. It is financed from borrowing
and therefore the cost of the assets is effectively bome over a period of years. In 200001 gross capital expenditure totalied £16.012m, offset by capital
income of £4.116m, as follows:

31 March 31 March

2001 2000

£000 £000
Education Services . 2,574 3,496
Development and Environment Services ' 1976 2,043
Social and Housing Services 3,485 3,244
Housing Revenue Account _ 3,175 4,178
Transportation and Property Services 3459 2448
Centrat Support 1,343 1,078
Total Expenditure 16,012 16,487
Financed by:
Sale of Council Houses 689 743
Sale of Other Assets 612 305
Grants 1,757 1,129
Other Capital Receipts ‘ 224 414
Capital from Current Revenue 834 2,343
Borrowing 11,896 11,553
Total Financing 16,012 16,487

Page 20



AIGYIl  2000.2001 aNNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 31

?&ggg NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALAKKE SHEET as at 31 March 2001

4. Assets Held Under Finance Leases

There were no assets held under finance leases during the year.  _

5. Debtors £'000
Arrears of Local Taxation Councif Tax 11,324
less: provision for bad debts -8,256
2,068
Community Charge 8,060
less: provision for bad debts 8,016
4
Non-domestic Rates 2434
less: provision for bad debts -1,872
462
House Rents 373
less: provision for bad debts 273
101
tor Accounts 3,866
‘: provision for bad debis : 813
3,053
VAT Recoverable 1,417
Other Debtors 2,801
Total Debtors 9,946

6. Analysis of Borrowing

6.1 Source of Loan 31March 31 March
2001 2000
£'000 £000

Public Works Loan Board 187,812 185,910

Money Market 18,500 26,026

EIB 2,164 2,590

Other Loans 271 235

ﬁ(:htanding Loans 208,754 14,761
rity of Loans 31 March 31 March

2001 2000

£'000 £'000

Short Term Loans " 1,095 29,765

Total Short Term Loans 1,095 29,765

1-2years 1,292 1,048

2-5years 2714 3,959

6 - 10 years 1409 16,291

. Qver 10 years : 202,244 163,698

Total Long and Medium Term Loans A 207,659 184,996

- Total Qutstanding Loans 208,754 214,761

Page 21



AYXZYIl  2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

Page 32

Ute NoTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALARGE SHEET as at 31 March 2001

COUNCIL

7. Deferred Government Grants

T

R £000
Balance at 1 April 2000 11,215
Grants received during the year to finance capital projects 386
Credit to revenue account during the year 488
Balance at 31 March 2001 11,113
8. Analysis of Net Assets Employed As at 31 March 2001
General Fund HRA DSO/DLO's Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Fixed Assets 235423 63,290 - 298,713
Defered Charges - - - .
Long Term Debtors 9,065 - - 9,085
Stock and Work in Progress 199 - 879 1,178
Debtors 9,700 193 53 9,946
Cash at Bank and in Hand 1,922 - - 1922
Liabilities
Short Term Borrowing 41,139 25 19 -1,085
Creditors -23,654 -1,585 -2,266 -27,515
Bank Overdraft 2,765 - - -2,765
Long Tenm Borrowing -161,934 45,652 73 -207.659
Deferred Covenant Liability -389 - - -389
Govemment Grants Deferred 11,113 - - 11,113
Total Net Assets Employed 70,278

55,305 16,261 (1,288)

9. Insurance Fund

An Insurance Fund has been established in accordance with the Local Government {Scotiand) Act 1994. The balance at 31 March 2001 was £1.234m
{1999/2000 - £1.178m). The fund represents contributions made from the General Fund and does not yet cover specific uninsured risks.

10. Contingent Gains and Liabilities

The Council has inherited a number of applications for equal pay at varius stages of completion at Industrial Tribunals. The finat ouicome of these
applications is unknown at this time, although there is the possibility that the Council may lose at least some of these cases. No financial provision has
been made in the 2000/2001 Accounts given the uncertainties which surround both the final outcomes and the settiement levels.

Contingent fiabilities have continued fo arise in respect of the former Strathclyde Regional Council's operations. Cost sharing amangements are in place
with the other efeven authorities which make up the former Strathclyde Region. Argdyll and Bute Council's share of liabilities which materialise in the future
will be approximately 4%. At present, potential liabilities in respect of insurance claims and various legal actions could cost the Councit £0.322m. Full
provision for this amount has been made.

As at 31 March 2000, the Council had incumed no expenditure and had made no commitments in respect of the costs associated with the introduction of
the Euro. Prior to entry into full Euro trading, 2 significant review of all systems will require to be undertaken. Consequently an estimate of costs is not
available at this stage.

11. Provisions

A provision in respect of insurance claims and various legal actions from the former Strathclyde Regional Council was set up during the 1999/2000
financial year, this was adjusted during 2000/01 to refiect the overall movement in the claims position during the year. This provision compiies with the
requirements of FRS 12 (Financial Reporting Standard 12 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) and meets the following criteria:

- There is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event;
- Itis probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required fo settie the obligation; and
- A reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.

Page 22



Argyll  2000-2001 ANNUAL ACCOUNTS Page 33

‘fgj}ggﬁl NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BALASCE SHEET as at 31 March 2001

1

12. Commitments Under Capital Contracts

At 31 March 2001, the Council had commitments on capitat contracts of £8.205m. This expenditure will be funded from a combination of government
capital consent (borrowing), income from selling assets and contributions from Revenue Accounts.

13. The Castle Trust

Argyil and Bute Council, East Renfrewshire Council and Glasgow City Council have entered a joint venture to operate the two educational outdoor centres
at Ardentinny and Castle Toward.

14. Trust Funds and Other Third Party Funds

The Council acts as sole or custadian trustee for 76 trust funds and 6 common good funds. In neither case do the funds represent assets of the Council,
and as such have not been inciuded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The funds have not been subject to an independent audit by the Council's

external auditors.

Funds for which Argylt and Bute Councit act as sole trustee:
Income Expenditure Assets  Liabilities

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

pbeitown Common Good Fund 3 19 426 426

n Common Good Fund 58 44 730 730
Inveraray Common Good Fund . - 1 1
Lochgilphead Common Good Fund - - 5 5
Dunoon Common Good Fund - - 8 8
Rothesay Common Good Fund 7 2 88 98
Angyli Education Trust 18 9 193 193
GM Duncan Trust 4 5 72 72
McDougall Trust 24 8 426 426
Moare's Mortification Fund 5 - 100 100
Various Other Trust Funds 22 3 57 357
Total Trust Funds 1 90 2,416 2,416

Purpose of Common Good Funds:
.e funds are held for the benefit of residents of the former Burghs within Argyll and Bute.

Pumpose of Trust Funds:
GM Duncan Trust: for the provision of fuel, clothing and foodstuffs for the needy of Campbeltown.

McDougall Trust: for the provision of sheltered housing on the Ross of Mull.
Moore's Mortification Fund: to provide benefits to the needy of that part of the Parish of Cardrass lying between Auchentroe and Keppoch.

Argyll Education Trust: this is made up of a number of small trusts to award prizes, bursaries, etc. to pupils and ex pupils of schools within the former
Argyll County Council area.

Further information on the Common Good and Trus! Funds, administered by Argyll and Bute Councit, can be obtained from the Treasury Secfion of the
Finance Department.

Page 23



Aﬁgy I 20002001 ANNUAL AccounTs T 2g€ 34
SBULe  STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON RBSERVES for the year ended 31 March 2001

COUNCIL
CAPITAL RESERVES REVENUE RESERVES B
Fixed Asset Capital Earmarked General Housing DLO/MDSO Total
Restatement Financing  Reserves Fund Revenue
Reserve Reserve Account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2000 60,836 39,748 3,369 332 2,192 103 106,580
Net surplus/(deficit) for year (611) 317 339 95
::;::Lse; s(gains)lloss, from revaluation of 20,055 20,055
interest 189 128 10 327
Contribution (to) / from General Fund (9,614) 89 364 (364) (388} (9,914
Contribution (to) / from HRA 700 (700) .
Contribution( to) DLO Capital Fund 5 5 -
Capital Discharged on House Loans (11 (11)
Net Book Value of assets disposed of (1,696) (1,696)
Capital Receipts Applied 3,697 3,697
Expenditure (757) {757)
Write off Deferred Charges at 1 April 2000 (43,562) (43,562)
:xpgndﬁure not through Fixed Asset (4,436) (4,436)
egister
Balance at 31 March 2001 74,759 (9,142) 2,895 85 1,573 108 70,278

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT OF RESERVES

1. Fixed Asset Restatement Reserve

This reserve reflects the difference between the book value of assets prior to the implementation of the new system of Capital Accounting and the
revalued amounts. Any subsequent revaluations are also recorded here. !t is not a revaluation reserve and does not represent resources available
to the authority. It cannot be used in any way to finance revenue or capital expenditure and can only be reduced by either writing out the book value
of assets or a downward revaluation.

2. Capital Financing Reserve

The Capital Financing Reserve contains the amounts which are required by statute to be set aside from capital receipts for the repayment of
extemal loans as well as the amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue and capital receipts. It also contains the difference between
amounts provided for depreciation and that required to be charged to revenue to repay the principal element of external loans. As with the Fixed
Asset Restatement Reserve it does not represent resources available 1o the authority.

3. Earmarked Reserves

Balance at Balance at

1 April Contributions Interest Expenditure 31 March

" 2000 2001

£000 £000 £:000 £000 £000

Education Reserves 353 89 19 (19) 42
Repairs and Renewals - Vehicles 552 32 584
Repairs and Renewals - General 1,205 70 (626} 849
insurance Fund 1,178 68 (12} 1,234
DLO Capital Fund 81 5 86
Total Earmarked Reserves 3,368 94 188 {sn 2,885

4, Revenue Reserves

Revenue reserves are made up of the annual movements in the Consolidated Revenue Account, Housing Revenue Account and the DSO/DLO
Appropriation Account. The Housing Revenue Account reserves carried forward are ring-fenced and as such can only be used for the benefit of
Council House Tenants. Revenue reserves can be used to meet both capital and revenue expenditure.

Page 24



AIXgyll  z000-2001 anNUAL AccOUNTs ~ Page 35
SBUte  coNSOLIDATED. CASH FLOW STASEMENT for the year ended 31 March 2001
1999/2000 2000/01
Actual REVENUE ACTIVITIES Actual
£000  Cash outflows £'000
83,742 Cash Paid for and on Behalf of Employees 87,151
74,076 Other Operating Cash Payments 65,703
4,757 Housing Benefit Paid Out 6,460
1,804 National Non-domestic Rate Payments to National Pool
164,379 Total Cash Outflows 159,314
Cash inflows
6,672 Rents (after rebates) 6,949
26,094 Council Tax Income 28,717
25424 Non-domestic Rate Receipts 30,014
314 Community Charge 191
76,818 Revenue Support Grant 75,852
16,734 DSS Grants for Benefits 17,531
5,107 Other Govemment Grants 6,865
19,630 Cash Received for Goods and Services 16,291
National Non-domestic Rate Receipts from National Pool 7,393
5,058 Other Operating Cash Receipts 5,536
181,851 Total Cash inflows 195,339
T 17472  NetCash Infiow | (Outflow) From Revenue Activities T %6025
SERVICING OF FINANCE
Cash outflows
16,760 Interest paid 22,561
16,760  Total Cash Outflows 22,561
Gash inflows
4 Interest received 107
41 Total Cash inflows 107
(16,719) Net Cash Inflow { {Outflow) From Servicing of Finance {22,454)
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Cash outfiows
3,814 Purchase of Fixed Assets 5,525
8.800 Cther Capital Cash Payments 5,456
12,614 Total Cash Qutflows 10,981
Cash inflows
2,954 Sale of Fixed Assels 2959
1,025 Capital Grants Received 1,008
878 Other Capital Cash Receipts 127
4,857 Total Cash Inflows 4,054
(1,157)  Cash inflow (Outflow) From Capital {6,887)
T _(7,004)  NetCash inflow/ (Outfiow) Before Financing 5,684
FINANCING
Cash outflows
183,783 Repayments of Amounts Borrowed 101,470
183,783  Total Cash Qutfiows 101,470
Cash inflows
190,533 New Loans Raised 95,463
190,533 Total Cash Inflows 95,463
6,750 Net Cash inflow / {Outfiow) From Financing (6,007)
(254) Decrease / {increase) in Cash and Cash Equivaients 677

Page 25



-

ATgyll 20002001 AnnUAL AccounTs  P@g€ 36

"‘fgj}q’éﬁ ~ NOTES TO THE CONSOEIDATED GHBH FLOW STATEMENT

1. Other Government Grants

1999/2000 2000/01
£'000 £000

21 Housing Support Grant o]

239 Rural Transport Grant 253
2,004 Pre School Education Grants 2475
258 Gaelic Education Grants 258
2,160 Cther Educational Grants (e.g. Excelience Fund) 3,540

145 Cther Grants (e.g. Civil Defence) 248

5,107 Total "Other Government Grants” 6,865

2. Net Cash Flow Reconciliation

1999/2000 2000101
£'000 £000
(1,764) Surplus/(Deficit) for Year (611)
594 Add back: Transfer to HRA Balance 317 .
(1,170 (294)
257 Movements in Reserves (469)
22,926 Adjustments Not Involving Movement in Funds 21,086
492 (Increase)/Decrease in Stocks (20)
774 {Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 4,937
4,258 Increase/(Decrease in Creditors) 10,785
17,472 Revenue Activities Net Cash Flow 36,025

3. Analysis of Net Debt

As at As at
31 March 1 April Cash
2001 2000 Flow
£000 £'000 £'000
Cash at Bank and in Hand ) 1,922 785 1127
Bank Overdraft (2,765) (2,315) (450) .
Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (843) (1,520} 677
Debt due within one year {1,095) (29,765) 28,670
Debt due after one year . {207,659) {184,996) {22,663)
Total Debt ' (208,754) (214,761) 6,007
Total (209,597) (216,281) 6,684
4. Reconciliation of Movement in Cash to Net Debt
1999/2000 2000/01
£'000 £'000
(254) increase / (Decrease) in Cash in Period 877
(6,750) Increase / (Decrease) in Debt Financing 6,007
(7,004) Movement in Debt in Period 6,684
(209,277) Net Debt as at 1 April 2000 {216,281}
{216,281) Net Debt as at 1 April 2001 {209,597)

Page 26



Page 37 Agenda Item 4b

Audit Committee, 26 July 2001
Note on Revenue Budget Monitoring 2000/2001

Head of Accounting

Budget monitoring is a simple concept and in principle is no different from its titte. It is
merely monitoring of the budget. It should be an ongoing process whereby budget
holders continually assess the impact of business decisions and activities on the budget
they are accountable for. A budget holder is the person who is accountable for a given
budget. 1t is usual to formalise budget monitoring whereby there is periodic reporting to
the highest level of management of budgetary performance at given points in time.

When Was it Done

In Argyll and Bute Council formal reporting of budget monitoring took place on a
monthly basis from 30 June 2000. The budget monitoring reports as at 30 June and 30
September were submitted to the relevant central committee and Policy and Resources
Committee. The report as at 31 January 2001 was circulated to all central committee
chairpersons and the Leader. The monthly reports were submitted/circulated to the
corporate management team.

What Was Prepared

The submission to central committees comprised a financial statement and variance
explanation schedule for the departments reporting to that committee. The submission to
Policy and Resources Committee comprised reports as outlined above from departments
reporting to Policy and Resources Committee together with an overall financial summary.
The submission to corporate management team comprised the overall financial summary.
The reports circulated to central committee chairpersons and Leader for 31 January
comprised the overall financial summary together with the financial statement and
variance explanation for the relevant committee.

What Did It Tell Us

The financial statement allows a comparison of budgetary performance to date and the
projected outturn or forecast position for the whole year. Details of actual and budget for
the year to date were given along with the resulting variance. Do we appear to be over or
under spent against budget for the year to date? For the whole year details of the
projected outturn or forecast and full year budget were given along with the resulting
variance. Do we look as if we will be over or under spent against budget for the full
financial year? The financial statement was prepared at what is known as objective head
level. Objective heads are the main service areas identified separately in the budget book



Page 38

of the Council. Primary Schools is an example of a service head within Education. An
example of a financial statement is attached.

The variance explanation provides explanations of certain variances shown on the
financial statement. Variance explanations are prepared by directors as their explanation
of the variances in their budget. Their purpose is to show where there is an over or under
spend, what has caused it, why it arose and the what is being done to overcome it. The
format of the variance explanation schedule requires the author to identify the monetary
amount of the variance for both year to date and projected outturn or forecast, where the
variance is ie which area of the budget, why the variance has arisen, what action is being
taken in respect of the variance and what the implications of that action will be. Details of
the impact on the following years budget were also requested to highlight ongoing
budgetary problems. An example of a variance explanation schedule is attached. A set of
criteria was set to identify when a variance required to be explained. The criteria were as
follows:

For the year to date —

One of the objectives in setting variance reporting thresholds was to avoid variance
explanation schedules become to bulky and to focus on key areas. On this basis attempts
were made to restrict variance explanation schedules to one side of A4. This was not
always possible given the extent of variances in some departments. A threshold for year
to date variance reporting was set at £100,000.

For the projected outturn —

Variances on objective/service heads of more than £50,000 over or under and also
variances of more than plus/minus 5% had to be reported. In practice departments tended
to report on all movements in projected outturn at a service/objective head level. The
£50,000 and objective/head were selected as the thresholds which required committee
approval for virement.

How Was It Done

A timetable for budget monitoring was prepared at the start of the financial year which
noted the key dates in the formal reporting process. The key stages in the process were.

Close of accounting period in the financial ledger,

Finance generate reports from financial ledger immediately following close of accounting
period ( DES generated thetr own reports),

Departments review actual, budget and projected expenditure,

Departments prepare budget journals to amend Forecast Budget in line with changes in
projected annual expenditure,

After deadline for completion of budget journals Finance generate reports in style of
financial statements referred to above,



Page 39

Departments then finalise variance explanation schedules based on financial statemenis
for submission to Finance,

Finance collated final printing of financial statements and variance explanations for
circulation.

A copy of the detailed monthly timetable is attached.

Who Does What

Finance was responsible for ensuring accounting period is closed in accordance with
timetable.

Finance generated financial ledger reports for the period end. (DES generated their own
reports).

Departments were responsible for reviewing these reports and making further enquiries to
allow them to understand their budgetary position at the period end. Then assessing the
impact of the year to date position on the projected expenditure for the full financial year
and also next financial year. Having identified changes to projected outturn departments
were then responsible for preparation of budget journals,

Finance was responsible for posting budget journals prepared by departments and then
generating the financial statement to allow departments to finalise variance explanations.

Departments were responsible for preparation of variance explanations.

Finance collated and circulated final reports to corporate management team and
committees.

Other Issues

Departments phased their budgets over each period in the financial year. The accuracy of
year to date actual to budget comparisons is directly affected by the accuracy of budget
phasing. If budget phasing is inaccurate it is difficult to differentiate between real
variances and those which are simply timing differences due to inaccurate budget
phasing. Inaccurate budget phasing can highlight variances that are timing differences
and not real expenditure pressures and also conceal real variances and expenditure
pressures. Procedures were available for departments to update/amend budget phasing
during the year,

Throughout the financial year reference was made in budget monitoring reports for
Education and Transportation and Property Services that improvements were required
before the budget monitoring reports for these departments could be fully supported.



Page 40

Education did not use the budget journal facility to reflect all the variances highlighted in
their variance explanation schedule. As a result the financial ledger position in terms of
projected outturn was often different from the variance explanations. One off adjustments
were made, by the Head of Accounting, to the face of the financial statement for
Education to ensure the financial statement agreed to the variance explanation schedule.

A report was approved by the corporate management team on 5 June 2000 highlighting a
number of improvements to budget monitoring procedures. For a variety of reasons these
were never fully implemented.

Future Developments

A project to achieve improvements in the budget monitoring procedures was approved by
the corporate management team on 2 July 2001. This project will see the creation of 5
mini projects to identify and implement improvements in budget monitoring within each
of the front line service departments and also central support services. The progress of
this project will be overseen by a steering group comprising the Chief Executive and
Director of Finance. An extract of the objectives and actions associated with this project
is attached.

Critical Areas

The accuracy and relevance of budget monitoring is largely dependent on the undernoted
elements :

Accuracy of budget setting ie budgets set in cost centres where actual expenditure is
incurred,

Accuracy of budget phasing so that real variances are flagged and time is not wasted
investigating timing differences caused by poor profiling,

Timely processing and recharging of transactions to avoid distorting the budget phasing,
An understanding of the operational aspects of the service/department,

Sufficient knowledge of the financial ledger and associated reporting tools and being able
to identify the information required to manage the budget and then being able to extract
it,

Driving budget monitoring down and through the service/department so that budget
holders at all levels are included in the process rather than a simple top down exercise.
The facility to model year to date costs to get accurate forecasts of projected outturns.
Adequate resources in the department to provide explanations of variances.

Budgets in the right place and accurately phased. Knowing what to look out for and
getting the right reports to the right budget holders. Budget holders investigating and
explaining variances. Being able to forecast projected outturn.



Page 41

Summary

The Audit Committee is concerned with the adequacy of the Council’s system of internal
controls. In terms of budget monitoring variances from budget arose at the end of the
financial year that had not been reflected through budget monitoring reports. In addition
budget monitoring reports for Education and Transportation and Property contained
comments to the effect that improvements in procedures were required in these
departments before the budget monitoring reports for these departments could be fully
supported. Given these circumstances it is evident there is room for improvement in this
element of the Council’s overall system of internal controls. This is acknowledged by the
action already taken in establishing a project under the direction of the Chief Executive
and Director of Finance to achieve improvements in budget monitoring. A successful
outcome to this project should secure an improvement in budget monitoring and the
system of internal controls.

11 July 2001



Page 42

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL
EDUCATION & FINANCE

REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING

1  INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

A revenue budget monitoring exercise as at 30 September 2000 has
been completed.

Attached to this report are a financial statement which compares the
year to date and projected outturn expenditure to budget for each
service objective head.

Also attached is a variance explanation schedule which details the
major variances arising, the reason for the variance, any action taken or
proposed and any impact on next years budget.

The overall projected outturn is in line with budget. Although there are
a number of expenditure pressures compensating savings have been
identified.

Following the Education Committee of 7 September 2000 it was
reported that mismatches existed between ledger codes used for budget
setting and recording actual expenditure and income and that work was
underway continuing to resolve the matter. Although progress has
been made on resolution of the mismatches work is not yet fully
complete. Work in both Education and Finance will continue in order
to ensure the revenue budget monitoring projections of Education can
be fully supported.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1

Bruce West

Note the revenue budget monitoring report and variance explanation.

Head of Accounting

27 July 2000

report/1novbwrevenuebudgetmonitoringeduc



£8 0B0D'9S %0 0 166 S 1B6'SS %014 616'C {52 62 BEE 9Z o P3 10} njjpuad 0
£8 021) %0 34 0 (£52) %0 0 0 0 3 Py ojie
(1] 0 %0 otl 0 Q) %0 0 ] 0 asn|d 0066 L0 p3 Jo uo
0 0 %t 0 0 0 %E4- (1a1) S8E‘t 895'1 odsue
(0s1) 0 %0 (o) 0 0il %G1- (se1) Hé 9v0't
0 0 %0 0 0 0 %0 (65¢) 0 65¢€ 00
0 ¥ %0 0 37 i %0% e ¥E Li
(qp) 0 09Z't %0 0 09Z't 09Z's Y%ll- (voi) £03 0L ol1eanp 9
<
O 0 58 %0 0 8 58 %EL} 8y 13 (s¥ o0 O uojeanp
(@))
o
(ad 0 959'E %~ {s£) L9t 959'c %82 ¥25 el 8ig's blieanp ad
. 0 £56'SZ %0 (8r} 506'6Z £56'S2 %Zi ESK'L 185°21 €EL'HL clyeanp puo
] vS¥'vZ %t~ {991) 88Z'vz ySy've %8B 950"} 1024} Svi‘ol 0 p3 Aewjid
0 0se %0 0 0S¢ 0%€ %SezZ 509 692 (9eg) Q p d-d.d
o Sty %0 0 Spy 444 %l (5) Ehe 186 cneininy g A6a SRIIVE
$0003 0003 % 0003 50007 S000F % $0003 30003 30003
Aalg w044 wnno dBA eoueEA jeBpng wingno F )Y asurpen jelpng jsmpRYy
QIUBLIBA snojaaly foiq . pajasfoiy jenuuy ddy pajaoford (117 QLA 1A alA
Hd NOLUSOd 1Y oL My A
TIINAOD
1000 s2quia)dag :popag oINgH

1481y

juawijredaq uoleanp3 - Arlewwing aAngalqo



Page 44

. "Paysijqelsa usym 123pnq 7002

. padreyoar 124

auou
-100z ut s8uifjiq jo Swiseyd isnfpy| jou scueuAuIRly % sueday [enua)di o 000°662
auou "Buifjiq femoe ul
SpUa1} JUSISUOD Yiim paudijear aq 0}
sey Suiseyd 1a8pnq os|y "s[enjoe sjep
‘poysiqeIsa uaym 1a8pnq zooz| © Te24 Butliolsip are s3ulfjiq s pue
-100z ut mw—::_c Jjo m:ﬁmsm ..m:.:u< jenudoe ha_o_._uuv_v Jo ecua\nmm UON 0 000°06€
| (108€3)
junowre Jejiwis e £q pasealaul
$1s00 7] pouad pue (0§E€7F) [eniode
£q paonpai are §3500 | pouad £qazaym
'spuan| ‘mays [joifed ui pual; Jo UNoddE e}
auou pousad o031 03 198pnq a1y sseyday| j0u op sarrejes aakoduwa 10§ sydpng]| o 000°08¢€
-asuded
JO JUSLIR[YRAS UOU O} INP JUIWI[d
auou paniooe ajep 0} 1eak Aejes DR LAV| 0 00096
"S13yorajpesy Aq paproap
‘paseqd pue pappelaq [jim ‘paunsul 2q 0) 124 ‘aimipuadxa
aq [[im 3say |, "painnbal (axmipuadxa| Inq pasiaoal 3wOdUT [BNIIY “S]OOYDS
auou pue awodul {joq) s)23png 10J 5201n0s31 - Jueld [puoNIppy| ¢ 000°9¢L
"128pnq ur pa10joej o4 Jsurede
000°0¥1_ [BIOE 94G°Z WA Aeg SI9YoBI | 000°0F] 000°0L
3 uondy jo poedury UINYE ], q 0) JO UIYE ], UOIJIY DUBLIEA 10§ SUOSEIY 3 3
)odpng s1ea UBLIBA | DUBLIBA
JX3N uo 132357 wmynQ ali
A1gpauopy pajaloag

jmauteda@  NOILLYONAY
0007 19qud)dag )& se 3je( 0) 1BIX Y} 10
suoneue[dxy adusLiE

Bulio)iuoy 1adpug INUIANY




Page 45

000°01

staquinu [idnd
u1 doip o} pajejai - satjddng eydeo 1ag

000°01

gl

000°20¢

aanwod o) papodal

Apsnoisaid 400‘693F Sapnjout sy
‘s1aquinu [idnd wi doip pajoadxaun
Isyun,] - satrejeg unyoea],

000°Z0¢

000°L1

Gl

(000°0$)

2oud J1Q [9n{ Ul asea1dU]

(000°0S)

vl

(000°€1€)

‘uoneredaid

198pnq jo swi Je pawINSSe UeY) J9MO]
SI 2Ieys S [IOUN0Y) Sy} pue paynqinsip
A[[nJ mou sI pun, 20U[[30XF]

341, [1ounoy) ay) 0} panqLsip

aq pjnom SIy) Jo areys e jey)

Joueul pue uoneonpyg £q pauinsse
sem j{ ‘pANQLISIpUN paulewsl

pun,j 20U3[[20XH Y} JO JUAWI[I UL
paiedaid sem a8pnq oy swin ay) Iy

(000°€1€)

el

auou

"PaAI2031 1a£ j0u s3ui)jiq
- VS woij sadreyd jo 3uiseyq

00021

cl

Auou

"PaAladal Jou sadreyd- syueln) 3unfo))
pue sauesing ‘sanioyiny Ioyio
0} sjuawifed ul aduala)Ip Juiseyd

000°18C

L

JUOu

pun. 3ous[[20xq ui spuads jo Buiseyd
-s[euajepy % ainjiuin, juawdinby

000°661

0l

auou

‘paystjqelsa uaym 123pnq 7007
-100Z 1 s3uljjiq jo 3usseyd 1snlpy

padieyoas
124 JOU dUBUIUIRIA] SPUNOID)

000°19

auou

"paysi|qeIsa uaym 123pnq 700T
-100¢ ut s3ulyjiq jo 3uiseyd ysnlpy

padaetjoai 124 jou 1oenuo)) Juirde)

000°L91

000°S¢

alodu] jueIf) § 314 Ul pasiApe YT
jo ommut “Buiseyd awodui ¢ 314

000°LTT




Page 46

0 0 0000L6'C
. " “pasuejeq .
3q {[im 1007/000T 10§ 123pnq
221A13S UOTIEINPS 31} “paluap 3q
uoddns [eulaxa Joyuny pjnoys jeij)
2InNsua 0} sainseawl Areuonneaard
uaye} sey uoneanpy Jo
1012311(] Y} ‘SSAPYLISAAN LAY} Aq
apew poddns jo 13330 oy yuswajdu
0} JAPIO Ul 2aPIWIOI Y} YIIm
Aemiapun [[1}s aJe SUOISSNOSIP }|nSal
e sy ‘podg 2 amyn)) uoneonpy
1oy aaniunuo)) Arejusureljied
ayy £q spew suonsa3ans
0] asuodsal ul S{oot3s ISO[d 0} Jou
(000°sL1) POPId9p 22YIIUIOD UOKEINPI Y| 5100405 Arewd Jo 21n50|) UON|(000'SL1) I
(000'ssT) . ,
"HONB[JUI 2A0QE SIS0
yenuoy yodsued], [idng up aseasougl(000‘ss1)  {(000°LL) [zz
000°01
uonoR AYINS
0} anp sauiejes )@ dV Ul s3ulAeS| 000°0] iz
000°0S jidnd uy sa3ueyd ULIS) HOYS [BNUISSI
SWOIIIA0 O} S|OOYDS 0} papiacid
duyyjeys Bulyoea |, Ul UONONPAY} 00008 0z
(000°08) "uOIINISU0O 123png Jo
U1} JB 22]AIIS UOKBONDS] O PAstAPE
JoU sem SIY | "SI01AJ9S [RIDISWIUIND
4q pausterd adseyo [euonIPPY |(000°08) 8l
000°9C1 -a3ewep pue
$3SSO[ J2A0D 0] Pajedo|je e Asay |
'$)23pnq poddng [ooyog ut uononpay| 0009z | 8}
000°001
. $128pnq sanyddng jooyag ut uondnpay| 000001 n




Lo/20/2t

Jequia)dag BIGEIIEAY PAUULUOD JBA JOU SPIEMUO (O0Z Jaquasaq woy sbunaapy aapuwog 1oy sejeq

1snbny ajqepieay "yauAs Jo o sBupeaws Agybiupoy saysnd 00/01/91 U0 ABPIIOH "Pauljued 194 10U 00/ L/90 uo Bunesyy wes) Juaweabeuep

Page 47

€ 9ION
I ®10N

Guuoyuop Jebpng

00-98Q-20 00-d9S-20 aanIWWon S801N0s8Y pue Adijod
00-AON-22 00-bnv-g2 Sa|ILILIOY) S30IN0SaY
pue Aojjod o} siaded |eui
00-ACN-EZ 00-bny-v2 991IWILLIOYD SadIN0SDY
» Koljod 1oy Bunesw Buysug
0C-AON-91 OOWm:(-N_. SOHBPIILIOD) BIIAIDE
00-AON-G 00-6nv-91 Buneew buiang eapuUwWo)
M % J 40} Apeal siaded yeiq
00-67v-20 SOAPILIGT
eoneg 10y siaded jeury
T RN . Buijang JapeaT [1Duna)
10-1dy-20 [ L0-eN-G0 | 10-G94-G0 | LO-UBr-80 | 00-AON-0Z | 00-AON-80 | 0019020 | 00-Bhv-8Z | 00-INM-LE Buijao Wwea) juawabeuep
L0-"en-0€| 10-7BN-20 | 18-093-20 | 1G-Uer-G0 | 00-AON-1 | 0G-AON-£0 | 00-des-62 | 00-Bnv-6z | 60-Inr-82 Buyjaug ajueuiy Jo Jojsalq
. 00190-62 - 00-Inr-92 S99ILIOD BJIAIRS
10} sbuneapy Buyeug sapLwILIO)
o} Apeel sladedq yeiq
sidep |1y (shep 0z +)
saAjeleu Aiojeueidxa asoueuea
L0-1eW-/Z | 10-994-GZ | 10-UBer-5Z | 00-990-62 | 00-AON-€Z | 00490-¥2 {00-des-gZ | 00-Bny-+Z | 00-IPr-G2 nwgns o} sjdep Joj ajep jeuld
sideq v (sAep 61 +) 8|2BIQ
L0-1en-9Z | 10-994-+2 | L0-Uer-pZ | 00-080-8Z | 00-AON-2Z | 00-190-€2 {00-des-22| 00-Bny-¢2 | 00-INr-ve woi4 e|qejiery spoday  |euld
L0~1eN-€2 | 10-8d-€Z | L0-uer-eZ [00-98Q-£Z | 00-AON-LZ | 00-100-0Z |00-des-92| 00-bny-gz | 00-nr-ig SjuBUNCIDY (sAep g| +) sjewnol
yobpng Hunsod loy ajep |euld
10~1BN-ZZ | 10-G9:4-22 | LO-uer-ZZ |00-9ea-22 | 00-AaN-0Z | 00-190-64 [00-des-1Z| 00-Bnv-1Z | 00-nr-02 sidep iy (shep 21 +) sjeusnol
1ebpng j0 Indul 1o} ajep |eul4
s)dap || saAnesleu Aiojeue|dxa
souenea esedaud pue sjewnof
1abpnq indul sjusuedaq
L0-1eN-90 | 1L0-g84-90 | 1 0-uer-80 [00-98Q-90 | 00-AON-90 | 00-120-G0 [ 00-d9S-90 | 00-bny-vQ | 00-INM-90 sidep |1y (Aep | +) appes0
wou B|qejleAy  spodsy eyl
L0-JeN-S0 | 10-G84-GO | LO-uer-G0 {60-99A-G0 | 00-AON-€0 | 00-1°0-+0 |{00-des-G0| 00-Bry-g0 | 00-INP-GO | Buepepep Aeunpy UMOPasOI] poliad
Kieniqay | Aenuer |Jaquiadaq |lequiaaoN]| J4oqoip0  |Jequsydag | ysnbny ~ Ainp aunp Alqisuodsay
TIDON10D
oNH4s ® a1y 1
=\nm‘~< 1L002/000Z Buliojuo png anuaaay yeiq




Page 48



Page 49 Agenda Item 4c

ARGYLL AND BUTE COUNCIL

FINANCE

IMPROVING BUDGET MONITORING

6. SUMMARY

The Council will require improvements to its arrangements for budget monitoring
following the over expenditure on Education and Transport and Property
Services in 2000/2001. Adverse comments by the external auditors is also
anticipated. The Council should take action now in order to achieve the
improvements in budget monitoring

This report outlines proposals to establish 5 projects to identify and implement
improvements in budget monitoring under the direction of a steering group.
Additional resources of £43,000 are required.

7. RECOMMENDATIONS

Management Team approve the approach outlined in this report for achieving
improvements in budget monitoring.

Management Team approve a virement of budget to this project of £43,000.

Each director commits to ensure that staff within their department co-operate fully
with requests from the project teams given the high corporate priority attached to
this task.

A steering group comprising the Chief Executive and Director of Finance be
established to direct the 5 projects.

3. DETAIL

3.1 Background

During 2000/2001 financial year expenditure on Education and Transportation
and Property Service exceeded budget. The extent of the excess was not
forecast through budget monitoring. It is anticipated that the Council will be
severely criticised by the external auditors given the extent of the over
expenditure. The auditors will probably make recommendations on areas that



Page 50

require improvement. It is also anticipated that Audit Scotland will pursue with the
Council the reasons for the over expenditures together with requests for details
of why they arose and action taken by the Council.

The external auditors drew attention to a number of issues related to budget
monitoring in their final report to members for 1999/2000.

3.2 Proposal

It will be in the Councils best interests if it is seen to take action first in securing
improvements in budget monitoring.

The robustness of future budget preparation exercises will be improved if there is accurate
budgeting at a cost centre basis. Decisions will be taken based on more reliable information from
the bottom up.

Accurate budgeting and effective budget monitoring down to a cost centre level will a key point
under PMP audits.

The overall objectives of this are as follows:

e accurate budgets set at a cost centre level that match actual expenditure incurred,

e a framework of reporting in place that demonstrates from cost centre through to overall
councit wide summary the variances from budget, why they have arisen, the corrective action
to be taken, the impact of this action and the impact on future years,

e budget holders at all levels should be able to demonstrate their accountability for the budgets
under their management.

To achieve these objectives requires a number of actions:

map actual expenditure 2000/2001 and budget for 2001/2002,

re align budgets for 2001/2002 in line with incidence of actual expenditure 2000/2001,

review and where necessary adjust phasing of 2001/2002 budgets,

identify who the budget holders are for each cost centre,

identify the reporting hierarchy for each department from budget holder to director,

identify the information/reporting needs for each tier in the reporting

structure/hierarchy,

set up reports to meet reporting/information needs,

e develop a process in each department which ensures budget holders at all levels are
provided with a copy of the required reports each month and demonstrates budgets have
been reviewed,
prepare threshokis for each department for budget holders to explain variances,
develop a process for budget holders being advised of variances that require explanation and
reporting back explanations,

« develop a process for budget holders feeding back to centre amendments to budget and
forecast,

« develop procedures to ensure changes in costs are forecast into the ledger,
ascertain extent of use of other information and systems {not the general ledger) during
budget monitoring, evaluate this, identify areas for improvement.and prepare draft
improvement pian, .

+ assist in implementation of agreed improvement plan for other information and systems,
consider where models can be developed to aid in forecasting outtumn thereby improving
projections of full year expenditure and income and prepare proposals,
develop agreed proposal on forecasting models,
review use of account codes,



Page 51

+ identify any training requirements with a draft programme to deliver training,

In carrying out the above there will be a requirement to :

* review and improve the arrangement for accounting for additional grant funding especially
within Education
prepare procedures to ensure month end clearance of roads and property recharges,

e review of budget and actual reconciliations in DMR and roads costing systems.

The following recommendations made by the external auditors in their 1999/2000
final report to members will also need to be addressed (to the extent not covered
above):

s ‘“management should continue to monitor the Council's achievement of its budgetary targets
for the 2000/2001 financial year,

s+ management should consider improvements to budget phasing for all areas of income and
expenditure,

s management should implement budget reporting variance analysis at a service level for cost
inputs, members and management should consider requesting a reguiar monitoring report
from each of the service departments reporting their progress in implementing savings
targets.”

Services will require to restate their budgets as part of this exercise. To fully achieve the
objectives set out services should be aliowed freedom to move budget between services in a
department and between account codes and increase income and expenditure providing there is
no change to the overall departmental net expenditure.

3.3  Project Management

It is proposed to achieve the required actions by setting up 5 separate projects. One project each
for Education, Transport and Property, Development and Environment and Housing and Social
Work with a further project for Central Support Services. A small project team would be allocated
to each project with 2 project ieader nominated.

The undemnoted ailocation of projects and staff is proposed:

Department Project Leader Project Staff

Education R McMillan, Finance
J Denny, Education,
R Turner, Education,
S MclLindon, Education

Transport & Property A Goard, Finance D Sullivan, Finance
. E McNair, Finance
A Brough, TPS
N Ross, TPS
Development & Environment | P Cupples, Finance B Sidaway, Finance

F Walker, Finance
| McDonald, DES

Housing & Social Work M Cupples/M Moncur, HSW | A Boiwell, Finance

Central Support Services A Brown, Finance
Staff in central depts

Project leaders have still to be identified for Education and Central Support Services.

An overali responsibility for all 5 projects would rest with Bruce West, Head of Accounting.




Page 52

Given the high profile attracted by the 2000/2001 outturn and the likely further interest of external
auditors and Audit Scottand a steering group should be set up to monitor overall progress on the
5 projects. It is recommended that membership of this group comprise the Chief Executive and
Director of Finance. Progress reports would be made to the group based on milestones per the
agreed action pian for each project. Reports would aiso be submitted to the steering group
summarising the impact of progress on the genera! ledger eg cost centres with actual but no
budget, variances greater than say £25,000, year to date variances not reflected in forecast etc.
The first task for each project would be to scope the overall requirements and prepare an action
plan for approval by the steering group.

To introduce an element of quality control it is proposed to engage a firm of accountants to review
the overall methodology and approach, project action plans, some progress reports and final
outcomes. The purpose of this review would be to obtain a form of independent accreditation for
the improvements.

Completing this review and improving budget monitoring will be a high corporate priority for the
Council. The involvement of the Head of Accounting in this exercise will have consequences
upon the timescate for completing the outposting of accounting staff.

3.4 Timescaie

It is not possible to give a timescale now for this exercise. Each department is at a different stage.
As a general comment Housing and Social Work probably require least input to achieve the
necessary improvement and Central Support Services being smaller departments are alsc
probably closer to the finishing line. Significant input is required in the other departments. Whilst
improvements will certainly be in place by September it is not clear how far to completion the
overall exercise will be at that time. A better indication of this will be available once action plans
have been prepared.

3.5 Resources

This exercise cannot be completed within existing resources. It will require the extension of
contracts for 2 temporary accountants initially to 30September. A project leader for Education is
also required to 30 September. The additional cost of temporary accountants to 30 September is
£26,000 The cost of a project leader for Education is estimated at £12,000.

An allowance of £5,000 should be allowed for the quality controi review.
Bruce West

Head Of Accounting
26 June 2001



= Pg\eéé’oums Agenda b5

110 GEORGE STREET EDINBURGH EH2 4LH
TO0131 477 1234 F 0131 477 4567
www.audil-scotiand.gov.uk

Mr James A McLellan 30 March 2001
Chief Executive
Argyll & Bute Council o “
Headquarters R
KILMORY

LOCHGILPHEAD B\ ¥ ,
PA31 8RT . | NN )\(g

Dear Mr McLellan
Overview Report 1999/2000

The Commission recently considered an overview report by the Controller of Audit on issues arising
from the audit of local authority accounts for 1999/2000. The Commission requests the Controller of
Audit to provide such a report each year in order to review the significant issues which arise. I have
pleasure in enclosing the Controller of Audit’s report which has been printed together with the
Commission's findings and an executive summary. As the document takes the form of a formal
statutory report sufficient copies for you to send one to each member of your Council are being sent to
you. We will publish the document.on.4 Apfil: .. ™ =

I would like to take this opportunity of complimenting councils on the timeous completion of their
accounts and on the improvements which are identified in the report. Unfortunately, I must also draw
attention to the general conclusion that there are councils in which basic financial controls still show
weaknesses. I would simply wish to reiterate the Commission’s encouragement to those councils to
apply the necessary time and resources to putting these very basic requirements in place.

Yours sincerely

N0y

Y

Professor J P Percy
Chairman

ACCOUNTS COMMISSION

_\ AUDIT SCOTLAND PROVIDES SERVIGCES FOR
AUDITOR GENERAL



Page 54



Pag@QCCOUNTS COMMISSION
55 L

" OVERVIEW REPORT

. Overview of the 1999/2000 '

Local Authority Audits

Controller of Audit’s statutory report and
Accounts Commission’s findings




Contents

Accounts Commission’s findings

Executive surmmary

Controlier of Audit's report

introduction

Part 1: Annual results and trends
Completion of accounts and audits

Corporate governance/financial
controls

Financial position
DLO/DSO performance
Housing/coundil tax benefits

Financial relationships with external
parties

Audit follow-up
Part 2: Matters arising during the year
Statutory reports
Year 2000 compliance
General accounting issues

Matters arising at individual councils

Specific value for money findings

Best Value

Performance indicators

Page 56

The Accounts Commission

The Accounts Commissian is a statutory, ndependent body, which through the audit
process, assists lacal authortties in Scotland to achieve the highest standards of
financial stewardship and the economic, efficient and effective use of their
resources. The Commission has five main responsibilities:
securing the external audit
following up issues of concern identified through the audit, to ensure satisfactory
resolutions
reviewing the management arrangements which audited bodies have in place to
achieve value for money
carrying out nat:onat value for money studies to improve economy, effiency and
cffectiveness in local government
issuing an annual direction to ocal authorities which sets out the range of
performance information which they are required to publish.

The Commission secures the audit of 32 councils and 34 joint boards {including police
and fire services). Local authorsties spend over £9 billion of public funds a year.

Audit Scotland

Audit Scotland is a statutory body set up in April 2000 under the Public Finance and
Accountability (Scotland) Act 2000. it provides services to the Accounts Commission
and the Auditor Genera! for Scotland. Together they ensure that the Scottish
Executive and public sector bodies in Scottand are held to account for the proper,
efficient and effective use of public funds.

About this publication

This publication contains the Controlier of Audit’s overview report on the 1939/2000
local authority audits. The report is preceded by an executive summary.

The Accounts Commission has considered the Controller's report and its findings are
set out on page 1.




Page 57

Accounts Commission’s findings

Completion of accounts and audits

The Commission welcomes the submission for audit of the annual accounts
of ail Scottish councils by the due date. This is the first time this has been
achieved since the deadline for the submission of accounts was brought
forward to 30 June and the Commission recognises the significant
achievement of the local authorities. The Commission also welcomes the
earlier compietion of audits but continues to be concerned that not all audits
were completed by the deadline which the Commission set. Timeous
reporting and audit completion are significant elements in the public
accountability regime for local government and the Commission will
continue to press for earlier completion of audits.

Governance

Continuing weaknesses in basic accounting controls in some councils are a
matter of serious concern to the Commission. The Commission commented
on this matter in its findings on the overview report for 1998/99. It is
disturbing to find that such weaknesses are still apparent four years from the
establishment of the new unitary councils. The Commission urges those
councils where these issues have arisen to ensure that adequate resources are
applied to solving these problems. Progress wili continue to be monitored
through the audit process.

The Commission notes with concern that levels of detected fraud in housing
and council tax benefits have again increased. The Commission accepts that
this is a complex area but encourages the implementation of the Verification
Framework and attention to internal control weaknesses in benefit-related
systems.

Financial position

The Commission notes the Controller of Audit’s comments on the financial
position of local authorities, including the reserves held by councils and the
funding of capital expenditure from current revenue. These provide a useful
indication of the overall stewardship of public funds at a strategic level and
the Commission endorses the Controller’s view that auditors should give
consideration to such matters as part of their assurance that council
expenditure is soundly based.

DLOs/DSOs
The Commission welcomes the further improvement in the performance of
councils’ direct labour and direct service organisations.

werd
Ciem

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits




Page 58

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits




Page 59

| Executive summary

introduction

1 This statutory report is prepared under section 102(1) of the Local
Government (Scotland) Act 1973 to advise the Accounts Commission of the
main issues arising from the 1999/2000 local authority audits. It is also made
available to all local authorities to enable them to assess their progress in key
areas of financial stewardship and performance. The report draws on reports
prepared by appointed auditors at the conclusion of their audits and agreed
with individual local authorities. It focuses on the 32 main council audits and
also covers the 34 ‘other’ local authority bodies (including police and fire
services) in place in 1999/2000.

. 2 Thereport is in two parts. The first relates to matters of a recurrent nature
and shows the broad results and trends for local authorities in Scotland as a
whole. The second part relates to matters arising primarily during 1999/2000,
either at individual councils or more widely.

Part 1: Annual results and trends
Completion of accounts and audits

3 All 32 councils submitted their 1999/2000 accounts for audit by the statutory
date of 30 June. This is the first time that all accounts have been completed by
that date and represents a commendable achievement by councils. The
deadline for completion of 1999/2000 audits was brought forward by two
months to 30 September by when 20 audits had been completed. This also
represents significant progress over earlier years though there is clearly scope
for further improvement.

4 Of the 1999/2000 audits completed at the date of the overview report the
. accounts of three councils were qualified in respect of four matters. This
represents a notable reduction compared with previous years (1998/99: nine
accounts qualified in respect of 15 matters; 1997/98: 21 accounts qualified in
respect of 27 matters). Of the 34 ‘other’ local authority bodies’ audits
completed, none contains qualifications. :

Corporate governancel/financial controls
5  Corporate governance has been defined as the system by which organisations
are directed and controlled.

6 Compared with the position in other sectors (such as the NHS), progress in
developing corporate governance arrangements in local authorities has been
relatively siow. However, appointed auditors have reported that most councils
in Scotland are now taking steps to assess and develop their corporate
governance arrangements.

Overview of the 1995/2000 Local Authority Audits 3



Page 60

7  The Accounts Commission has endorsed the audit committee concept as an
integral component of good corporate governance. While it is for each local
authority to determine arrangements appropriate to its particular
circumstances, the adoption and implementation of audit committee
principles is regarded by the Commission as an important step in raising the
standard of corporate governance in local government.

8  Overall, there is encouraging evidence from appointed auditors’ 1999/2000
.reports of an increasing move in councils towards setting up an audit
committee or similar mechanism. One of the most important roles under
these arrangements is to review internal and external audit reports and to
monitor the implementation of their recommendations.

9  Similarly, following criticism in previous years’ overview reports, there is
evidence from appointed auditors’ 1999/2000 reports of improvement in
councils’ internal audit arrangements. But, given councils’ increasing reliance
on information technology, there is a need for more specialist computer audit
expertise to be available to internal audit.

10 While progress is being achieved on governance arrangements, there is
evidence of continuing weaknesses in basic accounting controls including
instances of no regular and timely accounting reconciliations. This and other
instances of weaknesses in internal control have been a recurring theme in the
four years since local government reorganisation. Sound financial procedures
and effective controls are essential and, without them, councils cannot know
if their financial procedures have been compromised, exposing them to
unacceptable risk.

Financial position -

11  Many councils utilised part of the balances they had built up in previous years
to support 1999/2000 service expenditure but, overall, the total level of
balances across councils was similar to 1998/99. At 31 March 2000, the total
net value of General Fund balances across councils was £177 million (2.7% of
net expenditure) and the total value of Housing Revenue Account balances
was £113 million (9.7% of gross expenditure). Other funds amounted to £264
million but, within this total, there is a wide variation in the amounts held by
individual councils.

12 General capital expenditure (excluding council housing)} across councils in
1999/2000 was £611 million of which £97 million (16%) was financed from
current revenue. For the Housing Revenue Account, capital expenditure in
1999/2000 totalled £344 million of which £104 million (30%) was financed
from current revenue. Within these overall figures, there is wide variation in
the extent to which councils finance capital expenditure from current revenue.

13 ~ The statutory basis and purpose of reserves is not always clear and there is
wide variation in the amounts held. There is also significant variation in the
extent to which capital expenditure is financed from current revenue. These
are areas which may warrant closer review by councils and their appointed

auditors in future years.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 61

DLO/DSO performance

14 Following financial problems in earlier years, the performance of councils’
Direct Labour and Direct Service Organisations (DLOs and DSOs) showed
further improvement in 1999/2000. For 21 councils, all DLOs/DSOs achieved
the statutory break-even target and, overall, break-even was achieved at 94%
of DLOs/DSOs operating in 1999/2000. However, there appears still to be
scope for further improvement in the quality of financial and other
performance information provided to councillors who have responsibilities
for DLOs/DSO:s.

15 More generally, there are early indications that new methods and structures
being developed under Best Value initiatives may not fit easily with the
ongoing statutory requirements of the compulsory competitive tendering
(CCT) regime. Future audit work may help to identify the extent to which this
may be an issue across councils.

. Housingfcouncil tax benefits

16  Councils are responsible for administering some £1.4 billion of housing and
council tax benefits and receive reimbursement from the Department of
Social Security through an annual claim for subsidy based on the amount of
benefit granted. The benefits legislation is complex and subject to frequent
modification. There is also evidence of a rising trend of fraud related
overpayments. There is a requirement, therefore, for councils to review their
procedures regularly in order to support the administration of benefits and
minimise the risk of fraud. Given the sums involved, the inherent risks and
the problems experienced, it is anticipated that this area will continue to
feature significantly in appointed auditors’ work programmes for 2000/01.

Financial relationships with external parties

17 The Code of Guidance on Funding External Bodies and Following the Public
Pound, developed jointly by the Accounts Commission and the Convention of
Scottish Local Authorities (CoSLA), sets out the principles of best practice for
councils in establishing relationships with companies, trusts and other bodies
where there is substantial local authority funding. Appointed auditors have
reported that there is a need for councils to ensure closer cornpliance with the

. Code’s requirements.

Audit follow-up

18 The appointed auditors are required to produce reports on their findings.
Where action is needed they agree action plans with the local authority which
specify the action required, where responsibility for action rests and a
timetable for implementation. Action plans are monitored and followed-up
by the appointed auditors to ensure that recommendations are implemented
within agreed timescales. Individual matters may be pursued by Audit
Scotland (on behalf of the Controller of Audit) and, in certain circumstances,
the Controller may use his formal powers to report to the Accounts
Commission.

19  The various measures available in terms of follow-up of audit findings

provide a flexible framework for action in relation to the annual audit,
stewardship of funds and governance matters.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



- Page 62

Part 2: Matters arising during the year
Statutory reports

20 During 2000, the Controller of Audit prepared five statutory reports for
consideration by the Accounts Commission. Two of these related to
significant weaknesses in accounting procedures and financial administration
at Inverclyde Council. Having considered the reports, the Commission held a
public hearing at the Council’s offices in August 2000 where evidence was
taken from the Leader of the Council and senior officers. The Commission
requested a further report on the extent to which the Council had
implemented appropriate remedial action by 31 December 2000. This report
was submitted to the Commission in February 2001 and is currently under
consideration. The Controller’s report on Dumfries and Galloway Council
concerned contracts for the provision of residential care for older people in
homes which were owned and formerly run by the Council. The
Commission acknowiedged the innovative nature of the arrangement and
that, in the event, the transition had been achieved successfully. But it
stressed the need for all councils to ensure that options and risks are properly
assessed, that appropriate governance arrangements are in place and that
consistent and full information is provided 1o councillors when considering
changes to the method of service delivery.

General accounting issues

21 Asin previous years, appointed auditors continued to comment adversely on
some councils’ progress in complying fully with the capital accounting
requirements. The main focus of attention i 1999/2000 was the failure by
several councils to undertake a full revaluation of assets within the five year
timescale specified by the Accounting Code of Practice (ACOP). In most
cases this did not impact on the auditors’ opinion on the accounts but the
1999/2000 accounts of Clackmannanshire Council were qualified in this
regard. In addition some appointed auditors continue to report weaknesses in
procedures for maintaining asset registers.

22 The Accounting Code of Practice also specifies the nature of the information
which local authorities need to disclose in their accounts in relation to
pensions costs. In general, appointed aunditors have reported that few local
authorities complied fully with these requirements in 1999/2000. But
appointed auditors have indicated that authorities are seeking actuarial advice
to ensure that the disclosure requiremnents are met. Appointed auditors have
reported a particular issue concerning the firefighters’ pension scheme, an
unfunded ‘pay as you go’ scheme. A large number of firefighters who joined
the service in 1974 will be eligible for retirement in 2004, which may place
additional pressure on the resources of fire authorities.

Matters arising at individual councils

23 At Fife Council a failure to reconcile information held on the valuation roil
and in the non-domestic rates system led to an error and consequently a delay
in receipt of central government grant which cost the Council around
£1 million in interest. This illustrates the real dangers to councils of not
conducting accurate and regular accounting reconciliations.

Qverview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



24

Page 63

West Dunbartonshire Council identified £509,000 of non-recoverable housing
benefit overpayments resulting from problems experienced in introducing a
new computer system. This highlights for councils the importance of
appropriate monitoring and control arrangements during the implementation
phase of new computer systems, particularly in areas such as benefit payments
where problems can have financial consequences.

Specific value for money findings

25

26

27

28

The Accounts Commission approves an annual programme of value for
money studies undertaken centrally by Audit Scottand. This work may
cuiminate in the publication of national reports, management papers and
management handbooks. Councils are expected to use these to challenge
their current levels of performance and take action to achieve the standards of
the best.

Exhibit 1 summarises the value for money reports published by the Accounts
Commission relating to study work undertaken during 1999/2000.

{ Exhibit 1: Reports published on 1999/2000 study topics

Study topics Publication date

Benchmarking refuse collection: a review of councils’ April 2000
rafuse collection services

Safe and sound: a study of cornmunity safety May 2000
partnerships in Scotiand

Managing rent arrears: getting the balance right June 2000

The refuse collection study found that there have been substantial
productivity improvements in councils’ refuse collection services since the
Commission’s last review in 1990. The cost of refuse collection has risen from
£90 million in 1990 to £98 million in 1998799, a 9% increase, which is less
than the rate of inflation. Over the same period, the tonnage of refuse
collected increased by 14%, the number of employees fell by 44% from 4,800
to 2,700 and the number of vehicles fell by 25%.

The report concluded that councils will have to give waste management a
higher priority if they are to meet government recycling and landfill targets, as
set out in the National Waste Strategy. This will involve them developing an
effective waste management strategy, in partnership with other councils and
agencies, and allocating sufficient funding to support expensive but
environmentally desirable, collection and recycling activities.

The study into community safety partnerships found that multi-agency
partnerships led by councils and involving many different organisations, such
as police and fire services, health boards and hospital trusts, have been set up
across Scotland to tackle jointly problems such as anti-social behaviour,
domestic violence, crime and reducing accidents and injuries.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 64

30 A joint study between the Accounts Commission and Scottish Homes
provided a snapshot of the extent to which all councils and a representative
sample of Registered Social Landlords (RSLs) were implementing good
practice in managing rent arrears. Overall the RSLs sampled performed
better, by meeting more of the good practice standards than councils. This
helped RSLs to achieve lower levels of rent arrears.

31 The report concluded that the £44 million rent arrears bill in Scotland could
be reduced by as much as £8 million if councils and RSLs adopted better
management practices to prevent and recover rent arrears. Councils could
reduce their arrears from £37 million to £31 million and RSLs from around
£7 million to £5 million. .

Best Value

32 Appointed auditors have the task of assessing the progress made by each
council in terms of meeting the expectations set out in the Performance
Management and Planning (PMP) framework. The PMP audit assesses a
council’s approach to Best Value under ten criteria related to the four key
questions identified by the Best Value Task-Force.

33 For 1999/2000 each council selected three services for review. Appointed
auditors validated the self-assessments and agreed with each council what
improvements would be made to the PMP framework in each of the selected
services. The Accounts Commission published a progress report in October
2000 (*Making Progress with Best Value') which provided a snapshot of
councils’ performance management and planning arrangements, based on the
PMP audit.

34 Despite the overall positive picture, there were three aspects of performance
management and planning where many councils were making limited
progress:

» identifying the costs and benefits of different options for service delivery,
and evaluating the current service against these

s linking budgets and other resources to key service priorities

a reporting a full and accurate picture of service performance to decision-
makers.

35 Best Value also requires councils, over a five-year period, to subject all of their
activities to a rigorous review that incorporates the ‘4Cs’ — challenge,
compare, consult, compete. This process will help councils to be sure that
they are doing the right things and achieving Best Value. About a quarter of
councils had made little progress with their programme of Best Value reviews
at the time of the audit. In a small number of councils, it also appeared that
services were waiting until a Best Value review was undertaken before effort
was put in to achieving continuous improvement.

Overview of the 199972000 Local Authority Audits



Page 65

Performance indicators

36

37

In 1999/2000 councils, fire brigades and police forces, were required to report
their service standards against 72 statutory performance indicators (PIs).
These indicators cover a wide range of services and highlight both the
variation in performance between councils and change in performance over
time. National reports were published in January and February 2001.

Over the last year, Audit Scotland has worked to improve the usefulness of the
indicators by ensuring that they focus on outputs wherever possible, that they
reflect national rather than local targets (which are better reflected in local
performance reporting), and that they are easily interpreted. Councils
welcomed these developments in their responses to the Commission’s annual
consultation.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

9



Page 66

Controller of Audit's report _ |

Introduction

1.1 -The Accounts Commission is responsible for securing the audit of Scottish
local authorities. This involves it in appointing auditors to conduct the audit
of councils and ‘other’ local authority bodies (inctuding police and fire
services), either from commercial accounting firms or from its own staff
(who transferred to Audit Scotland on 1 April 2000). Issues arising from the
audits are reported by the appointed auditors to the Controller of Audit who,
in turn, reports to the Commission. The Commission also promotes value for
money and is responsible for ensuring the annual publication of performance
information about councils.

1.2 Under section 102(1) of the Local Government {Scotland) Act 1973, the
Commission can require the Controller of Audit to report on matters arising
from local authority audits. This report has been prepared in response to a
request from the Commission under that section of the Act. It covers the
1999/2000 financial year and has been prepared principally from information
contained in reports prepared by appointed auditors at the conclusion of
their audits and agreed with individual local authorities. Where appropriate [
have supplemented this with other relevant, contextual information. A
number of issues from the appointed auditors’ reports are being pursued with
individual local authorities as part of the on-going follow up work
undertaken by Audit Scotland.

1.3 In 1999/2000, there were 66 local authority audits in Scotiand: 32 councils
and 34 ‘other’ local authority bodies. At the date of this report (28 February
2001} 29 of the 32 councils and 20 of the 34 other bodies’ audits have been
reported by their appointed auditors. The outstanding council audits are East
Renfrewshire, City of Edinburgh and Inverclyde. The East Renfrewshire and
City of Edinburgh audits are effectively complete; the Inverclyde audit for
1999/2000 has been delayed because of problems in previous years’ audits. In .
preparing this report I have taken account of any material items relating to
these outstanding audits which have been drawn to my attention by the
appointed auditors. When these audits are completed, the appointed auditors
will report to the individual local authorities and to me.

1.4 This report therefore covers all the significant issues arising out of the
1999/2000 local authority audits. While focusing on the 32 main council
_ audits, references to specific topics affecting the ‘other’ local authority bodies
are included where appropriate.

1.5 This report is in two parts. The first part relates to matters of essentially a
recurrent nature and shows, through the annual audit findings, the broader
results and trends for local authorities in Scotland as a whole. The second
part relates to matters arising primarily during 1999/2000, either at individual
local authorities or more widely.

10 Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 67

| Part 1: Annual results and trends |

This part covers:

» Completion of accounts and audits

» Corporate governance/financial controls

» Financial position

s DLO/DSQ performance

= Housing/council tax benefits

e Financial relationships with external parties
s Audit follow-up

2 Completion of accounts and audits
' 2.1 The Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 1985, as amended,
require local authorities to submit their annual accounts for audit by 30 June
in the next financial year. All 32 councils in Scotland achieved the statutory
deadline. This represents a further improvement over earlier years, as shown
in Exhibit 1.

Exhibit 1: Date by which councils’ accounts were available for audit

Cumulative totals
Date - 199972000 1998/99 1997/98
30 June (statutory date) 32 29 23
31 July 30 25
31 August 32 29
30 September ' 32

. L !

2.2 Under their terms of appointment, auditors were required to complete the
1999/2000 audits by 30 September 2000. Exhibit 2 shows the dates by which
the 1999/2000 accounts were signed off by auditors and compares the
position with previous years.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits 1"



12

Page 68

| Exhibit 2: Date by which audit certificates were signed 1997/98 - 1999/2000

B 1997/98 = 1938/99 m 19992000

25

20
2
5 15 /
3
3 /
£ 10 i
S /

0

uly Aug Sep QOct Nev Dec Jan  Feb Mar Aprand after

2.3 The sign-off date is important because it signals the completion of the audit
of the accounts. Twenty accounts (63%) were signed off by 30 September
2000. Having received the appointed auditor’s certificate, councils can
proceed to publish their audited accounts, thereby reporting to their taxpayers
on financial stewardship and performance. Exhibit 3 shows the dates on
which audited accounts were submitted by the appointed auditors to the

Controller of Audit.
Exhibit 3: Submission of audited accounts te the Controller of Audit 1997/98 -
| 1999/2000
o
= 1997/98 - 1998/95 m 1995/2000
25
20 /
) {
£
IRE /
g !
2 /
E 10 I
=
g {
<

Juy Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Aprand after

2.4 The dates for the submission of audited accounts confirm that performance
in 1999/2000 was better than previous years. However, Exhibits 2 and 3
indicate that, on average, there was a delay of about one month between sign-
off by the appointed auditors and the date on which the accounts were
submitted to the Controller of Audit. This appears to be due in part to the
time taken by councils to produce the final version of the accounts. In some
cases, councils’ published annual reports may follow even later.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



2.5

2.6

Page 69

The deadlines for the completion of accounts and audits are challenging. The
performance of councils in completing their accounts by the statutory date
was commendable. Overall, the performance of appointed auditors in
completing audits represents a significant improvement over previous years,
but there is clearly scope for further improvement. Exhibit 4 sets out the
action needed by councils and appointed auditors to build upon the progress
achieved in 1999/2000.

| Exhibit 4: Action required to achieve audit deadiines

There is a need for councils to:

m ensure that the accounts presented for audit, including ali disclosure notes, comply
fully with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting {(ACOP)

® ansure that working papers in support of the accounts are cornplete and are available
in accordance with a timetable agreed in advance with their appointed auditors

= mimmise the time between completion of the audit and the availability of the
printed/published accounts.

There is a need for appointed auditors to:

® agree a timetable for the conduct and completion of the audit with the council

m ensure that audit staff are available and that other areas of audit responsiblility do
not impact on council audits

m ensure that interim audit work is completed and reported in advance of final accounts
work

= draw to the attention of councils significant issues arising from the audit as soon as
these are identified.

Of the audits completed at the date of this report, the accounts of three
councils were qualified in respect of four matters. Details are contained in
Exhibit 5. This represents a notable reduction compared with previous years
(1998/99: nine accounts qualified in respect of 15 matters; 1997/98: 21
accounts qualified in respect of 27 matters). None of the 34 ‘other’ local
authority bodies’ accounts for 1999/2000 received to date contains
qualifications.

! Exhibit 5: Qualifications in 1999/2000

Council Reason for gqualification
Clackmannanshire ® The Council failed 1o carry out asset revaluations.
East Dunbartonshire ® The appointed auditors were unabile to satisfy

themselves as to the adequacy of the bad debt
provision for rent arrears.

Shetland islands ® Lack of evidence to substantiate the comparative
figures included in the 1999/2000 cash flow
statement.

® Disagreement about the way in which the
Council had accounted for a property
transaction in a previous year.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Autharity Audits

13




Page 70

2.7 Other significant issues may arise during the course of a local authority audit
which, while not affecting the auditor’s opinion on the accounts, may need to
be included within the audit certificate. These explanatory paragraphs
{headed ‘Failure to comply with statutory requirement’ in the audit
certificate) allow the appointed auditor to draw attention to important issues
without qualification of the audit opinion.

2.8 Of the audits completed to date, ten councils’ accounts contain ‘failure to
comply’ paragraphs in respect of 15 issues {13 on Direct Labour/Service
Organisation related matters, including the failure to achieve the statutory
break-even target, and two non-Direct Labour/Service Organisation related
matters, concerning local authority borrowing powers and capital expenditure
limits). This represents a reduction on the 1998/99 position for all councils
when 19 accounts carried 21 ‘failure to comply’ references.

3 Corporate governance/financial controls

Audit Committees

3.1 In the last decade there have been significant developments in governance and
risk management in both the private and public sectors. In 1992, the
Cadbury Committee defined corporate governance as the system by which
arganisations are directed and controlled and identified openness, integrity
and accountability as its three core principles.

3.2 Compared with the position in other sectors (such as the NHS), progress in
developing corporate governance arrangements in local authorities has been
relatively slow. However, the appointed auditors have reported that most
councils in Scotland are now taking steps to assess and develop their
corporate governance arrangements.

3.3 The Accounts Commission has endorsed the audit committee concept as
advocated by the Cadbury Committee as an integral component of good
governance. While it is for each local authority to determine arrangements
appropriate to its particular circumstances, the adoption and implementation
of audit commirtee principles is regarded by the Commission as an important
step in raising the standard of corporate governance in local government.
Exhibit 6 highlights the main functions of an audit committee and Exhibit 7
contains an extract from the McIntosh Report on local government
supporting the establishment of audit committees.

| Exhibit 6: Functions of the audit committee

The functions of the Audit Committee should include:

® to review with management the adequacy of the internal control systems

® to review with management the adequacy of policies and practices to ensure
compliance with relevant statutes, directions, guidance and policies

= 1o review with management compliance with relevant standards or codes of corporate
governance

s 10 review with management the financiai statements

® o ensure that the internal audit function is properly resourced and has appropriate
standing within the council

m to review the activities of the internal audit function ...

® to manage ... ali aspects of the council's relationships with the external auditors.

L Source: ‘Corparate Governance: A Framework for Public Service Bodies’, CIPFA |

14 Overview of the 1999/2000 Loca! Authority Audits



34

35

Page 71

| Exhibit 7: Audit Committees: an extract from the ‘Mcintosh Report’

“... we see a bigger role for councillors in scrutinising the performance and governance
of their authorities. We see particular advantage in the creation of audit committees,
drawn from outside the political leadership and working on a non-partisan basis, to
provide independent reassurance to the councii and its electorate that the council's
resources are used properly and cost-effectively ...."

| Source: ‘Moving Forward. Local Government and The Scottish Parliament’ june 1999 ]

In 1999/2000 auditors reported that several councils had established or were
considering the establishment of an audit committee, or similar mechanism,
to monitor the operation of the overall system of financial control. Some
councils are considering a wider remit to include issues relating to expected
standards of behaviour, codes of conduct, and policies on the arrangements
for the prevention and detection of fraud and corruption. Qverall, there is
encouraging evidence from appointed auditors’ reports of an increasing move
towards setting up audit committees or adopting audit committee principles.

One of the most important roles that audit committees (or their equivalent)
can undertake is to review reports from their internal and external auditors
and monitor the implementation of audit recommendations. If the audit
function is to be effective it is vital that action is taken to address weaknesses
identified through the audit process. The responsibility for the operation of a
sound systemn of internal control lies with council members and senior
management and is an important part of their stewardship of public funds.
Effective governance arrangements will assist them in discharging this
responsibility.

Internal audit

3.6

3.8

There is some evidence from appointed auditors’ reports that improvements
have been made in councils’ internal audit arrangements, following criticism
in previous years’ audit reports. In particular, it appears that internal audit
staff are undertaking less non-audit work.

One of the main issues, which continues to be highlighted by appointed
auditors in their 1999/2000 final reports, is the lack of specialist computer
audit expertise available to councils’ internal audit departments. Some
authorities have reported problems in recruiting and retaining suitably
qualified and experienced staff in this area. However, given the reliance placed
on computerised systems for all aspects of councils’ business it is important
that arrangements are in place to ensure that appropriate controls exist in
computerised systems and that these controls are operating effectively.

In response to the concerns highlighted in last year's overview report, the
Accounts Commission is conducting a review of internal audit in Scottish
local government. The overall objectives of the study are set out in Exhibit 8.
The results of the Commission’s study are due 10 be published in summer
2001.

Overview of the 1993/2000 Local Authority Audits



16

Page 72

| Exhibit 8: Overall objectives of Commission’s study on internal audit

The Accounts Cornmission is currently undertaking a review of internal audit in Scottish

councils. The overall objectives of the study are to:

= undertake a ‘health check’ of all councit internal audit services against accepted geod
practice

= identify the key features of an effective internal audit function

m disseminate good practice among councils

® make recommendations that help councils to provide a Best Value internal audit
service.

Internal control issues

3.9 Appointed auditors continue to report weaknesses in basic accounting
controls including, in several instances, the absence of regular and timely
reconciliations between key financial systems and the financial ledger.

3.10 While it was recognised that there would be a period following local
government reorganisation when difficulties arising from inherited financial
systems would have to be addressed, it is disappointing to note that in
1999/2000, the fourth year following reorganisation, appointed auditors
continue to express concern about the absence of fundamental accounting
controls. Reconciliations between subsidiary systems and the main financial
ledger are an essential mechanism for early identification of errors or,
possibly, fraud. As indicated elsewhere in this report, the absence of
reconciliations can have serious financial consequences for local authorities.

[ Exhibit 9: Basic accounting controls - bank reconciliations

Reconciliation is the process of matching twa separate records of transactions to provide
assurance as to the accuracy and integrity of financial procedures. in the case of bank
reconciliations, which are among the most fundamental reconciliations, the balance
on the financial iedger is matched with the balance on the bank statement provided
by the bank. ftems required to achieve balance are identified and, where appropriate,
investigated.

in the absence or late production of this basic reconciliation, councils cannot determine

whether the accuracy or integrity of their financial procedures have been compromised
and are therefore exposed to unacceptable risk.

L

3.11 In addition to late or absent reconciliations, appointed auditors have also
commented on weaknesses in other fundamental internal controls in a
number of financial systems including: lack of segregation of duties, lack of
controls 1o ensure goods are received before invoices are paid and lack of

"adequate access controls for primary computerised systems. These issues have
been highlighted at several authorities and have featured in previous overview
reports. In some cases appointed auditors have reported the lack of timely
and effective action by councils in response to previous identification of such
issues in both external and internal audit reports. This highlights the
importance of having effective governance arrangements in place to ensure
that audit recommendations are acted upon within acceptable timescales.

Overview of the 199972000 Local Authority Audits



4

Page 73

Financial position

Revenue

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Councils’ revenue expenditure is financed from three main sources:
government grants (which includes yields from non-domestic rates), council
tax and fees and charges. About 80% of financing for local government
expenditure (net of fees and charges) comes from central government grant,
and council tax funds about 15%. Expenditure on council housing is met
mainly from rents.

Income and expenditure on council services other than housing is reflected in
the General Fund. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) records
transactions relating to the provision of council housing. The HRA is ‘ring-
fenced’ in that councils may not subsidise council housing activities from the
General Fund,

During 1999/2000, 20 councils had in-year deficits on the General Fund
totalling £46.8 million. The remaining 12 councils had surpluses in
1999/2000 totalling £28.7 million. Taking account of balances brought
forward from 1998/99, the General Fund of 30 councils closed the year in
surplus and the accounts of two councils (East Ayrshire and North Ayrshire)
had relatively small deficits. The total net value of General Fund balances
across councils at 31 March 2000 was £177 million which represents 2.7% of
total General Fund net expenditure (31 March 1999; £195 million, 3.1% of
total General Fund net expenditure).

The closing balances on Housing Revenue Accounts show that 27 councils
were in surplus at 31 March 2000 and five had a nil balance. The total value
of Housing Revenue Account balances across councils at 31 March 2000 was
£113 million which represents 9.7% of total Housing Revenue Account gross
expenditure (31 March 1999: £121 million, 10.4% of total Housing Revenue
Account gross expenditure).

Reserves .

4.5

4.6

In addition to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account, councils hold
other funds. The total value of these funds at 31 March 2000 was

£264 million (1999: £258 million). The principal elements of this are
renewal and repair funds, insurance funds and useable capital receipts but
there is @ wide variation in the amounts held by councils. These totals
exclude significant balances held by Orkney and Shetland Islands Councils
arising principally from harbour related activities.

The total level of councils’ reserves is shown in Exhibit 10. In 1999/2000
councils utilised reserves in support of General Fund and Housing Revenue
Account expenditure but, overall, the level of balances was relatively
unchanged from 1998/99.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Lacal Authority Audits



18

Page 74

| Exhibit 10: Councils’ total reserves

mGeneral Fund  _Housing Revenue Account = Other Reserves (excluding Orkney and Sheitand)

800

500

400

300

£million

200

100

1999 2000

o

Capital

4.7

4.8

4.9

Capital expenditure by councils is controlled by Scottish Ministers under
section 94 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and related
regulations, Councils are provided with consent to incur expenditure under
broad service headings. Capital expenditure is mainly financed by borrowing
which allows costs to be spread over future years in order to match the
benefits from the expenditure incurred. However, councils can decide to fund
capital expenditure from revenue. This increases the capital spending
capacity but the expenditure falls to be met in full by council taxpayers or
council tenants in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

Total General Fund capital expenditure in 1999/2000 across all councils was
£611 million, of which £97 million (16%) was financed from current revenue.
For the Housing Revenue Account, capital expenditure in 1999/2000 totalled
£344 million of which £104 million (30%) was financed from current
revenue. Within these overall figures, there is wide variation in the extent to
which councils finance capital expenditure from current revenue. This is
particularly evident on the Housing Revenue Account where the amount of
capital expenditure financed from current revenue in 1999/2000 ranged from
nil to over 50%. About a third of all councils in Scotland financed more than
40% of Housing Revenue Account capital expenditure from current revenue
in 1999/2000. .

In summary, councils held reserves totalling about £550 million at 31 March
2000. The statutory basis and purpose of these is not always clear and there is
wide variation in the amounts held. There is also significant variation in the
extent to which capital expenditure is financed from current revenue., These
are areas which may warrant closer review by councils and their appointed
auditors in future years.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Lacal Authority Audits



Page 75

5 DLO/DSO performance - -

5.1 The main statutory provisions governing the operation of councils’ Direct
Labour Organisations (DLOs) and Direct Service Organisations (DSOs)
under Compulsory Competitive Tendering (CCT) are contained in the Local
Government, Planning and Land Act 1980 and the Local Government Act
1988 respectively, and in related secondary legislation.

5.2 In consequence of local government reorganisation in Scotland (which was
effective from 1 April 1996), CCT was largely suspended. With the
development of the Best Value regime, there has been an extension of the
moratorium on existing CCT activity. Only construction work in excess of
£500,000 is currently required to be exposed to competition under CCT.
However, councils are still required by statute to prepare a detailed
specification and calculation of the charge to be made by their DLOs and
DSOs for carrying out work. They are also required by statute to maintain
accounts and to break-even for each defined category of work.

5.3 Following reports by councils of substantial deficits, and weaknesses in
financial management in DLOs/DSOs in 1997/98, the Controller of Audit
made a statutory report to the Accounts Commission in September 1998.
This provided an independent assessment of the management and
performance of DLOs/DSOs across all councils. A follow-up report on the
1998/99 position was published in August 1999.

5.4 Exhibit 11 summarises financial performance against the statutory break-even
target in 1999/2000 and compares this with 1998/99 and 1997/98.

| Exhibit 11: DLOs/DSOs achieving the break-even target

®1997/98 . 1998/99 o 199572000

Building Maintenace

General Highways

Refuse Collection

Building Cleaning

Street Cleaning

I

School and Welfare Catering

L

Other Catering

Leisure Management

Ground Maintenance

Vehicle Maintenance

TRITRI] ]
|
W[

;

(=)

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100
Percentage

L |

The DLO/DSO results for 1999/2000 show further improvement over recent
years with 94% of all DLOs/DSOs in Scotland achieving the statutory break-
even target compared with 91% in 1998/99 and 82% in 1997/98.

w
wn

and

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

19



L - Page 76

5.6 Overall, surpluses across all DLOs/DSOs in 1999/2000 totalled £43.4 million
{1998/99: £42.7 million, 1997/98: £32 million}. Deficits for the year totalled
£1.7 million (1998/99; £4.7 million, 1997/98: £15 million).

5.7 Exhibit 12 shows a continuation of the trend of an increasing number of
councils where all their DLOs/DSOs achieved the statutory break-even target.

| Exhibit 12: DLO/DSO deficits in councils

u No DLO/DSO deficits - 1 to 3 DLOSDSOs with deficits 2 Over 3 DLOS/DSOs with deficits

Councils

1997/1998 199871999 199972000

5.8 A recurring theme in the Controller’s reports on DLOs and DSOs was the
need for councils to improve the quality of performance information essential
for the effective management of DLO/DSO activities. This was also the
subject of a value for money study by the Accounts Commission whose report
‘Understanding our business — management information for DLOs and DSOs
and other operational services’ was published in December 1999. The main
points from this report are summarised in Exhibit 13.

| Exhibit 13: ‘Understanding our business’ - summary

—

Councillors: The report highlighted the roles and responsibilities of
councillors in relation to DLOYDSOs, and the information
they need to meet these responsibilities.

Council officers: The report highlighted the roles of the chief executive,
corporate maragement team and finance director, the
importance of effective partnership working between
clients and contractors and between internal suppliers and
contractors, in building a corporate approach to DLO/DSOs.

Managing the business:  The report highlighted the importance of business planning,
and the need for good management information in
managing the operation of DLO/DS0 businesses.

59 As part of their 1999/2000 audits, appointed auditors reviewed councils’
. progress in implementing the good practice points set out in the
Commission’s report. Overall, appointed auditors indicated that councils had
made good progress in this area. However, they indicated that there was scope
for further improvement in the content and format of business plans and in
the financial and performance information provided to councillors with

and

20 Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



- Page 77

responsibitities for DLOs/DSOs. In some cases, appointed auditors indicated
that training for councillors on their roles and responsibilities in relation to
DLOs/DSOs and the interpretation of financial information may assist in
securing further improvement in this area.

5.10 In one particular case (Glasgow City Council), the appointed auditor noted

6.2

6.3

that, following a Best Value review in 1999/2000, the Council restructured its
vehicle related activities. This led to all functions relating to vehicle operation
being provided by the DSO and subject to a unitary charge. As a result the
income recorded in the statutory revenue account related substantially to
charges for vehicle provision rather than to the statutorily defined activity of
repair and maintenance of vehicles. Also, the charges relating to the defined
activity were not separable from other charges. As a result, the appointed
auditor qualified his opinion on the DSO financial statement. This particular
example may point to a wider issue in that Best Value initiatives in services
still subject to the CCT legislation may lead to the development of approaches
which are not easily reconciled with the statutory accounting requirements
which remain in force.

Housing/council tax benefits

Councils are responsible for administering housing and council tax benefits
and receive reimbursement from the Department of Social Security (DSS)
through an annual claim for subsidy based on the amount of benefit granted.
The annual subsidy claim is subject to audit certification and appointed
auditors must be satisfied that councils’ underlying systems for calculating
and granting benefit are sound. In addition, the Benefit Fraud Inspectorate
(BFI) examines and reports on how local authorities administer housing and
council tax benefit, with particular reference to the prevention and detection
of fraud. Audit Scotland works with the BFI to develop complementary roles
and avoid unnecessary duplication of work. This relationship is governed by a
memorandum of understanding.

The DSS has drawn up a Verification Framework which attempts to improve
councils’ prevention of claimant fraud, sets out the information which should
be collected before benefit is paid and specifies the minimum standards of
evidence and the checks that must be made throughout the life of a claim,
Compliance with the Framework is not compulsory but councils which
implement it receive additional funds from DSS.

The housing and council tax benefit system is complex, involves a high
volume of transactions and is susceptible to claimant fraud. The levels of
detected fraud in 1999/2000 in terms of number and value have increased
from 1998/99 and are set out in Exhibit 14. Adoption of the Verification
Framework should help prevent fraud and error by verification of initial
entitlement and regular review of high risk claims. Appointed auditors
continue to report that some authorities have not yet fully implemented the
Verification Framework. In addition, the systems for administering benefits in
some authorities exhibit general internal control weaknesses of the type
highlighted in section 3 of this report.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

21



22

6.4

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 78

| Exhibit 14: Housing benefit/council tax benefit fraud detected

A

1998/2000 1998/99 1997/98
Number of frauds 12,243 10,409 13,867
Value of fraud related over-payments £6.9 million £5.4 million £4.2 million

Estimated benefits paid by councils £1.4 billion £1.3 billion £1.2 billion

The legislation relating to housing and council tax benefits is complex and
subject to frequent modifications. There is a requirernent, therefore, for
councils to review regularly their procedures in order to support the
administration of benefits. A number of councils have experienced difficulty
in this area and an example of the problems which can arise is described in
section 12 of this report in relation to one particular council. Given the sums
involved, and the problems experienced, it is anticipated that this area will
continue to feature significantly in appointed auditors’ work programmes for
2000/01.

Financial relationships with external parties

The Code of Guidance on Funding External Bodies and Following the Public
Pound, developed jointly by the Accounts Commission and the Convention of
Scottish Local Authorities (CoSLA), sets out the principles of best practice for
councils in establishing relationships with companies, trusts and other bodies
where there is substantial local authority funding. The Code was
supplemented by operational guidance issued by CoSLA in 1998.

The overall objective of the Code is set out in Exhibit 15.

| Exhibit 15: ‘Foliowing the public pound’

‘The principles of openness, integrity and accountability apply to councils in their
decisions on spending public money which are subject to public record and external
audit. These principles should also apply to funds or other resources which are rransferred
by councils to arms-length bodies such as companies, trusts and voluntary bodies’.

Sowrce: Accounts Commission/CoSLA 'Code of Guidance on Funding External Bodies and Following the Public Pound’

L May 1996

The appointed auditors assess how councils are dealing with this issue, by
reviewing councils’ arrangements and comparing these with the guidance
contained in the Code.

Following earlier reviews of progress, appointed auditors have reported a
number of areas where action is required by councils to ensure closer
compliance with the Code's requirements. These are set out in Exhibit 16.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Autherity Audits



8.2

8.3

Page 79

[ Exhibit 16: Areas to be addressed to achieve closer compliance with the Code

There is 2 need for councils to:

@ ensure that the Code’s requirements are extended to all relationships where substantial
tunding agreements exist

m ensure that the roles and responsibilities of supervising council officers are clearly
defined. More generally, there is a need for councii members and officers who
represent the council’s interests in external bodies to be properly advised of their
responsibilities, in relation to the external body and the council. Where appropriate,
this should be supported with relevant training for members and officers.

m ensure that robust monitoring arrangements are in place. Having established these
arrangements, there is a need for councils to ensure that evidence is available to
confirm that these are working in practice. These include arrangements for monitoring
service level agreements (which set out the rights and responsibilities of both parties
to the agreement) and for monitoring the use of grant monies provided by the council
to extemal bodies ( to ensure that the funds are being used for the purpose intended).

Audit follow-up

The appointed auditors of the 66 local authority bodies in Scotland are
required to produce reports on matters arising from their audits. Where the
auditors have concluded that action needs to be taken to make the
improvements necessary in response to their findings, they have agreed or will
agree action plans with the local authority which specify the action needed,
where responsibility for action rests and a timetable for implementation.
Implementation of the actions plans is monitored and followed-up by the
appointed auditors.

In cases where remedial action has not been agreed or where the local
authority has been slow to implement agreed action, Audit Scotland may
pursue the matter directly with the anthority (on behalf of the Controller of
Audit). The Controller of Audit may also use his formal powers to report to
the Accounts Commission on any matter arising from the audit.

The various measures available in terms of follow-up of audit findings
provide a flexible framework for action in relation to the annual audit of
accounts, stewardship of funds and governance matters. The approach
adopted in following-up value for money work is set out later in this report.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

23



Page 80

Part 2: Matters arising during

the year

This part covers:

m Statutory reports

s Year 2000 compliance

» General accounting issues

» Matters arising at individual councils
» Specific value for money findings

e Best Value

» Performance indicators

9 Statutory reports
9.1 During the year to 31 December 2009, five statutory reports were prepared for .
consideration by the Accounts Commission. These are set out in Exhibit 17.

| Exhibit 17: Statutory reports in 2000

20001 Complaint relating to the accounts of Glasgow City Council

20002 inverclyde Council - Audit of Accounts 1897/98

20003 Overview Report on the 1998/99 Audits of Local Authorities

2000/ Comments on inverclyde Council's Formal Response 1o Statutory
Report 200072

2000/5 Dumfries and Galloway Council: Externalisation of Residential

Homes for Older People

inverclyde Council .
9.2 Atits meeting on 5 July 2000, the Accounts Commission considered the two

statutory reports on Inverclyde Council (S.R. 2000/2 and S.R. 2000/4). The

Commission was concerned about reports of significant weaknesses in the

Council’s financial procedures and the arrangements for preparing accounts

and other matters which were indicative of a poor standard of financial

administration and control within the Council.

9.3 In August 2000 the Commission held a public hearing at the Council's offices
at which evidence was taken from the Leader of the Council, the Chief
Executive, the Director of Resource Services and the Director of Social Work
and Housing. In its subsequent findings, the Commission expressed concern
about the serious continuing shortcomings in financial management and
stewardship in Inverclyde Council and instructed the Controller of Audit to
report early in 2001 on the extent to which, by 31 December 2000, the
commitments set out in the Council’s action pian had been achieved.

9.4 Based on a eview by the Council’s appointed auditors, the Controller
reported in january 2001 that there was a need for urgent action on the part
of the finance department to address the remaining issues, in particular
accounting reconciliations, which are fundamenta] to proper financial -

an s
————

24 Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 81

administration. The report concluded that the action proposed by the Chief
Executive in addressing these matters and the outstanding action points from
previous audit reports was of critical importance. In particular, the report
stated that it was essential that key vacancies in the finance department were
filled and that all bank reconciliations were brought up to date by the end of
the 2000/01 financial year, to ensure proper control of the Council’s finances
and to avoid potential delays in the preparation and audit of the annual
accounts for that year.

Dumfries and Galloway Council

9.5

9.6

et
9

9.8

9.9

This report concerned two contracts entered into by Dumfries and Galloway
Council for the provision of residential care for older people in homes which
were owned and formerly run by the local authority.

The main purpose of this report was to identify those aspects of the
externalisation process which demonstrated the opportunity to follow better
practice in future similar exercises, whether undertaken by Dumfries and
Galloway Council or other local authorities.

In considering the report the Accounts Commission acknowledged that the
externalisation of residential homes was an innovative policy proposal at a
time when the Council was coping with the aftermath of local government
reorganisation and a difficult financial situation. The Commission
recognised that the externalisation process was completed, and the transition
to the new arrangement achieved, smoothly and sensitively with minimum
disruption to residents and with the new facilities being delivered to the
expected standard.

The Commission also stressed the need to ensure that options and risks are
properly assessed and that appropriate governance arrangements are in place.
When major policy initiatives are undertaken there is a need for proper
appraisal of options based on consistent and full information given to council
members and for the processes of the authority to be transparent with
sufficient information in the public domain to enable citizens to hold the
authority to account.

Exhibit 18: Dumfries and Galloway Council: concerns highlighted by the
| Commission

& The option appraisal process both at the initial stage of the project and later did not
cover all possible options including further purchasing from the independent sector.

® In reviewing how the authority had estimated the future demand for residential care
it was not readily apparent how the impact of care in the community had featured
in the authority’s long term assessment.

® During negotiations the terms of the proposed contract changed significantly from
the basis of the original invitation to tender, but the authority did not appear to have
considered the possibility of retendering at any stage.

= The financial implications of recornmendations put before members, and the iikely
ultimate impact of their decisions, were not always made clear by officers.

= The authority should have satisfied itself that the quality and cost of capital works
undertaken was consistent with the estimates produced during the negotiations and
with the final contract prices.

The Commission commended the fundamental procedures recommended in
the statutory report and stated that it expects councils to observe them when
reviewing and/or changing methods of service delivery.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

25



Page 82

10 Year 2000 compliance

10.1 In the year 2000 local authorities along with all other organisations
worldwide, faced the risk that computer systems would be seriously affected
by the millennium date change — a syndrome known as the Millennium Bug.
Local authorities had prepared for the event and invested significant amounts
in ensuring that their services were not disrupted.

10.2 At the critical dates of 31 December 1999/1 January 2000 local authorities
experienced no significant effect on their services from the threatened
Millennium Bug. Investment in service continuity planning, system testing
and system upgrades undertaken to counter the Millennium Bug ensured that
services were fully maintained at the required level. Since 1 January 2000 no
further millennium compliance ‘problems have emerged.

11 General accounting issues

Capital accounting

11.1 With effect from 1 April 1994 the Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting (ACOP) introduced a new system of capital accounting for local
authorities. The system is designed to ensure that most categories of fixed
assets are stated in the accounts at current value and that annual charges to
service revenue accounts more closely reflect the cost of using assets. To
ensure that costs associated with fixed assets are kept up to date, ACOP
requires assets to be revalued at least every five years. An essential element of
the capital accounting system is an up to date and accurate asset register.

11.2 As in previous years, appointed auditors continue to comment adversely on
sorne councils’ progress in complying fully with the capital accounting
requirements. The main focus of attention in 1999/2000 was the failure by
several councils to undertake a full revaluation of assets within the five year
timescale specified by ACOP. In most cases this did not impact on the
auditors’ opinion on the accounts but, as noted in section 2 of this report, the
1999/2000 accounts of Clackmannanshire Council were qualified in this
regard. In addition some appointed auditors continue to report weaknesses in
procedures for maintaining asset registers.

11.3 Evidence from appointed auditors’ reports suggest that many councils do not
charge depreciation on buildings and infrastructure assets on the grounds
that they have been subject to regular repair and maintenance to extend the
asset’s useful life in its existing use. Appointed auditors have commented
adversely on the quality of the information that councils have produced in
support of this policy of non-depreciation. For the year to 31 March 2001,
ACOP requires that the test of whether assets should be depreciated rests
solely on councils being able to demonstrate that any depreciation charge
would not be material.

11.4 A further recurring theme in appointed auditors’ reports relating to capital
accounting is the need for councils to ensure that expenditure is properly and
consistently classified as between revenue and capital, in accordance with
generally accepted practice set out in ACOP.

Pensions accounting

11.5 ACOP specifies the nature of the information which local authorities need to
disclose in their accounts in relation to pension costs. Disclosure includes
information on unfunded schemes and discretionary payments granted by
individual councils under the Local Government Pension Scheme. ACOP

26 Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 83

requires a statement to be included in the accounts showing the total cost of
future pension abligations in respect of unfunded pension payments.

11.6 In general, appointed auditors have reported that few local authorities
compiied fully with these requirements in the 1999/2000 accounts as to do so
would have required actuarial calculations and arrangements were not in
place to produce these. Appointed auditors have indicated that authorities are
seeking actuarial advice to ensure that these disclosure requirements, and
additional disclosures required by ACOP for 2000/01 accounts are met. (The
2000 ACOP applies to accounts for 2000/01 and requires disclosure of future
liabilities relating to discretionary elements awarded.)

11.7 The firefighters’ pension scheme, which applies across Scotland, is an
unfunded scheme, with current pensions being paid from scheme members’
contributions in the year. Any shortfall between payments from members and
payments to pensioners is met from the relevant authorities’ revenue
accounts. Each fire authority’s budget for pension costs is based on actual
expenditure in the previous three years. However, a potential problem may
exist as a large number of firefighters who joined the service following a
recruitment drive in 1974 will be eligible for retirement in 2004. Discussions
are ongoing between the relevant authorities and the Scottish Executive
concerning the funding of this liability.

Publiclprivate partnerships/PFl

11.8 There are a number of public/private partnerships (PPP) and public finance
initiative {PFI) contracts at various stages of completion in councils in
Scotland.

11.9 Appointed auditors are reviewing the processes by which councils are
progressing their interests in these schemes and, where appropriate, are
providing preliminary views on the proposed accounting treatment {in
particular whether the scheme will result in ‘on-balance sheet’ or ‘off-balance
sheet’ treatment).

1110 In particular, auditors have identified cases where development costs relating
to PPP/PFI schemes have been capitalised. This is contrary to ACOP’s
requirement which specifies that development costs should be written off to
revenue as they are incurred.

12 Matters arising at individual councils

Fife Council

12.1 As indicated earlier in this report, the absence of key accounting
reconciliations can expose councils to the risk of error. A situation which
occurred at Fife Council serves to illustrate the serious consequences arising
from late detection of an error which would have been identified from the
regular and accurate reconciliation of information held on the valuation roll
(maintained by the assessor) and the non-domestic rates system (maintained
by the Council’s finance department).

12.2 During 1996/97, the assessor revalued several properties and passed details of
the revised rateable values to the Council’s finance department. The new
values were correctly entered on the non-domestic rates system but one of the
original entries, which should have been removed, was not. This meant that
the value of the non-domestic rates levy was overstated. Consequently figures
included in the submissions to central government which formed the basis of

-

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

27



Page 84

the calculation of Revenue Support Grant (RSG) for 1997/98 and 1998/99
were incorrect. RSG for 1997/98 was underpaid by £10.8 million and by
£6.2 million for 1998/99.

12.3 Although the etrors in the non-domestic rates levy were subsequently notified
to central government, and the shortfalls in RSG were recovered, the
appointed auditor reported that the delay in receipt of the payment cost the
Council approximately £1 million in interest foregone. In April 2000, the
Scottish Executive informed the Council that future RSG would not be
rescheduled to compensate for this.

12.4 The appointed auditor attributed the error mainly to weaknesses in internal
control systems (lack of appropriate reconciliations), staffing and computer
software problems encountered following local government reorganisation,
and the delay in producing the 1996/97 accounts for audit. These are issues
which have been highlighted in this and previous local government overview
reports. As stated in Part 1, there is an urgent need for councils to take action
to ensure that these issues are addressed, where they still exist, in view of the
serious consequences illustrated by this example.

West Dunbartonshire Council

12.5 The appointed auditors of West Dunbartonshire Council reported that the
Council had identified £509,000 of non-recoverable housing benefit
overpayments resulting from problems experienced in introducing a new
computer based system,

12.6 A review of all benefit cases was undertaken due to doubts about data
accuracy at the time of the introduction of the new system. This resulted in
revised benefit notification letters being produced but in many cases
claimants received multiple letters indicating changes to their benefit
payments. The Council temporarily suspended the issue of notification letters
to enable rectification of the position but the problem continued for longer
than expected and the Council was slow to review the position. As a result,
many claimants did not receive notification of changes in their entitlement to
benefit. In these circumstances, the housing benefit regulations determine
that councils cannot recover overpayments from c¢laimants.

12.7 The problems experienced by the Council highlight the importance of having
in place appropriate monitoring and control arrangements, particularly
during the implementation phase of a new computerised system. In a separate
report on the issue the appointed auditors identified the following factors as
contributing to this problem.

s The timetable for implementation of the new system and staff training was
inadequate.

» Responsibility for benefits, which was part of an integrated council tax and
benefit system, lay with the Council’s sacial work and housing
department. There was limited formal communication with other
departments, including finance.

12.8 The appointed auditors also reported that there were delays in reporting the
financial implication of the problem to elected members. The Council’s
response to this was that the scale of the problem was only capable of being
quantified as investigations proceeded.

12.9 The appointed auditors reported that, while there were a number of key
controis operating at a detailed level, there was a lack of high level
management controls to enable early identification of a major problem.

28 Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 85 .

13 Specific value for money findings

13.1 The Accounts Commission approves an annual programme of value for
money studies undertaken centrally by Audit Scotland. This work may
culminate in the publication of national reports, management papers and
management handbooks. Councils are expected to use these to challenge
their current levels of performance and take action 1o achieve the standards of
the best.

13.2 Exhibit 19 summarises the value for money reports published by the Accounts
Commission relating to study work undertaken during 1999/2000.

| Exhibit 19: Reports published on 1999/2000 study topics

Study topics Publication date

Benchrnarking refuse coliection: a review of coundils’ April 2000
refuse collection services

Safe and sound: a study of community safety May 2000
partnerships in Scotland

Managing rent arrears: getting the balance right June 2000

In addition to these national reports, management papers dealing with risk managment (Shorten
the odds); using gap analysis to improve service quality {Can‘t get no satisfaction), the management
of data within cauncils (Common data, common sense); and building an information portfoiio,
{Getting to know your services) were published. A seif-assessment management handbook,

| Commissioning community care services for older people was aiso published. ]

13.3 Appointed auditors conduct local follow-up action to ensure that councils
implement appropriate improvement action in response to the
recommendations contained in the Commission’s value for money reports.

Benchmarking refuse collection: a review of councils’ refuse collection

services

13.4 This benchmarking study was conducted to assist councils to achieve Best
Value in their refuse collection services. All councils in Scotland have been
provided with national benchmarking information, including operational and
financial data. Refuse collection managers are using this information to
challenge current levels of service performance and take action, where
appropriate, to improve performance.

13.5 The study found that there have been substantial productivity improvements
in councils’ refuse collection services since the Commission’s last review in
1990. The cost of refuse collection has risen from £90 million in 1990 to
£98 million in 1998/99, a 9% increase, which is less than the rate of inflation.
Over the same period, the tonnage of refuse collected increased by 14%, the’
number of employees fell by 44% from 4,800 to 2,700 and the number of
vehicles fell by 25%.

13.6 Key study findings included:

« Commercial refuse services cost Scottish councils an estimated £30 million
a year but only £20 million is collected in charges leaving a £10 million
shortfall to-be paid by council tax payers. It is the Scottish Executive’s
"policy for councils to recover all costs associated with the collection and
disposal of commercial waste but it seems that around half of the 32
councils are not recovering all of these costs.

Overview of the 199972000 Local Authority Audits

29



30

Page 86

The Accounts Commission is urging councils to reduce this subsidy by
ensuring that their charges fully cover the cost of collection and disposal
and by taking action to reduce the number of commercial premises which
dump refuse and avoid payment altogether.

» Most councils’ refuse collection costs range from £30 - £40 per property per
year (Exhibit 20). However, five councils: Moray, Clackmannanshire, East
Renfrewshire, City of Edinburgh, and Glasgow City, are highlighted in the
report for having collection costs which are higher than expected. The
Commission wants these councils to find cut why their collection costs are
higher and take appropriate action.

[ Exhibit 20: Annual gross cost of mdinstream refuse collection per property served

The cost of collection tends to increase with population dispersion, although there is
variation among family groups.

Gross costs per property served (£)

0 10 20 30 40 50 60
Eilean Siar
Argyll & Bute T
Qrkney {slands MOST DISPERSED
Highland

Shetland Islands
Dumfries & Galloway
Scottish Borders
Perth & Kinross
Aberdeenshire

Rural councils

Stirling

Moaray

East Ayrshire
East Lothian
North Ayrshire
Fife

Angus

J

Clackmannanshire Mixed councils
South Ayrshire
South Lanarkshire

West Lothian

Inverclyde
Midlothian

East Renfrewshire
£ast Dunbartonshire

Faikirk

North Lanarkshire
Renfrewshire
Aberdeen City
Edinburgh, City of
West Dunbartonshire
Dundee City
Glasgow City -

Urban councils

LEAST DISPERSED

l

l Source: Local audit returns|

|

O

Nate: Mainiand councils with higher than expected collection costs are highiighted.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 87

s Scottish councils recycled only 3.8% of waste in 1998/99, well below the
government’s year 2000 target of 25%. Councils which carry out separate
collections, for example of paper, tend to have higher recycling levels but
many councils have withdrawn or are considering withdrawing this service
because of reductions in the market price for recycled materials.

13.7 The report concluded that councils will have to give waste managementa
higher priority if they are to meet government recycling and landfill targets,
as set out in the National Waste Strategy. This will involve them developing
an effective waste management strategy, in partnership with other councils
and agencies, and allocating sufficient funding to support expensive but
environmentally desirable, collection and recycling activities. However, the
Scottish Executive has a strategic role to play and should consider how it can
assist councils to meet recycling targets.

13.8 Appointed auditors have agreed improvement action plans with their local
councils and will be monitoring the implementation of these plans.

Safe and Sound: a study of community safety partnerships in Scotland

13.9 Improving community safety is about creating safer places to live, work and
visit, without fear or risk of harm. Many different agencies are involved in
dealing with the impact of unsafe environments on individuals and
communities. Investrent by one agency to reduce risks is likely to bring
benefits, not only to the community and the investing agency, but also to a
range of other organisations.

13.10 Effective partnerships are a central mechanism for improving safety and
reducing risk in communities. This study looked at how community safety
partnerships have progressed in Scotland, and the extent to which the Scottish
Executive guidance ‘Safer communities in Scotland’ has been implemented. It
highlights good practice and recommends steps that partnerships should take
to improve their effectiveness.

13.11 The study found that multi-agency partmerships led by councils and involving
many different organisations, such as police and fire services, health boards
and hospital trusts, have been set up across Scotland to tackle jointly
problems such as anti-social behaviour, domestic violence, ¢rime and

- reducing accidents and injuries. Exhibit 21 shows the common themes
emerging from a review of the strategic priorities and objectives from 16
partnerships.

-t

Overview of the 1999/2000 tocal Authority Audits N



32

Page 88

| Exhibit 21: Community safety partnership themes

The common themes emerging from a review of 16 partnership strategies.

Themes Reduce accidents
Costs of crime

Fire safety

Domestic violence

Supporting victims

-

Substance misuse

Road safety

Home safety

Commitment to consultation

Commitment to partnership working

Young people

Reduce fear of crime

Reduce crime

o

2 4 6 8 10 12
Number of partnerships vzhich have this theme
n=1

[ Saurce: Audit Scotland fistdwork I

13.12 Most partnerships are still at an early stage of development and many need to
take further action if they aré to tackle effectively local problems in the long
term. The report makes recommendations to heip partnerships work more
effectively in the future. These include:

» Links to community plan — community safety partnerships should ensure
that they have clear organisational and reporting links to the local
authority’s community planning frainework.

» Community safety audits — partnerships should agree a phased plan for
acquiring the information they need to identify common safety problems,
and the causes of those problems.

m Serting objectives — strategic priorities should be based on evidence and
translated into measurable objectives.

» Measuring progress ~ partnerships should establish a baseline from which
progress will be measured and targets set, agree a set of strategic

performance indicators reflecting their local priorities and review progress.

» Resource planning — partnerships should develop clear, long-term resource
plans to underpin their strategies.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 89 -

1313 A number of councils have invited their appointed auditors to assess
independently the progress being made by their community safety
partnerships and to assist them in developing effective performance measures.

Managing rent arrears: getting the balance right

13.14 Rent arrears is an increasing problem for many councils and registered social
landlords (RSLs). At 31 March 1999, the total rent arrears due from council
tenants was £37.2 million (3.3% of the gross rent due). At the same date, the
total rent arrears due from mainstream RSL tenants was £6.8 million (2.6% of
gross rent due).

13.15 This joint study with Scottish Homes provided a snapshot of the extent to
which all councils and a representative sample of RSLs were implementing
good practice in managing rent arrears, in early 2000. Overall the RSLs
sampled performed better, by meeting more of the good practice standards
than councils did. This helped RSLs to achieve lower levels of rent arrears.

13.16 The top-performing councils identified in the report are Aberdeen City, Argyll
& Bute, City of Edinburgh, Moray, North Lanarkshire, South Lanarkshire and
West Lothian. Councils identified as needing to take significant steps to
improve their management of arrears are Angus, Fife, Orkney Islands,
Renfrewshire and South Ayrshire.

1317 The report highlights key measures that landlords can take to improve their

management of rent arrears. They should, for example:

= Make contact with tenants within two weeks of the first missed payment
{currently 52% of councils and 29% of RSLs do not do so)

¢ Interview tenants by the time tenants are eight weeks in arrears with their
rent {at present 48% of councils and 24% or RSLs do not do so)

» Take proper account of the tenant’s ability to pay when making formal
arrangements to repay arrears (currently 45% of councils and 33% of RSLs
do not de so).

13.18 At a broader level the study calls for landlords to:

= Give rent collection a high priority

® Give clear leadership and support to staff in implementing arrears
procedures, including evictions

» Provide needs-based training and good IT systems to support staff in doing
their jobs effectively

» Improve liaison between councils and RSLs, particularly in relation to
housing benefit issues .

= Adopt as targets the levels of rent arrears currently being achieved or
bettered by 25% of councils and RSLs (Exhibit 22).

Overview of the 199972000 Lacal Autharity Audits

33



34

Page 90

(
i

Targets |

Countils % of gross rent due ' % of net rent due :
city and urban areas 3.1% | 7.0%
Fsemi-urban and rural areas 1.7% 3.0%

|
’ Maintstream RSLs

% of gross rent due

% of net rent due *

i

H

| semi-urban and rural areas (

1.5%

I n/a

* The Accounts Commission Performance indicator measures current tenant rent arrears as a percentage of the net rent
due {i&, 1otal rent due less housing benefit). RSLs o nat currentiy coliect the information to enabie them to calculate

this figure

Source: Study data anatysis

13.19 The report concluded that the £44 million rent arrears bill in Scotland could
be reduced by as much as £8 million if councils and RSLs adopted better
management practices to prevent and recover rent arrears. Councils could
reduce their arrears from £37 million to £31 million and RSLs from around

£7 million to £5 million.

1320 Appointed auditors are following up the action taken by councils in response
to the national study report recommendations. Scottish Homes is monitoring

the action taken by RSLs.
14 Best Value

Background

14.1 Best Value in Scotland was introduced in 1997. it requires all councils to
increase accountability, to deliver the best quality services possible within the
resources available and to pursue continuous improvement. Best Value.
applies to all the activities carried out by councils.

14.2 The Best Value Task Force set out the performance management and planning
(PMP) arrangements that it expected all councils to be putting in place to
help incorporate Best Value as a way of working. Each council is expected to
be showing clear evidence of achievement against the Best Value attributes set

out in Exhibit 23.

] Exhibit 23: The PMP framework and assessment criteria

e Commitment to Best Value and acceptance of four key principles
(accountability, ownership, continuous improvement, transparency)

= Political and senior management leadership.

u Performance management and planning framework (PMP).

& Programme of service reviews.

= Public Performance Reporting (PPRg).
= Commitment 1G equality issues.

Source: Best Value Task Force final report, para 1.6 J

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 91

14.3 Meeting this set of expectations is not an end in itself. These attributes

underpin a council’s ability to improve services and strengthen accountability.
They allow a council to focus its activity more effectively on the priorities of
the citizens and communities it serves, and enable it to make best use of its
resources in addressing these priorities.

14.4 Appointed auditors have the task of assessing the progress made by each

n

council in terms of meeting the expectations set out in Exhibit 23. The PMP
audit framework assesses a council’s approach to Best Value under ten criteria
that are organised under the four key questions identified by the Task Force
(Exhibit 24).

| Exhibit 24: The PMP framework and assessment criteria

o [ How do we know we're doing the right things?

{1 | We understand the needs, expectations and priorities of all our stakeholders

R

[ 2 i We have decided on the best ways to meet these needs, expectations and priorities |
.3 | We have detailed plans for achieving our goals

l
| Qur plans are clearly based on the resources we have available

4
Q2 | How do we know we're doing things right? '

& We make best use of our people
I

( 5 ’ We make best use of our available resources
E
17 a We monitor and control our overall performance !

' 8 ; We have sound financial control and reporting

! Q3 | How do we plan to improve?

‘ 9 We actively support continuous improvement ;

! Q4 | How do we account for our-performance?

10 We provide our stakeholders with the information they need about our services and |
- performance and listen to their feedback :

Note: These criteria have been updated for the 2000/2001 PMP Audit

For 1999/2000 each council selected three services for review. Appointed
auditors validated the self-assessments and agreed with each council what
improvements would be made to the PMP framework in each of the selected
services. Appointed auditors examined only nine of the ten PMP criteria, with
Public Performance Reporting (PPR - criterion 10) being excluded because
councils had only recently agreed their approaches with the Scottish
Executive. In future years, PPR will be included and appointed auditors will
be examining the extent to which the agreed improvements have been
imptemented.

14.6 The Accounts Commission published a progress report in October 2000

(Making Progress with Best Value) that provided a snapshot of councils’
performance management and planning arrangements, based on the PMP
audit. Councils had the freedom to select which of their services would be
audited, and some services were known to be making more progress than
others. The findings from the audit are therefore not a representative sample

-t

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

35



Page 92

of all council services. However, they do give an indication of the progress
being made. The key findings from the audit are set out below.

Main messages from the PMP Audit (1999/2000)

14.7 Overall, there was clear evidence of commitment to Best Value in councils.
Most of the 96 services audited had made progress in developing and
implementing performance management and planning arrangements. About
two thirds of services achieved overall ‘progress scores’ of between 50% and
75% (Exhibit 25).

| Exhibit 25: Progress in implementing a PMP framework

6

.

14

10
| I
o N IllIIl | III

0 5 10 1520 25 30 35 4045 50 55 60 65 70 75 80 85 90 95 100

[}

Number of council services
PN

N

Percentage progress

Overview of the 1999/2000 Loca! Authority Audits



Page 93

14.8 Around one in six services had made greater progress. These were:

Dundee City Council Social Work

Libraries and Community Information
City of Edinburgh Council Housing

Leisure Management
Moray Council Economic Development
North Lanarkshire Council Housing & Property Services

. Catering Services

Perth & Kinross Council Leisure & Cultural Services
Renfrewshire Council Housing Management

Community Care

Finance (Accounting & budgeting)
Scottish Borders Council Leisure & Recreation

South Lanarkshire Council Housing Services
Social Work Services to Older People

Clackmannanshire Council Chief Executive’s Services
Falkirk Council Corporate Services
Inverclyde Council Legal Services

14.9 Conversely, one in six services had made limited progress and still have
considerable work to do to develop their performance management and
planning arrangements.

14.10 Despite the overall positive picture, there were three particular aspects of
performance management and planning where many councils were making
limited progress:

» identifying the costs and benefits of different options for service delivery,
and evalnating the current service against these

= Jinking budgets and other resources to key service priorities

e reporting a full and accurate picture of service performance to decision-
makers.

14.11 These aspects of PMP are particularly important to the delivery of Best Value
and it is important that further progress is made.

14.12 Best Value also requires councils, over a five-year period, to subject all of their
activities to a rigorous review that incorporates the ‘4Cs’ — challenge,
compare, consult, compete. This process will help councils to be sure that
they are doing the right things and achieving Best Value. About a quarter of
councils had made little progress with their programme of Best Value reviews
at the time of the audit. In a small number of councils, it also appeared to be
the case that services were waiting until a Best Value review was undertaken
before effort was devoted to achieving continuous improvement.

—

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits 37



38

Page 94

15 Performance indicators

15.1 Since 1993/94, councils have been required to provide information on how
well they are carrying out their activities. Councils have to publish the
information in local newspapers by 30 September each year.

15.2 The Local Government Act 1992 places upon the Accounts Commission the
duty each year to direct local authorities to publish information which will, in
the Commission’s opinion, assist in the making of appropriate comparisons —
by reference to the criteria of cost, economy, efficiency and effectiveness —
between: :
= the standards of performance achieved by different authorities in a

financial year
» the standards of performance achieved by authorities in different financial
years.

15.3 In 1999/2000 councils, fire brigades and police forces, were required to report
their service standards against 72 statutory performance indicators (Pls).
These indicators covered a wide range of services and highlight both the
variation in performance between councils and change in performance over
time.

15.4 National reports relating to the indicators were published in January and
February 2001 and distributed widely.

15.5 Some of the findings arising from the reports were that:
= the proportion of residential places for elderly people in single rooms and
the number of assessed people receiving respite care both improved on
previous years
» the number of people receiving home care has fallen each year since
1996/97 but the proportion receiving high levels of care (ie more than ten
hours per week) rose to nearly 15% {Exhibit 26).

Exhibit 26: The total number of people receiving home care services and the
| proportion receiving at least 10 hours per week

30

25

20

Percentage
7S

1996/97 1997/98 1998799 1999/2000
81,559 77,935 71,629 68,313

o Toal chients

. = the overall level of crime cleared-up in 1999/2000 by Scotland’s police
forces again improved slightly to just over 43%
s the performance of fire brigades in meeting the targets for attending fires in
the high, substantial and moderate risk category areas all deteriorated,
compared with recent years

Overview of the 199972000 Local Authority Audits



Page 95

s the proportion of housing repairs classified by several councils as
emergencies remains high - over a third of all repairs in seven councils

= tenants’ rent arrears continued to increase, standing at 8.4% at the end of
the year

s 60% of council house re-lets took longer than four weeks, and the rent lost
due to empty houses cost councils £31.5 million

n the time taken to deal with special educational needs assessments improved
to 30 weeks

s the level of waste recycling remained at about 5%

« the level of council tax collected at the end of the financial year stands at
88%. The percentage of council tax collected within the year has improved
only very slowly since 1996/97 (Exhibit 27). The Commission has
expressed concern over a number of years about the low levels of council
tax collection.

| Exhihit 27: The proportion of council tax for the year that was collected in the
year

° -

95

L

80

85

80

Percentage

75
70
65

60
1996/97 1997/98 1998799 1999/2000

= the proportion of councils’ invoices paid on time (generally within 30 days)
remains at only just over 70%.

. 15.6 Over the last year, Audit Scotland has worked to improve the usefulness of the
indicators by ensuring that they focus on outputs wherever possible, that they
reflect national rather than local targets (which are better reflected in local
performance reporting), and that they are easily interpreted. Councils
welcomed these developments in their responses to the Commission’s annual
consultation.

15.7 Audit Scotland is continuing to work with the Society of Local Authority

Chief Executives, CoSLA and the Scottish Executive to develop guidance for
use by a range of bodies aimed at improving performance information.

Overview of the 1999/2000 Local Authority Audits

39



Page 96

40 Overview of the 1998/2000 Local Authority Audits



Page 97 Agenda Item 6

Review of Internal Audit Service:
Report for Argyll and Bute Council

Professor Arthur Midwinter

1. Purpose

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Council regarding its
internal audit service. My remit is to review the current structure,
resources, tasks and reporting arrangements for the internal audit function,
through analysis of existing documentation, consultation with users and
staff, benchmarking with comparable authorities and to assess the options
for development. The approach meets the principles of the Executive’s Best

Value initiative.

1.2 This report sets out my findings and recommendations for change.
Our initial agreement suggested the final report would take account of Audit
Scotland’s national VFM study and local audit guide, but there has been
some slippage with that timetable, and it is not yet in the public domain. I
have, however, had access to the draft report, which is mainly concerned
with matters of professional practice. I propose, therefore, to produce a
supplementary report for the Council assessing the implications of the

national report when it is available.

1.3 I am comfortable working within the context of Best Value principles
for the review. Best Value is not a new approach, but one which builds on
the corporate planning, VFM and competitive tendering experience of the
past, and formalises them into a statutory requirement. It advocates a

rational management framework with objectives, options and performance



Page 98

management, using techniques and concepts such as clear service
specification and performance monitoring, with a new emphasis on

continuous improvement.

1.4 I am less comfortable with some of the assumptions and language of
the BV advocates, which often assumes that a perfectly consistent hierarchy
of objectives is feasible. Authorities are complex organisations which can
be more rational, but not fully rational, and judgement remains necessary as
information will remain imperfect. Language such as ‘stakeholders’ or
‘4Cs’, is slick consultancy speak, and I prefer clear, simple language which
sets out the arguments, issues and evidence on which recommendations are
made. The four Cs — challenge, compare, consult and complete - simply
mean that the review should demonstrate there is a need for the function;
compare internal audit arrangements with authorities with similar
characteristics; consult with clients of the service; and appraise the
alternative means of delivering it.  In theory, this approach could be
comprehensive and time consuming, in practice I shall concentrate on the
realistic options. The remainder of the report is structured around the four

analytical elements of a Best Value review;

1.5 In completing the fieldwork and background research, I have been
greatly assisted by members of the councils staff, the Accounts Commission
and Price Waterhouse Coopers. The judgements and recommendations

made, however, are my responsibility.



Page 99

2. The Need for an Internal Audit Function

2.1 The first issue to address is the core one — is an internal audit function
necessary.  Authorities in England have a statutory duty to provide an
internal audit function, but in Scotland, the statutory requirement is for every

authority:

“to make arrangements for the proper administration of their financial
affairs and shall secure that the proper officer has responsibility for
their affairs”

2.2 Internal audit is widely regarded as an essential element of such
proper administration in terms of professional practice, and CIPFA has
issued an internal audit code of practice. The function is indeed a long
standing one reflecting the British tradition of promoting probity in the
management of the public finances, through ensuring authorities had
efficienct systems of accounting, authorisation and financial control; and

that expenditure is legally incurred on approved services.

2.3 Some high profile examples of misuse of funds in the 1990s resulted
in a renewed emphasis on promoting internal audit through the creation of
audit committees as key mechanisms of sound corporate governance. The
recent emphasis on Best Value has reinforced the need for internal audit,

which has the skills to participate in BV reviews.

2.4 Internal audit is an independent appraisal function established by
management to review the system of internal controls. To be effective it
must be distinct from and independent of the institution’s external audit

provision, and should have no executive responsibility. Its primary focus is




Page 100

on internal control systems, particular risk management, but IA can also
undertake VFM studies and special investigations. The council will wish to
ensure that it is receiving a service which meets professional standards; to
establish and implement objectives and targets for the service (if these do

not exist); and to compare its service with other authorities.

2.5 The need for independence is central to the status of Internal Audit,
and their capacity to appraise the internal control system. The council will
wish to be assured that its system of internal control gives a reasonable
assurance that assets are safeguarded, waste or inefficiency avoided, reliable
financial information produced, and value for money continuously sought.
The internal control system is the whole system of controls, financial and
otherwise, established to catry on the business of the council in an orderly
manner, ensure adherence to council policies, safeguard its assets and secure
the accuracy of records.  This requires Internal Audit to adopt a systems-
based approach to evaluation (a system is a set of related activities designed

to operate together to achieve a planned objective).

2.6 It is not the function of audit to question policy, but it should consider
the process by which decisions have been reached, and the mechanisms for
meeting objectives. The council should wish to conform to the standards of
the public audit model developed by CIPFA and supported by Audit
Scotland, which requires arrangements which guarantee audit independence,
and advocates a wider role and extended scope for audit. A good internal
audit service is an important means of holding the executive and
management to account, for their stewardship and use of public money.

Increasingly, audit committees are being developed as the mechanism for



Page 101

reporting such activity, and the Council has now established such a

committee.

2.7  Audit Scotland in its Internal Audit Guide regards internal audit as an
integral element of proper financial administration, to ensure propriety,
regularity and value for money. Rigorous internal controls are needed to:
- ensure that the councils resources are applied in the manner, and on
the activities intended;
- deter fraud and impropriety;

- ensure the effective use of resources.

Internal audit aids management by objectively examining, evaluating and
reporting to management on the adequacy of internal control arrangements,
and increasingly by participating in corporate working on promoting and
implementing the Best Value initiative. In my view, an effective internal
audit department works closely with departments in undertaking its

functions.

2.8 The Controller of Audit has expressed continuing concern over the
internal audit arrangements in Scotland’s councils. His 1998-99 overview

report found evidence of:

- inadequate resourcing of the internal audit function;
- involvement in non-audit work;

-inadequate planning;

-shortcomings in reporting;

-inadequate access to specialists, e.g. IT auditors



Page-102

Its VFM study seeks to highlight such problems. His subsequent report
found ‘continuing weaknesses in basic accounting controls’ four years after
reorganisation.  Sound financial procedures and effective controls are
essential to proper financial stewardship of public funds. It is clear that the
council would be failing in its fiduciary duty if it did not have an effective
internal audit function, and that function requires appropriate resources and
an appropriate quality of staff. Therefore, the case for local government

continuing to provide such a function is overwhelming.

3. Benchmarking

3.1  All authorities have distinctive characteristics which affect spending
and service delivery. For benchmarking purposes, and the broad
judgements required in comparing authorities, it is better to concentrate on a -
few key variables. 1 have therefore selected three rural authorities of similar
population size and poverty levels (see Table 1), the key factors which drive
authorities activities and costs. At the request of one of those authorities, we

have not identified them.

3.2 The Controller of Audit’s report expressed concern over the adequacy
of resourcing for internal audit purposes. An internal report has suggested
that the council’s per capita audit costs are around average for Scotland.
We would expect the council’s costs to be significantly higher as small rural
authorities face diseconomies of scale. The councils position relative to the
Scottish average, however, is of limited relevance in assessing the adequacy

of its funding. Of greater value is a comparison with councils in similar



-Page 103

circumstances. The benchmarking exercise quantifies financial costs, the

staffing positions, workload and range of tasks.

3.3 On costs, the council spends Jess per capita than two of the benchmark
authorities; and the same as the third. To reach the average for the group, it
would need to spend some £19k more. (see Table 2) It has less qualified
staff but more support staff, and it undertakes more audit days than two of
the benchmark councils. In last year’s budget, the Council had to fund a
further £69k of audit work from a private firm, because of staffing turnover
and ill-health.  This was funded at Audit Scotland rates, minus the
overhead charge — net £280 per day, from savings elsewhere in the finance

budget.

3.4 The main differeﬁce in the range of work undertaken is in VFM/BV
analysis. One of the benchmark authorities includes a VFM perspective in
all routine reports; whilst the other allocates 45 days. One authority
allocates 55 days per annum to audit BV Review processes; the other
expects BV work to develop. In the third authority, IA undertakes VFM
work to assist with the corporate/departmental VFM programme. This
requires 300 audit days, involving 1.5 FTE staff. The Five Year Plan
however, recognises that the development of the Best Value regime may
require further changes in the audit and VFM function. The section also
provides 90 consultancy days to the Chief Executive and departments on

referral from them.

3.5 In summary, Argyll and Bute spends less than its comparators;

utilises less qualified staff; and concentrates on core audit work:  Some




Page 104

reconsideration of workload is clearly necessary, given the problems of
staffing recruitment and retention the authority has faced in recent years, -
leading to criticisms from external audit over staff diversion into non-audit

work.

4. Consultation

4.1 The Treasury and Cash Manager, the Support Services Manager, and
the Amenity Services Manager were interviewed, and were generally
favourably disposed towards Internal Audit, and its role was well
understood. One interviewee defined it precisely —

‘The role of IA is to give guidance on financial systems and
procedures, and to deal with internal fraud. Its approach is
preventative, seeking to identify weaknesses and adapt
accordingly, for if procedures are good, the prospect of risk
decreases’.
4.2 The Chief Internal Auditor is highly regarded as having delivered
improvements in a rigorous and professional way — leading to tightening of
controls, and of handling ‘fraud’ cases well. The IA approach is informal,
consultative and supportive, and they provide draft reports for discussion
with departments before finalising the audit. The CIA was described as a
“thinking auditor” who is being forced by circumstances to accept a more
limited role. ~ The 1A approach was compared favourably with those of
external contractors, who often ‘make impractical recommendations’, or list
faults but fail to deliver ‘remedies and solutions’. The IA division should
have a wider role in reporting findings from specific systems and spreading
good practice across the authority. In practice, the CIA spends much of his
time on core audit work, and less than is necessary on managing the

function.



Page 105

4.3 The IA staff by contrast felt they were of low status within the
authority, in part due to their lack of experience, staff turnover etc, and that
departments saw them as playing a regulatory role, rather than a consulftancy
role. Junior staff clearly have faced difficult problems in undertaking audit

functions, but remain enthusiastic.

4.4 The staffing problems of 1A are common to Finance as a whole, which
uses four accountants on an agency basis. Unfilled posts put pressure on the

work programme, and there is a continuing reliance on external staff.

5. Options for Development

5.1 These problems clearly have implications for the options open to the
council in the future development of the service. The position is one of a
lack of qualified staff with problems of retention; a lack of specialist skills
necessary to develop the VFM/PU/BV initiatives; and underfunding of the
service, but over-ambition in the workload. In the longer term, there would
be benefits of direct provision, in terms of potential for wider corporate
working, but given problems of recruitment, direct provision will remain

problematic.

5.2  There are therefore three realistic options for service delivery; direct
provision; partnership; or outsourcing. The key question is which
of these will best meet the two key criteria for evaluation, namely the

cost and effectiveness of service provision.



Page 106

5.3 In terms of cost, the current budget is less than the comparator
councils, in part because of the greater incidence of junior staff.  Full
outsourcing for the existing number of audit days would cost, at the Audit
Scotland rates, over £300k. This could be reduced by cutting the number of
days, but this might not allow the expansion of VFM//BV work which is
desirable for the council’s corporate development. Some councils outsource
the management of the audit programme and others outsource core audit

work. The comparator councils rely on direct provision.

5.4 In the short term, the only feasible approach is the partership
approach, with elements of the work contracted out, and elements
undertaken in-house to permit the skills development which is essential. In
the NHS, joint provision between boards on the basis of service level
agreements is common, but not in local government. This may be a

possibility in the longer term.

5.5 The council, therefore, needs a short term solution and a longer term
strategy to tackle its recruitment problems. In the short term, it has littie
realistic alternative (given recent resignations) to continuing with a mixed
economy of provision. The CIA should examine the existing workload,
identify those tasks which internal audit do well and provide better VFM and
then produce an audit plan that allows for some external support. This will
have financial implications as private consultancy firms rates are more

expensive than direct provision.

10



Page 107

5.6 In summary, the council at the moment is underfunding the audit
function relative to similar authorities. This, combined with staffing
problems, has meant the work programme has not met the standards
expected in the CIPFA Code of Audit Practice. Recommendations for
improvement of audit practice will be made in the forthcoming Audit
Scotland report. =~ The council lacks access to VFM/IT skills in use
elsewhere, and this deficit must be addressed. In the short-run, this can only
be delivered in a partmership arrangement which includes a training
dimension to develop the necessary managerial VFM and IT skills in the
Council’s staff in the longer term. External contractors bring benefits of
wider knowledge of practice, but direct provision offers greater scope to
promote corporate development. The partnership approach is the only
feasible option in cost terms in the short-run. Moreover, the CIA should
assess the overall training needs of his unit to assure the council it is meeting

their training needs to secure a quality audit service.

6. Conclusions and Recommendations

6.1 There is a clear ongoing need for an internal audit function.

6.2 In contrast with comparator councils, Argyll and Bute commits less
resources; employs fewer qualified staff; concentrates on core audit work;

and lacks the VFM/BYV skills necessary to meet new pressures.

6.3 The existing IA function is seen as an improvement on the past, and as

having helpful and positive approach.

6.4 1A staff feel undervalued, and are inexperienced

11



Page 108

6.5 There is little real alternative in the short term to continuing in a

partnership mode with external contractors.

6.6  The research shows that the council is not deriving maximum benefit
from the internal audit function, because of problems of recruitment and
retention, and lack of qualified staff to undertake the emerging VFM/BV/IT
work. In the years ahead, the Audit Committee will generate additional
work for Internal Audit, including a role in advising the Committee on the
implications of Accounts Commission VFM reports and on the adequacy of
its BV regime. In addition, the council would itself benefit by IA
participation in the Best Value Review Process to deliver improvements in

efficiency and service delivery.

6.7 1 would therefore advise the council to —
(a) increase the 1A budget by around £80k to allow improvements
to be made, recognising that this will reflect the high cost of
using private firms compared with direct provision in the short

term.

(b) review the IA plan, reducing the total number of core audit
days; making provision for a VEM perspective in audit activity;
and developing performance assessment and BV appraisal
work. The council needs to identify a key player — possibly the
CIA — who will develop the managerial and VFM/BV roles

within the service.

12



Page 109

(c) negotiate a 3 year partnership agreement with an appropriate
external contractor to ensure continuity of provision meantime;
including managing the function, and some training in
management/VFM/BV techniques.

(d) revisit the issue in three years time, to assess whether
partnership or direct service delivery is the way ahead for the

council;

(e) The CIA should continue as at present fo report to the FD as his
line manager, to maintain corporate identity, but must have the
right to report directly to the Chief Executive and the Audit

Committee, if in disagreement with the FD.

6.5  These changes will fulfil four pressing needs;
- strengthen the councils financial controls and enhance its BV work;
- reassure the community that the council recognises the need for sound
arrangements in its financial arrangements;
- provide a positive response to the concerns of Audit Scotland; and
- demonstrate the council’s commitment to Best Value principles to the

Scottish Executive.

6.6 These recommendations will ensure that the council meets its
statutory duty to secure the efficient administration of its financial affairs,

and allow it to respond positively to the development of Best Value in
future.

13



Page 110



Page 111

Table 1: Comparator Authorities

Population Sparsity* Urban Lane Income Support

Length per person
Argyll and Bute 90,000 68.5 884 124
Council A 110,000 43.8 882 125
Council B 86.000 71.2 800 108
Council C 105,000 71.5 840 99

* Urban Settlement Pattern: % of population living in settlements
<10,000 people.

14



Page 112



Page 113

Table 2: Comparative Data

Costs per Capita  Audit Days Qualified Staff

%) (Number) (FTE)
Argyll and Bute 1.87 1087 2
(1 vacant?)
Council A 2.30 1841 5
Council B 1.87 853 3
Council C 1.94 950 3
Weighted Average 2.04 1247 3.7

Of Comparator

15



Page 114



Page 115 Agenda ltem 7

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE 262 JULY 2001

FINAL REPORT ON 2000/2001 AUDIT PLAN

1. SUMMARY

A final report covering audits performed by Internal Audit during 2000 — 01 is appended.
(See Appendix 1).

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted.

3. DETAILS

3.1  The report appended lists the audits which were carried out in the financial year
2000 — 01. The objective of the report is to advise members of the final status of
each audit. The audits for 2000 —01 were performed by either Internal Audit or in
partnership or separately by PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) who were retained in
order to help Internal Audit ensure compliance with the 2000 — Olaudit plan. The
audits are listed in Appendix 1 under audit category, auditor and final comment.

3.2  The audits are categorised as follows:
» Core Financial Systems Audits,
» External Audit works carried out by Internal Audit for PwC,
» Departmental Audits,
= Special Investigations and
= (Cancelled Audits.

3.3 A total of 24 audits were planned. Qut of this total 4 audits were deferred. Of the
remaining audits:
= 18 final reports issued with implementation plans agreed and actioned.
s 2 audits by PwC concerning Payroll & DMR Budgeting remain at draft
stage but are being resolved.

3.4  Of the 20 audits for 2000 - 01:
= 12 were completed by Internal Audit,
= 5 were completed jointly by Internal Audit partnering PwC and
= 3 were completed solely by PwC.

3.5 Additional to the above Internal Audit completed a total of 13 special
investigations in 2000 — 01.

4. CONCLUSIONS

The audit plan for 2000 — 01, was completed by the 31* March 2001, with the
exception of 4 audits.



Page 116

5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: None
52  Financial: None
53  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

TIan Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 25 June 2001.
25junfinalreport26jul



i’urclhasé Dfdeﬁng
Payroll
Sundry Debtors

Tendering Procedures

Council Tax

Year End Stock DES & TPS

Performance Indicators

Housing Benefit Grant Claim

Ooum:il Hou;e Salu o

DMR Unit

Planning Application Fees

Stock of Material and Control

Housing & Gar Loans

Bank Reconciliation's

Travel and Subsistence

Housing Grants

Reports and Information

Social Work Specific Grant
Applications

DMR Unit Budgeting

Social Work Specific Grant
Income

" internal Audit Section &

Z

Internal Audit Section &

113

PwC

internal Audit Section &
PwC

TereeEEEEE

internal Audit Section

internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section &

Internal Audit Section

Internat Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internat Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internat Audit Section

PwC

Internal Audit Section

Page 117

AUDITS 2000 - 2001

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL DRAFT REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN BEING
AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPCRT ISSUED. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

SIGNED OFF BY EXTERNAL AUDIT.

SIGNED OFF BY EXTERNAL AUDIT.

SIGNED OFF BY EXTERNAL AUDIT.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MMPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. IMPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

FINAL DRAFT REPORT ISSUED. PwC TO ARRANGE FINAL MEETING..

FINAL REPORT ISSUED. MPLEMENTATION PLAN AGREED.

APPENDIX 1



Revenues investigation —

Finance

Building Materials -TPS
Helensburgh

Roads Materials - Oban TPS

Building Materials —-TPS
Helensburgh

DES Expenses Claim Review

DES Filters Enquiry

Finance -Payroil

Final Out Turn Budget
Monitoring TPS

Kintyre Community Education

Centre

Dunoon Swimming Pool

IT - Server Enquiry

Registrars Enquiry

Primary School - Lochnell

CANCELLED AUDITS .

Systems Life Cycle

Collection of Fines

Scottish Office Recharging

CGost Monitoring & Gontrol

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Internal Audit Section

Deloitte & Touche

internal Audit Section

internal Audit Section

TREREE Y

N/A

N/A

NA

NA

Page 118

AUDITS 2000 - 2001

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.
FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.
FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTICN PLAN IMPLEMENTED.
FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

FINAL REPORT AGREED. ACTION PLAN IMPLEMENTED.

AR RN

APPENDIX 1

External audit reviewed this area for 99/2000. Therefore reduced naad for

audit.

Abandoned due to Industrial Action and deferred until 2001 -2002.

Abandoned due to Corporate & Legal staff busy dealing with Fasiane

Arrests. Audit deferred to 2001 - 2002.

PricewaterhouseCoopers regarded audit as not necessary as 2000 - 2001

was last year of recharging.



Page 119 Agenda Item 8

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE : 26" JULY 2001

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2001/2002

1. SUMMARY

An interim progress report has been prepared covering the audit work performed by
Internal Audit during the fist quarter of 2001 — 02. The objective of the report is to advise
members of the progress with the audit plan. (See Appendix 1).

2, RECOMMENDATIONS
2.1 The Committee is asked to approve the annual audit plan for 2001 - 02.
3. BACKGROUND

3.1  The progress report contained in Appendix 1 lists the audits scheduled for the
financial year 2001 —2002. The objective is to advise members of the progress
with the audit plan. The audit reference, the audit name, start date, planned
completion date, percentage completion, audit completion date, auditor and
comments are given for each audit.

3.2  Although a total of 26 audits have been planned for this financial year, the
appended report shows that External Audit work has been the principal activity for
Internal Audit for the first quarter of this financial year. This has been due to year-
end requirements.

3.3  Additional to the above, special investigation audit work has been performed in
the first quarter covering two areas. One of these investigations is till ongoing.
(See Appendix 1).

3.4 It is envisaged that Core Financial Systems and Departmental Audits will
commence in the second quarter.

4. SUMMARY OF 1* QUARTER AUDIT ACTIVITIES FOR 2001 - 2002

4.1  The 2001-02 audit plan was based on 7 members of staff. At this time Internal
Audit has 4 members of staff. However steps have been taken to employ 3 contract
professional staff to help with the progression of the audit plan from the beginning
of quarter two for two months.

42  Atotal of 5 weeks training for each member of staff was highlighted for this
financial year. A training needs plan will be required to be put together following
Dr Arthur Midwinter’s report on Internal Audit. In the meantime additional
training has been secured through Internal Audit staff joining other Scottish Local -
Authority internal audit staff for an introduction to audit professional training
week. Glasgow City Council, Internal Audit, hosted the event with the course
delivered by the Institute of Financial Professional Accountants (IPFA). Further
joint training is planned for later in the year.



43

44

45

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

Page.120

External Audit works predominately fall into the first quarter of the financial year.
A total of 212 days was allocated for this work within the 2001 — 02 audit plan. Of
the 212 a total of 40 days were budgeted for year-end stock audit work. The actual
audit days taken totalled 37. A total of 80 days were budgeted for performance
indicator audit work. The actual days taken totalled 80. This leaves a remainder of
40 days for the Housing Benefit Grant Claim audit, which is scheduled for
September 2001 and 55 days for Stock Monitoring throughout the remainder of
the financial year.

A total of 120 days were set-aside in the audit plan for Contingency/Special
Investigations in the audit plan for 2001 - 02. The actual days incurred on this type
of audit work for the first quarter totalled 42 days. This therefore leaves a balance
of 78 available Contingency/Investigation days for the remaining financial year

Follow up Review visits have been performed by Internal Audit in respect of the
PwC Final Report to Members for 1999/2000. These visits confirmed that the
respective departmental management had implemented 18 of the 19
recommendations contained in the external audit report. The 1 remaining
recommendation concerning DES, Libraries was reported previously to the Audit
Committee in March 2001 with an explanation as to why it will take longer to
implement.

Of the 50 days allocated within the audit plan for Follow up Review 8 days were
used for the above task. The remainder of days will be used for other follow up
reviews to ensure that audit report recommendations have been actioned by
managemernt.

Within the audit plan presented to the Audit Committee it was indicated that a
total of 42 days had been set-aside for a risk assessment review in partnership with
the Councils external auditors. This review was scheduled for March 2001.
Unfortunately due to year-end pressures this has not yet taken place but is
scheduled for the coming months.

At present no Departmental Audits have taken place due to External Audit work
requirements. However, these audits will commence in quarter two and throughout
the remainder of the financial year.

At present none of the 5 Core Financial Systems Audits identified for this financial
year have been carried out due to External Audit work requirements. However,
these audits will commence from the beginning of quarter two and onwards.

CONCLUSION

Progress is being made on audits planned for 2001 - 02.



Page 121

6. IMPLICATIONS
5.1 Policy: - ~ Update on audit plan for 2001 - 02.
5.2  Financial: The fufdit plan is based on existing budgeted
provision.
53  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None

For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216)

Tan Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 25 June 2001.
25junprogreport26jul




Page 122



“sMaIAR1 dn MO||04

J8yjo Joj pasn ag {|w sAep JO lapulewai M.v..w«.“
oL DM 0} ioRaT pasieu manay |
wpny
panss| uoday jeuly oo
upny
uoijebisaauj SuobuQ jewssiy|
™
[Q\
—
()
m
Ipny
aMd 4q o paublg jeusolu|
‘01Q/0$Q 10j Bulioyuow ¥ois sop pasn aq  Jpny
fim shep Bujuieluel ey) ‘DA Aq 4o paubig  jewsaju|
SUI WO 1o)pny

(]

[A4

[44

8L

0e
74
74
oc
(V4

SR88S8

4
oT
o€
13
74
0z
74

st

oy
ov
or
€S
or
Piz4

o]
or
SS

sAeq
Sujujeway

L9

SE

og

i

seq
Hpny |enjoy

4801

t44 JUBWSSISSY 51N

0s 00t 40-idy-0L 10-1dv-0)

oS majaey dn mojjog
L ot po-unp-1 i Lo-unp-y g

0 . . Bujcbug
4% suojebysaaupiousbuguo)

0€
274
oz
14
74
oe
0t
oe
[+

oz
[v4
oe
0e
)74
174
174
0e
oSy S11anyY TYINIW1dvd3aa

o¥
or
or
£S
or
1124 SLany oL

o8 004 LOINT-EL Lorinr-gt
or

z6 00 1o-hew-pi LO-ARW-LL
R SHHOM LIGNY T¥NEI1XI

sAeq s03ipny
pejabpng

3iva
F137dWOD % NOILITdKWOD  3LITdWCD Liany
3na Liany

Qom - 1002 YO4 SSIUOHOUd NV1d L1aNY ‘

10-1dv-Z0

L0-unp-0

10-dy-pZ

Lo-Aeiy-0¢

10-1BN-8T

[eclR-) JRY
lianv

siequiay o} Yoday |eutd 00/66

wieD esuensuyj

siiig euoyg

BSRYNS 1281/ A BujpjoH %018

eLoou| Aue g sield ‘Buiiey

J0)1y semoduely g Buniueid qor speoy 071G
|esodoig sainpadaid AleAcsay J9isesiq
SO AU U014 Ul SWAYSAS JDYPY JO MBIAY
BujsnoH - sweigig syyeueg peaylun
(@wodu)) 8180 Suwiol

uDlEPQUILIOdDY Apep|T

pung sueo

waweBbeuey 19ssy pax)4

{ewoou)) uopoeloD esnjay

{(ewoou|) [esodsiq 81sepm

RWIOOU| S[ES) [00YOS

sjooyog Ailgpuoses

S8jjeusd paxiy '§ SPULY JO UOIYS|I0D

o9 Bupepusa | suoIpUOD Si0RNUOY
BupieA 1enuon

Buisear) 1en

sucpesed( Jebpa jesauag)
sieueg xe ] ounod g Suisnoy
sjumuied s10)pai)

spoenuo) jended

jonuoy Arejebpng

SI0)EOIPUY| @2URLIIOHR
WIg|D Jueln yeuag Sutsnoy
Sdl puzsA Bupjey 301

sliany

sAva
vioL

glisy

YEISY

EEISY

FONHA
8csdl
S65dL
804t
BO.LI

SIMSH
vimMSH
9zad
FXdal]
tos3a
20s3a

$003
[4el-p e
6¢Sdl
158dl
SI130

810D
@00

Y]
0D
)

[LIMEVE]
|eusspg
leuIsxg

434



Page 124



Page 125 Agenda Item 9

ARGYLL & BUTE COUNCIL AUDIT COMMITTEE
FINANCE - 26" JULY 2001

PROGRESS REPORT on EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS TO COUNCIL FROM
1999/00 TO PRESENT

1. SUMMARY

A series of follow up reviews have been conducted by Internal Audit to ensure that the
recommendations contained in the PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) Final Report to
Members for 1999/2000 had been implemented. Appended to this document is a list of
reports received from PwC since the 1999/2000 Final Report to Members. (See Appendix

1).
2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The contents of this report are noted.

3. DETAILS

3.1  Internal Audit reported to the Audit Committee in March 2001 that Internal Audit
had accepted management assurances that implementation had taken place on 14
of the 19 recommendations contained in the Final Report to Members. These
assurances and an exception report listing the remaining 5 recommendations still
to be implemented, were reported to the Audit Committee in March 2001.

3.2  Testing has now been carried out by Internal Audit and we can report that 18 of
the 19 recommendations have now been implemented.

3.3  The only recommendation still outstanding from the Final Report to Members
1999/2000 relates to a performance indicator qualification recommendation placed
on DES, Libraries. This matter was reported and discussed at the previous Audit
Committee meeting in March 2001. Internal Audit will continue to monitor
progress with implementation of this recommendation.

3.4  Appendix 1 details the reports that have been received by the Council from
external audit since the Final Report to Members 1999/2000. The list uses the
following headings, title of report, the month it was received, whether
management comments have been collected and the date when the implementation
plan was sent back to the external auditors.

3.5 No follow up review has been performed on the last report as it is yet to be
finalised. Testing will take place as part of our Follow up Review programme for
2001 - 02 to ensure recommendations have been actioned.



Page 126

4. CONCLUSIONS
Implementation of recommendations will continue to be monitored by Internal
Audit.
5. IMPLICATIONS
5.1  Policy: None
5.2  Financial: None
53  Personnel: None
54  Legal: None
5.5  Equal Opportunities: None
For further information please contact Ian Nisbet, Internal Audit Manager (01546 604216) .
Ian Nisbet
Internal Audit Manager 25 June 2001.
25junprogreport26jul



Page 127

I XIAN3ddV

pauinal Jak JoN
Lo-unp
l0-1ep
00-93Q

> > > >

10-ged
00-AON
00-1°0
00-6ny

1002/0002 48N Juswasbeue N ypny wua)
0002/666 | J1ena7 Wawabeuep ypny |eui4
0002/666 423187 Juswabeue ypny wuay|
0002/666 | Jon87 Juawabeuey Upny swajsAs

yoeq juas ueld
uojjejuaiuajdwy yiuow

N/A siuapuodsay woiy
paulejqo sjuaunuod

»

paAiaday yiuoy

aweN poday omd

wt_On_mm 11dNV IVNA31lXgy




Page 128



Page 129 Agenda Item 10

Arovll
%B%St]e

COUNCIL

Anti-Fraud
and

Anti-Corruption
Strategy

DRAFT DOCUMENT
FOR
CIRCULATION & DISCUSSION

23 November 2000



Page 130



Rage 131

CONTENTS PAGE
1. Introduction 2
2. Our written rules 2
3. How we expect our Members and employees to 3
behave
4. Preventing fraud and corruption 4
5. Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption 4
6. Training 5
Appendix 1 — Fraud Response Plan 6
Appendix 2 — Seven Principles of Public Life 8
Appendix 3 —Public Interest Disclosure Policy 9
Appendix 4 — Prosecution Policy 16
Appendix 5 — Housing Benefit and Council Tax 17
Benefit Fraud

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 1



Page 132



Page 133

ANTI-FRAUD AND ANTI-CORRUPTION STRATEGY

[. INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

[ ]

2.1

2.2

We (the Council) employ approximately 6,500 staff and have a revenue and
capital budget of over £206 million gross. As with other large organisations,
the size and nature of our services puts us at risk to loss due to fraud and
corruption both from within the council and outside it.

We are committed to making sure that the opportunity for fraud and corruption
is reduced to the lowest possible risk, and we will deal with the risks in a firm
and controlled manner

An important part of this approach is introducing an anti-fraud and anti-
corruption strategy, which we will use to advise and guide members and staff
on our approach to the serious issues of fraud and corruption. This document
provides an overview of our policy in this matter and includes a ‘fraud
response plan’ which provides more detailed guidance on how to deal with
fraud and corruption.

The main message is that we expect all members, employees, consultants,
contractors and service users, to be fair and honest, and to give us any help,
information and support we need to deal with fraud and corruption.

The strategy set out in this document covers the following areas:

Our written rules

How we expect our members and employees to behave
Preventing fraud and corruption

Detecting and investigating fraud and corruption
Training

YVVVYVY

OUR WRITTEN RULES

We have a number of procedures and rules to make sure that our financial,
working and organisational procedures are properly controlled. These are an
important part of our internal control process, and it is important that all
members and staff know about them.

The most important of these are as follows:

Contract Standing Orders

Financial Regulations

Code of Conduct for Councillors

Code of Conduct for Employees

Public Interest Disclosure Procedure (“Whistleblowing” Procedure)

VVVYVYYV

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 2



Page 134

»  The Code of Governance for DLO/DSOs
» Defalcation Procedures

» Employees’ Conditions of Service

» Scheme of Delegations

23 Individual departments have also introduced their own measures, which are
designed to control their activities. Examples include accounting control
procedures, working manuals and operating procedures.

2.4 Directors must make sure that all staff have access to these rules and
regulations and that staff receive suitable training.

2.5  Members and employees must make sure that they have read and understood
the rules and regulations that apply to them, and act in line with them.

2.6  If anyone breaks these rules and regulations the Council may take formal
action against them. In respect of employees this may include terminating
their employment with the Council and it will be the responsibility of the
relevant manager to investigate and to initiate any such process. In respect of
Members, it will be the responsibility of the Monitoring Officer to report
matters to the Standards Committee.

3. HOW WE EXPECT COUNCIL. MEMBERS AND EMPLOYEES TO
BEHAVE

3.1 We expect all people and organisations who are in any way associated with us
to be honest and fair in their dealings with us and our clients and customers.
We expect our members and employees to lead by example in these matters.

3.2  Our Codes of Conduct for members and employees set out an approach to
work that 1s both honest and fair. Members and employees must act in line
with the codes at all times.

33 Our Members and employees have an important role in dealing with fraud and
corruption and we will encourage our staff and members to inform us if they
suspect a case of fraud.

3.4  We will deal with all information fairly and as far as possible confidentially.
Our fraud response plan attached (Appendix 1) gives more advice on this issue
for staff.

3.5  The Committee on Standards in Public Life set out seven guiding principles
that apply to people who serve the public. A number of our Codes already
incorporate these principles (which are attached at Appendix 2) and we will
develop our working behaviour around these principles.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 3



3.6

4.1

4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

5.1

5.2

Page 135

We expect our Directors to deal firmly and quickly with anyone who is
responsible for fraud or corruption. The Council’s Financial and Security
Regulations already provide for this and also that the Chief Executive in
consultation with the Director of Corporate & Legal Services and the Director
of Finance may refer matters to the police if he suspects any criminal activity
has been carried out.

PREVENTING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

We believe that if we are to beat fraud and corruption, we must prevent if from
happening in the first place. It is essential that we have clear rules and procedures,
within which members, employees, consultants and contractors can work. These
include the main corporate rules, which are set out in section 2.

We must regularly review and update our written rules.

Directors must make sure that suitable levels of internal check are included in
working procedures, particularly financial procedures. It is important that duties are
organised so that no one person can carry out a complete transaction without some
form of checking process being built into the system.

We must follow our procedures when employing new staff. If possible, we must
check the previous employment records of anyone we are considering employing.
This applics to both temporary and permanent staff.

We are committed to working and co-operating with other organisations to prevent
organised fraud and corruption. Wherever possible, we will be prepared to help and
exchange information with other Councils and organisations to deal with fraud.

This kind of work needs to be tightly controlled particularly in relation to data
protection issues. The Internal Audit Section will control exchanges of information.

We have confidential facilities available for people to give us information that may
prevent fraud and corruption. These include a dedicated telephone, which members
of the public can use to give us information about specific services.

We will make sure that full details of reporting facilities are widely published to the
public, members and employees, and that all information we receive in this way ts
investigated and dealt with.

DETECTING AND INVESTIGATING FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

You should read this section with our fraud response plan (Appendix 1) and our
Prosecution Policies (Appendices 4 and 5).

Under our Codes of Conduct and Financial Regulations employees must report any
suspected cases of fraud and corruption to the appropriate manager, or, if necessary,
direct to the Head of Internal Audit. Reporting cases in this way is essential to the
anti-fraud and corruption strategy and makes sure that:

» suspected cases of fraud and corruption are investigated properly;

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 4



53

5.4

5.5

5.6

6.1

6.2

6.3

Page 136

» The fraud response plan is carried out properly;

» There is a standard process for dealing with all suspected cases of fraud and
corruption; and

¥ People and our interests are protected.

In addition, the Council’s Public Interest Disclosure Procedure (“Whistleblowing”
Policy) (Appendix 3) is intended to encourage and enable staff to raise serious
concerns which may relate to fraud or corruption or other matters. Where matters of
fraud are concerned the procedure provides for the Monitoring Officer to refer
matters to or involve Internal Audit. Employees reporting concerns in this way are
afforded certain rights of protection as set out in the policy.

In relation to matters of fraud or corruption the head of Internal Audit will work with
the Monitoring Officer and, where necessary, the Chief Executive to decide on the
type and course of the investigation. This may include reporting the matter to the
relevant prosecuting authorities. We will carry out our disciplinary procedures where
appropriate, but we will ensure that any internal proceedings do not prejudice any
criminal investigation.

In cases relating to Housing Benefits and Council tax Fraud the action taken will
follow the prosecution policy outlined in Appendix 5. All other instances of fraud the
action taken will follow the prosecution policy outlined in Appendix 4.

The Accounts Commission has powers to request or carry out an investigation into
fraud and corruption,

TRAINING

We understand that the key to introducing a successful anti-fraud and anti-corruption
strategy and making sure it continues to apply will depend on programmed training
and the way all our employees respond.

We support the provision of training for our employees who are involved in, or
managing, internal control systems to make sure that their responsibilities and duties
are regularly reviewed and reinforced.

We are also committed to training and developing our employees who are involved in
investigating fraud and corruption, and we will provide suitable training.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 5



Rage 137

Appendix 1

Fraud Response Plan

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 6



Page 138



1.1

1.2

1.2

2.1

2.2

Page 139

Compiled by Internal Audit
INTRODUCTION

Argyll and Bute Council is committed to the highest possible standards of openness,
probity and accountability in all affairs. It is determined to develop a culture of
honesty and opposition to fraud and corruption.

In line with that commitment, the Council’s Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption
Policy outlines the principles we are committed to in relation to preventing, reporting
and managing fraud and corruption.

This Fraud Response Plan reinforces the Council’s robust approach by setting out the
ways in which employees or members of the public can voice their concerns about
suspected fraud or corruption. It also outlines how the Council will deal with such
complaints.

WHAT DO WE WANT TO KNOW ABOUT?

This Plan is intended to be implemented where suspicions of fraud or corruption have
been raised.

Fraud 1s defined as:

“The intentional distortion of financial statements or other records by persons
internal or external to the authority which is carried out to conceal the
misappropriation of assets or otherwise for gain”.

Corruption is defined as:

“The offering, giving, soliciting or acceptance of an inducement or reward,
which may influence the action of any person”.

Fraudulent or corrupt acts may include:

Systems Issues ie, where a process/system exists which is
prone to abuse by either employees or public,
{eg Housing Allocations)

Financial Issues ie, where individuals or companies have
fraudulently obtained money from, or which
properly belongs to, the Council, (eg invalid
invoices/work not done, Housing Benefit
fraud)

Equipment or Resource Issues ie, where Council material or equipment is
misappropriated or misused other than for
Council purposes (eg Council vehicles,
computer equipment, building materials).

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 7



Page 140

APPENDIX 2

The Seven Principles of Public Life

Selflessness

Holders of public office take decisions in terms of the public interest. They should not do so
in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their
friends.

Integrity

Holders of public office should not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to

outside individuals or organisations that might influence them in the performance of their
official duties.

Objectivity

In carrying out public business, including making appointments, awarding contract, or
recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, holders of public office should make
choices on merit.

Accountability

Holders of public office are accountable for their decisions and actions to the public and must
submit themselves to whatever scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

Openness

Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all the decisions and actions that
they take. They should give reasons for their decisions and restrict information only when the
wider public interest clearly demands.

Honesty

Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private interests relating to their public
duties to take steps to resolve conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest.

Leadership

Holders of public office should promote and support these principles by leadership and
example.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 8



Page 141

APPENDIX 3

PUBLIC INTEREST DISCLOSURE POLICY

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1

1.2

Argyll & Bute Council is committed to the highest standards of openness, probity
and accountability. These high standards are coupled with a positive approach to
enabling employees and others who become aware of wrongdoing, improper
conduct or other failures of a substantive nature to bring attention to their
concerns. The Council’s Public Interest Disclosure Policy is, therefore, designed

e To set out a process for the investigation of certain disclosures of information
which are made in the public interest;

e To provide protection from reprisal or victimisation for individuals who make
such disclosures in good faith; and

e Thus to provide a genuine recourse for legitimate representations without
encouraging a climate in which they become malicious, trivial or routine.

There are existing procedures in place which enable employees of the Council to
raise a grievance relating to their own employment. The Public Interest
Disclosure Policy is designed to deal with matters which fall outwith the scope of
the Grievance or Disciplinary Procedures

2. SCOPE

2.1

In the context of the work of Argyll & Bute Council, a “qualifying disclosure”
means any disclosure of information which, in the reasonable belief of the person
making the disclosure, tends to show one or more of the following —

(a) That a criminal offence has been committed, is being committed or is likely
to be committed,

(b) That a person has failed, is failing or is likely to fail to comply with any
legal obligation to which he/she is subject,

(c) That a person has failed, is failing or is likely to fail to comply with any
obligation as to their conduct or otherwise imposed on that person by —

- The National Code of Local Government Conduct
- The Argyll & Bute Council Code of Conduct for Members
- The Argyll & Bute Code of Conduct for Officers

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 9



Page 142

- The Argyll & Bute Council Protocol governing relations between
Members and Officers

- The Council’s Standing Orders, Contract Standing Orders, or
Financial and Security Regulations.

(d) That the health or safety of any individual has been, is being or is likely to
be endangered.

(e) That the Council has committed, is committing or is likely to commit to a
course of action which is unlawful

(f) That the Council has taken, is taking, or likely to take a course of action, or
there has been a corresponding failure, which is likely to give rise to a
finding of maladministration on the part of the Council

(g) That information tending to show any matter falling within any of the
preceding paragraphs has been, is being or is likely to be deliberately
concealed.

A qualifying disclosure is made in accordance with this policy if the person —
(a) Makes the disclosure in good faith

(b) Reasonably believes that the information disclosed, and any allegation
contained in it, are substantially true

(c) Does not make the disclosure for purposes of personal gain

(d) In all the circumstances of the matter, believes it is reasonable for the
person to make the disclosure.

3. SAFEGUARDS

3.1  The Council recognises that taking a decision to report a concem of the type
covered by this policy can be a difficult one, not least because of the fear of
reprisal. The Council makes it clear that it will not tolerate any reprisals under
any circumstances and will take action to protect a person who makes a
qualifying disclosure.

3.2 If a disclosure is made in good faith but is not confirmed by subsequent
investigation, no action will be taken against the person making the disclosure.
The Council will, however, protect itself, its Members and Employees against
malicious allegations and will take appropriate action against any person who
makes such an allegation. The Council will also take such reasonable steps which
may be open to it to minimise the impact on any of its Members or Employees of
an allegation which is either malicious or unfounded.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 10



Page 143

3.3 Nothing in this Policy means that if a person is already the subject of any action
or procedure against them (including in the case of employees, disciplinary
procedures) that those procedures will necessarily be halted as a result of a
disclosure made under this policy.

4. CONFIDENTIALITY

4.1 In a culture of openness, and against the Council’s stated policy that it will
protect a person who may make a disclosure in good faith and in the public
interest, and to assist any investigative process, it is clearly desirable that the
person who makes a disclosure should be prepared to do so on an attributable
basis. The Council will, however, take reasonable steps, but cannot guarantee, to
protect the identity of a person who makes a disclosure and does not wish his or
her name to be disclosed, subject to the following factors —

(2) The seriousness and nature of the issues raised
(b) The likelihood of confirming any aliegation from other attributable sources
(¢) The need for evidential statements as part of any investigation

(d) The credibility of the allegation, and, in all the circumstances, the need to
allow a person against whom an allegation is made to test the veracity and
substance of it

() The likelihood, in all the circumstances, of unwarranted reprisals being
directed against a person who makes a disclosure.

4.2  The Officer conducting the investigation will, however, take all necessary steps to
ensure that the name of a person who makes a disclosure is not disclosed to others
within the Council except, strictly, on a need to know basis in order to further the
due completion of the investigation and the Council’s response to it. (See
paragraph 5 below)

4,3  The Council will not disclose in any public document the name of any person
who makes a disclosure, nor will the Council disclose that person’s name to any
third party outside the Council except —

e Where an offence may have been committed and there is considered to be an
obligation to report that to the Police or Procurator Fiscal, or to co-operate
with enquiries instituted by the Police or the Fiscal

e Otherwise where there would be any failure on the part of the Council to
comply with any legal obligation on them.

4.4  Allegations expressed anonymously will not normally be considered. In

exercising any discretion to consider any anonymous allegation, the factors which
will be taken into account are —

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 11



Page 144

e The seriousness and nature of the issues raised
e The credibility of the concerns
e The likelihood of confirming the allegations from other attributable sources

5. DISCLOSURES AND THEIR INVESTIGATION

5.1  As noted earlier, this Policy is designed to provide recourse for legitimate
representations to be made about wrongdoing, improper conduct or other failure
of a substantive nature. Any person making a disclosure in terms of this Policy
should do so to the Council’s Monitoring Officer. The Monitoring Officer will
decide —

(a) Whether the matter is one which should be dealt with under the Council’s
Grievance or Disciplinary Procedures, and, if so, will refer the matter to the
appropriate Officer.

(b) Whether the matter is one which should be dealt with under any
Complaints or other procedure of the Council, and, if so, will refer the
matter to the appropriate Officer.

(¢) Whether the matter is one which should be investigated in terms of this
Policy and, if so, will conduct an investigation in terms of this Policy.

(d) Inthe absence of an investigation in terms of this Policy, what other action,
if any, should be taken.

5.2  Notwithstanding and without prejudice to the statutory obligations placed on the
Monitoring Officer, for the purposes of this Policy the function of the Monitoring
Officer is to investigate a disclosure of information, and any allegation contained .
in 1t, relating to any matter contained in paragraph 2 of this Policy.

5.3  The purpose of an investigation under this Policy will be to determine which of
the following findings is the case —

(a) That there is no evidence of any failure to comply with any of the matters
set out in paragraph 2 above,

(b) That no action needs to be taken in respect of the matters which are the
subject of the investigation

(c) That any matter which is the subject of investigation can be remedied by
compliance with any recommendations which are made in the report of the
investigation

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 12



(d)

(e)

®

54

Page 145

That there is evidence of a failure on the part of a Member of the Council in
relation to any of the matters referred to in paragraph 2 above in which
case, with the exception of a matter in respect of which a criminal offence
may have been committed, the report of the investigation will be referred to
the Council’s Standards Committee which will consider what action, if any,
should be taken

That there is evidence of a failure on the part of an Officer of the Council in
relation to any matter referred to in paragraph 2 above, in which case the
report of the investigation will be referred to the Chief Executive who will
determine what action, if any, should be taken

That the matters which are the subject of the investigation should be
referred to the Council’s Standards Committee, otherwise.

For the purpose of conducting an investigation in terms of this Policy, the
Monitoring Officer ~

(@)

(b)

(©)

)

(e)

®

May conduct the investigation personally, or may authorise another person
to do so

May obtain information from such persons and in such manner, and make
such enquiries, as she/he thinks fit

May require any Officer or Member to provide such information or
explanation as may be necessary for the purpose of conducting the
investigation

Must give any person who is the subject of any allegation which is being
investigated the opportunity or opportunities to respond to and comment on
any allegation and must, in the course of any interview, allow that person to
be accompanied by any other person

May require any Officer or Member holding or accountable for any
document or record (held in any medium) relating to the investigation
access to such document or record.

May, to assist the investigation, obtain advice from any person inside or
outside the Council who is qualified to give it.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 13



Page 146

5.5
A copy of any report of any investigation must be given to any Member or

Officer of the Council who is the subject of the report before the report is finally
disposed of by the Monitoring Officer as set out in paragraph 5.3 above.

6. CONSIDERATION OF REPORTS BY STANDARDS COMMITTEE

6.1 In considering any report brought before it in terms of Paragraph 5.3(d), the
Standards Committee will —

(a) Provide the opportunity for the Member, together with any other person
whom the Member wishes to accompany or represent him/her, to appear
before the Committee;

(b) Hear oral or consider written evidence from persons who may have
provided evidence in the course of the investigation, and any other
witnesses whom either the Member concemed or the Standards Committee
consider it desirable to hear or receive evidence from;

(¢) Consider such written documents as may be brought before them, including
any so brought by the Member concerned, or any other document which the
Committee considers it necessary for them to consider.

The Standards Committee will hold any hearing(s) in private unless the Member
concerned requests that it be held in public.

7.  DECISIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF STANDARDS COMMITTEE

7.1 The Standards Committee is to decide whether or not there has been a failure on
the part of any Member who is the subject of a report in terms of Paragraph
5.3(d), with the exception of a matter in respect of which a criminal offence may
have been committed until any criminal proceedings have been disposed of.

7.2  Where the Committee decides that there has been no such failure on the part of
any Member of the Council it will give notice to that effect to the Member
concerned.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 14



Page 147

7.3 Where the Committee decides that there has been such a failure as is mentioned
in Paragraph 7.1 above, the Committee must decide whether the nature of the
failure is such that either —

(a) The Committee is to advise the Member concerned that there has been a
failure on his or her part, and specify the details of that failure; or

(b)  Submit a report to Council, which report will be considered in public,
advising that there has been a failure on the part of a Member concerned,
specifying the details of that failure, which report may include a
recommendation that any one of the following courses of action should be
taken by the Council —

(1) That a Member concemed be afforded the opportunity of
apologising to the Council in respect of the failure; or

(1)  That a Member concerned should be the subject of a resolution of
censure expressing the Council’s disappointment that there has
been a failure on the part of a Member concerned; or

(i)  That the Council remove a Member concermned from any one or
more positions of office to which the Member was appointed by
the Council or any of its Committees or Sub-Committees, and/or
that the Member be removed from membership of any one or more
Committee or Sub-Committee of the Council; or

(iv)  That the Council passes a resolution that it has no confidence in a
Member concerned, and inviting that Member to consider his or
her position as a Member of the Council.

7.4  Before submitting a recommendation in terms of paragraph 7.3(b) to the Council,
the Standards Committee will provide a copy of their report, including any
recommendation contained in it, to a Member concerned.

7.5  In considering a recommendation in terms of paragraph 7.3(b) the Council will
afford an opportunity to a Member concerned to make a statement to the Council,
and it will not be open to the Council to pass a resolution which would, in respect
of a Member concerned, be more onerous than the course of action recommended
by the Standards Committee.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 15



Page 148



Page 149

APPENDIX 4

PROSECUTION POLICY

The Council is committed to preventing fraud and corruption and has developed an *Anti-
Fraud and Anti-Corruption Policy’ in order to minimise its occurrence.

The Council will constantly monitor its systems and amend procedures as required.

This procedure does not supersede other internal disciplinary codes implemented by the
Council and internal offenders (eg Council employees or Councillors) will be liable to general
disciplinary procedures as well as prosecution.

General

The Council’s policy on fraud is to:

deter it in the first instance;

detect it quickly;

investigate it efficiently; and
prosecute offenders when appropriate.

In most cases, the Chief Executive in consultation with the appropriate Director, will decide 1f
reporting the matter to the Police is appropriate. In exceptional circumstances the Internal
Audit Manager may refer matters to the Police direct without prior consultation with the Chief
Executive.

In deciding whether a fraud should be reported to the Police the following factors will be
taken in to account.

1. The extent of the fraud/corruption in financial terms
2. The sufficiently and appropriateness of evidence
3. Whether the public interest will be served

In general, all cases will be reported to the Police.

Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit Fraud

To assist staff involved in this area, specific procedural guidelines have been established.
(See Appendix 5).

0756 ~ Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 16



Page 150



Page 151

APPENDIX S
HOUSING BENEFIT AND COUNCIL TAX BENEFIT FRAUD
FRAUD DETECTION AND PREVENTION

1. Argyll and Council is fully committed to ensuring that Housing Benefit and or/or
Council Tax Benefit is awarded only to those claimants who have an entitlement and
that reasonable procedures and processes are in place to verify the circumstances of
claimants before making any awards.

2. The Council is committed to developing and implementing measures to prevent and
detect benefit fraud.

3. The Council has invested resources in establishing a team of Benefit Fraud Officers
dedicated to the identification, investigation and prevention of benefit fraud. That
team will work with and, where appropriate under the terms of the Data Protection
Act, make use of information available from other agencies such as the Benefits
Agency, Department of Social Security, Inland Revenue as well as other departments
of the Council to detect and prevent benefit fraud.

4. All Council staff involved in the administration of benefits will periodically be given
fraud awareness training with a view to them having a role in the identification of
potentially fraudulent claims which must be passed to the team of Benefit Inspectors
for investigation.

BENEFIT FRAUD PROSECUTION

5. The Council recognises that the submission of incorrect or incomplete information by
an individual or individuals in order to fraudulently obtain benefit is a criminal
offence and that consideration will be given to preparing cases for submission to
Strathclyde Police or direct to the Procurator Fiscal’s Office for prosecution.

6. Where payments of benefit have been considered as having been fraudulently
obtained the Benefit Fraud Team Leader will, where the value of the benefit obtained
exceeds a threshold level, submit the papers relating to alleged fraud to the Unified
Benefits Section for consideration as to whether the case should be referred to
Strathclyde Police or direct to the Procurator Fiscal’s Office. In considering further
action the Benefit Fraud Team Leader will use the following criteria

a) Has a good prima facie case been established

b) That there is sufficient evidence of false information
¢} That there is sufficient evidence of criminal intent
d) There is a clear record of the investigation:

- clear reports have been compiled at every stage in the investigation

- all information provided by the external sources has been recorded in a manner
which is acceptable as evidence

- supporting documentary evidence has been obtained

- all information has been obtained fairly

e) A prosecution would be in public interest because of its deterrent value.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 17



Page 152

f) Social factors to be considered include the age and disability of the offender or of
a close relative , family circumstances, etc.

g) Health problems to be considered include any serious/terminal illness or
disability
of the claimant, partner or other member of the household.

h) Literacy problems to be considered include, illiteracy, dyslexia, language/iearning
difficulties.

h) Also taken into consideration would be any previous offences against the
Council.

ADMINISTRATION PENALTIES

7.

10.

The Council will consider financial penalties, as an alternative to a criminal
prosecution, i cases where the criteria for prosecution have been fulfilled but the
offender’s personal circumstances indicate that a financial penalty would be a suitable
solution.

This provision is in accordance with the Social Security Administration (Fraud) Act
1997 which allows the Authority to administer a penalty (currently 30% of the
amount of benefit fraudulently obtained). The Council will recoup the administrative
penalty payments in addition to any repayments of the overpaid benefit.

If the financial penalty is not accepted by the offender as the alternative remedy, then
the matter will be referred back by pursuit of a criminal prosecution as will any case
where a claimant had agreed to pay an administrative penalty but subsequently fails
to keep to the agreement.

The Benefit Fraud Team Leader with the delegated responsibility for authorising
administrative penalties shall be the Unified Benefits Manager.

A FRAUDULENT CLAIM BY AN EMPLOYEE OR MEMBER OF THE
COUNCIHL

11.

12.

Any identified case of benefit which involves an Employee of the Council will, in
addition to the actions outlined above, also be a subject of the Council’s Disciplinary
Procedures. In such instances, the case will be brought to the attention of the Internal
Audit Manager who may consider whether or not to have his/her section participate in
the investigation and disciplinary process.

Any identified case of fraud which involves a Member of the Council will be referred
immediately to the Internal Audit Manager who will arrange for the participation of
Internal Audit Section in the investigation. The Internal Audit Manager will then
refer the case to the Chief Executive. The Monitoring Officer will refer the matter to
the appropriate Committee.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 18



Page 153

13. It will be the responsibility of the Unified Benefit Manager to advise the Internal
Audit Manager immediately it becomes apparent that a fraudulent act may have been
commitied by an Employee or Member of the Council.

The Couneil will ensare that all persons who are the subject of n investigation into
suspected benefit fraud will be treated fairly and courteously at all times.

0756 — Anti-Fraud & Anti-corruption Strategy 19



Page 154



